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Wing Lung Bank, founded in 1933, is among the oldest local
Chinese banks in Hong Kong. The Bank has at all times
followed its motto of “Progress with prudence, service with
sincerity” in providing personalised and sincere service to

customers.

The Chinese name of the Bank means “Perpetual
Prosperity”. Originally established as an indigenous Chinese
bank, Wing Lung Bank developed and expanded as Hong
Kong underwent a remarkable economic transformation after
the War. The Bank has since established itself as one with
contemporary outlook and comprehensive services, catering
to the needs of the business community and playing a part in
the generally vibrant economy of Hong Kong.

China Merchants Bank successfully took over Wing Lung
Bank in 2008. Wing Lung Bank has since become a member
of China Merchants Bank Group.

China Merchants Bank was incorporated in Shenzhen in
1987 as the first share-holding commercial bank wholly
owned by corporate legal entities in China. After more than
two decades of effort, China Merchants Bank, now listed
in Shanghai, China and Hong Kong, has transitioned itself
into a leading national commercial bank with total assets
over RMB4,700 billion and operating over 1,400 banking
business outlets by the end of December 2014.

China Merchants Bank and Wing Lung Bank will step up
efforts in business integration and complement each other.
Through the synergy from the merger, both banks will be
able to offer a wider range of quality products and services

to customers.
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Board of Directors

Dr MA Weihua, PiD

Chairman

He has been the Chairman of the Bank since October 2008. He had
been the President and Chief Executive Officer as well as an Executive
Director of China Merchants Bank Company, Limited (“CMB”) from
March 1999 to May 2013. He was a Director of China Merchants Group
Limited as well as the Chairman of CIGNA and CMB Life Insurance
Company Limited and China Merchants Fund Management Company,
Limited. He obtained a doctorate degree in Economics and is a senior
economist. He is a member of the Twelfth National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference as well as an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation, China Eastern Airlines Company Limited, Post Savings
Bank of China and China World Trade Centre Company Limited. He has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of Guotai Junan Securities
Company, Limited since January 2013, an Independent Non-executive
Director of China Resources Land Limited since July 2013 and a Director
of Huabao Investment Company Limited since August 2013. He is also
the Chairman of the Executive Committee of One Foundation, the Vice
Chairman of China Chamber of International Commerce, the Executive
Deputy Chairman of China Entrepreneurs Association, a Member of the
Standing Council of China Society for Finance and Banking, a Member
of the Standing Council of the Ninth Council of Red Cross Society of
China, a Director of Shenzhen Soft Science Development Foundation and
an adjunct professor at several higher educational institutions including
Peking University and Tsinghua University, etc.

Dr ZHANG Guanghua, PiD

Vice-Chairman

He has been the Vice-Chairman of the Bank since October 2008. He
has been an Executive Director of CMB since June 2007 and the Vice
Chairman of CMB since August 2013. He obtained a doctorate degree in
Economics and is a senior economist. He is the Chairman of CIGNA &
CMB Life Insurance Company Limited and the China Merchants Fund
Management Company, Limited. He is also a Member of the Standing
Council of China Society for Finance and Banking, the Deputy Chairman
of Guangdong Society for Finance and Banking, a Member of the Fifth
Committee of China Council for the Promotion of International Trade.
From September 2002 to April 2007, he served as the President of
Guangdong Development Bank. From April 2007 to May 2013, he served
as an Executive Vice President of CMB.
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Mr LI Hao, MBA

Non-executive Director

He has been a Director of the Bank since October 2008. He joined CMB
as Executive Assistant President in May 1997. He was the President of
the Shanghai Branch of CMB from April 2000 to March 2002. He has
been an Executive Vice President of CMB since March 2002, and the
Chief Financial Officer since March 2007. He has served as an Executive
Director of CMB since June 2007, and the First Executive Vice President
of CMB since May 2013. He obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration and is a senior accountant.

Mr ZHU Qi, MSc

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

He has been appointed the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Bank since September 2008 and October 2008
respectively. He also sits on the board of all principal subsidiary
companies of the Bank. He obtained a master degree in Economics. He
joined CMB in August 2008 and has been appointed an Executive Vice
President of CMB since December 2008. He is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited. He worked in
the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1986 to 2008, and
was the Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Hong Kong Branch, the Director
and Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited, and the Chairman of Chinese
Mercantile Bank.

Dr XU Zhihong, pnD

Executive Director & General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive Officer
He joined the Bank in 2010, and has been appointed the Executive
Director and General Manager of the Bank since February 2010. He
is also a Director of all principal subsidiary companies of the Bank.
He graduated from Accounting Department of Anhui University of
Finance & Economics in 1984, and obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from University of Oklahoma in 1990. He also obtained
a doctorate degree in Accounting from Renmin University of China in
1994.

Mr LIU Jun, mMB4

Executive Director, General Manager & Chief Risk Officer, Alternate
Chief Executive Officer

He joined the Bank as the General Manager and Chief Risk Officer in
January 2013, and has been appointed the Executive Director of the
Bank since April 2013. He is also a Director of all principal subsidiary
companies of the Bank. He obtained a master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining the Bank, he was the General Manager
of Operations Management Department at the Head Office of CMB. He
held various senior executive roles at the Head Office and Hong Kong
Branch of CMB.
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Ms XU Ziying, MB4

Non-executive Director

She has been appointed a Director of the Bank since August 2014.
She obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration and is an
economist. She joined CMB in November 1996. She served as the
Deputy Director of the General Office of Shanghai Branch of CMB,
President of Shanghai Changyang sub-branch of CMB, President of
Shanghai Xujiahui sub-branch of CMB, Deputy Director of Telephone
Banking Centre (in charge of the daily management) of the head office of
CMB, General Manager of Telephone Banking Centre of the head office
of CMB, General Manager of Direct Banking Centre as well as Person
in Charge of Human Resources Department and General Manager of
Direct Banking Center of the head office of CMB from November 1996
to April 2014. She has been the General Manager of Human Resources
Department since April 2014. She is also a director of CMB International
Capital Corporation Limited and CMB Financial Leasing Company,
Limited.

Dr ZHENG Xianbing, PiD

Non-executive Director

He has been appointed a Director of the Bank since June 2014. He
had been the Director of the Bank during the period from October
2008 to April 2010. Graduated with a doctorate degree in Economics
from the Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics in 1989. He
has been appointed the General Manager of Strategic Development
Department (Overseas Development Department) of the head office of
CMB since December 2013. During the period from 2007 to January
2010 and January to December 2013, he had been the General Manager
of Investment Banking Department of the head office of CMB. He
had been appointed the General Manager of Ningbo Branch of CMB
from February 2010 to January 2013. He had been the Director of
CMB International Capital Corporation Limited, CIGNA & CMB Life
Insurance Company Limited and CMB Financial Leasing Company
Limited. He had been a lecturer, an associate professor and a deputy
dean of the Finance Department of Zhongnan University of Finance
and Economics from July 1986 to June 1993. He served as the Deputy
General Manager of the Trust and Investment Department (in charge of
the daily management), Deputy General Manager and General Manager
of Development Department (in charge of the daily management), and
General Manager of Organisation Management Department of the head
office of CMB, Deputy General Manager of Shanghai Branch of CMB,
General Manager of Research Department of CMB and the team leader
of the listing team of CMB, General Manager of CMB International
Capital Corporation Limited, Chairman of the board of Shenzhen New
Jiangnan Investment Company Limited and Finance Office Executive of
CMB since July 1993.
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Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP. B4, FCA, FCPA, FHKIoD

Independent Non-executive Director

He has been appointed as a Director of the Bank since June 2014. Mr
Chow is a fellow and council member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Chairman of its Commercial
Board, and a past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). Before elected president, he chaired
the HKICPA’s Corporate Governance Committee and Professional
Accountants in Business (PAIB) Committee. He had been a Deputy
Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors from 2001 to 2008
and the Chairman of the PAIB Committee of the International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) from 2006 to 2008. Mr Chow is currently a
core member of the OECD/World Bank Asian Corporate Governance
Roundtable, the Chairman of China Infrastructure Group, a Non-
executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority, an Independent Non-
executive Director of Redco Properties Holdings Limited, an advisor of
the Business and Professionals Federation of Hong Kong, a Standing
Committee member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference — Zhejiang Province, a member of the Election Committee of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and was an expert advisor
of the Accounting Standards Committee of the Ministry of Finance, the
People’s Republic of China. Prior to entering the commercial sector, Mr
Chow spent 11 years working for two major accounting firms, Deloitte
Haskins & Sells and Price Waterhouse (as they were then known),
respectively in London and Hong Kong. Mr Chow was appointed a
Justice of Peace by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in July 2008. Mr Chow was also an awardee of
the Directors of the Year Award 2010 in the non-executive director of
listed companies (SEHK — Hang Seng Index Constituents) category,
awarded by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln, BScChE, MBA, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

He has been appointed a Director of the Bank and an Independent Non-
executive Director of Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited since
2003. He has also been an Independent Non-executive Director of Wah
Ha Realty Company Limited.

Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

He has been appointed a Director of the Bank since 2007. He has also
been Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings
Limited and Asia Insurance Company Limited as well as an Advisor
of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart
from the roles in the business community, he also serves as a Hong Kong
Deputy to The National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of
China and a member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR.
He is also a former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
SAR. In addition, he holds directorship in a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions
Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited and Yau Lee Holdings
Limited.
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Mr LIU Erh Fei, mB4

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank since October 2013. He is a founding
partner and Vice Chairman of Cindat, a China based global real estate
investment fund management company. From 1999 to 2012, he worked
at Merrill Lynch (later Bank of America Merrill Lynch) in various
capacities including Chairman of the China Region, Chairman of
Investment Banking for Asia and Head of Private Equity for Greater
China. In 2006, he received the Investment Banker of the Year in
Asia award from “Banker” magazine. From 1987 to 1999, he worked
in a number of investment and commercial banks including Goldman
Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Credit Agricole Indosuez.
He served as a head of China for Morgan Stanley from 1990 to 1992
and for Goldman Sachs from 1992 to 1994. He served as Head of
Asia Investment Banking for Smith Barney from 1994 to 1996 and
Credit Agricole Indosuez from 1997 to 1999. He graduated from
Harvard Business School in 1987 with a master degree in Business
Administration, from Brandeis University with a bachelor of arts degree
in Economics in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Languages University
with a diploma in English in 1981.
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Executives

Mr CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM

Chief Financial Officer

Joined the Bank in 1991 and appointed Assistant General Manager in
2007. Certified Public Accountant. Appointed Chief Financial Officer in
2010. Member of the board of Sea Wing Investments Limited and Wing
Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited.

Mr WANG Zhiqiang, MSc

Chief Information Officer

Joined the Bank in 2009 as Assistant General Manager. Appointed Chief
Information Officer in 2010. Member of the board of Hongnet Limited.

Ms CHAN Kin Hing, MBA, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank in 1981. Appointed Assistant General Manager in 2010.
She is primarily responsible for the Bank’s credit risk management
affairs and loan asset portfolio monitoring.

Mr HUANG Rui, B4

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank in 2009. Appointed Assistant General Manager in 2011.
He is primarily responsible for the Bank’s corporate banking, Mainland
and overseas businesses. Member of the board of Wing Lung Bank
(Nominees) Limited.

Ms SONG Lihua, msc

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager in 2011. She is primarily
responsible for the Bank’s financial institutions business and corporate
communications.

Mr CHUNG Siu Kuen, BBA (Hons), MBA, LL.B. (Hons)

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager in 2013. He is primarily
responsible for supervising the Bank’s Retail Banking Department, Call
Centre, Credit Card & Unsecured Loans Department and Mortgage &
Secured Loans Department.
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MA Weihua Chairman

2014 was the sixth full year for the Bank after becoming a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Merchants Bank (“CMB”). During the year, amidst
a very challenging external environment, the Bank strictly followed
the requirements of regulatory authorities and the Board of Directors,
overcame numerous adverse factors, steadily advanced the integration
with CMB, accelerated business transformation and enhanced key
competencies, thereby maintaining an excellent development trend.

In 2014, the Bank’s business development demonstrated the following
features: Firstly, the Bank’s profitability grew persistently. During the
year, the Bank achieved a consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
of HK$3,169 million, representing an increase of 22.0% from the same
period of last year. Return on average assets and return on average
equity increased by 0.05 and 0.67 percentage point to 1.36% and 14.79%
respectively compared to that at the beginning of the year. Secondly,
the Bank’s risk resistance capability continued to strengthen. As
at the year end of 2014, the non-performing loan ratio, including trade
bills, was 0.07%, down by 0.04 percentage point from the beginning of
the year. Common equity tier 1 capital ratio, tier 1 capital ratio, total
capital ratio and average liquidity ratio were 10.8%, 12.1%, 16.0%
and 42.5% respectively, all above statutory requirements. Thirdly, the
Bank’s business scale expanded steadily. As at the year end of 2014,
the consolidated total assets of the Bank amounted to HK$247.6 billion,
up by 14.0% from the beginning of the year. Total deposits grew by
18.2% from the beginning of the year to HK$183.4 billion, while total
loans and advances to customers, including trade bills, rose by 16.7%
from the beginning of the year to HK$154.1 billion. Fourthly, the Bank
continually optimised its business structure. Businesses such as loans
to small and micro enterprises, wealth management and financial market
grew rapidly. Non-interest income amounted to HK$1,674 million for
the year, which represented an increase of 21.2% as compared with the
same period of last year. Of the total, net fees and commission income
increased by 16.1% as compared with the same period of last year.
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In 2014, the Board of Directors properly performed its duties and
enhanced its decision making capability. The Board achieved remarkable
results in strengthening corporate governance, fostering integration and
coordination with CMB, accelerating business innovation and enhancing
management capability. These efforts effectively supported the operations
of the management.

To strengthen corporate governance, the terms of reference for the
Management Committee, the Strategy Committee, the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee and the Audit and Risk Management Committee
had been adjusted, and information disclosure as well as management
of investor relations had been enhanced. The Board also introduced
senior management personnel, appointed new non-executive director
and independent non-executive director and deployed comprehensive
management teams in major business lines. In addition, the Board further
promoted the optimisation of the internal structure and reporting line of
the Bank by the management.

To foster integration and coordination with CMB, the Board
continued to adhere to the guideline of tailoring to customers’ demand,
and strengthened business referral, cross-selling and resources sharing
between CMB and the Bank, so as to further capitalise on the advantages
of coordinated development and synergic effects. As at the end of 2014,
balance of loans granted to overseas enterprises with guarantees from
domestic enterprises as security grew by 26% as compared with the
beginning of the year. Under the cooperation of the two banks, business
turnover of foreign exchange increased by 52% as compared with the
same period of last year, while business turnover of coordinated trade
financing decreased by 10% as compared with the same period of
last year. The number of diamond private customers and the value of
customer asset management referred by CMB increased substantially.

To accelerate business innovation, the Board focused on its objective
of enhancing the Bank’s cross-border financial service capability in a
comprehensive manner, and strived to further diversify and optimise our
cross-border corporate financial products system including cross-border
settlement, cross-border financing, asset management and structural
wealth management. Great emphasis had been placed on building a
cross-border financial service platform for small and medium banks. To
cater for the wealth protection and inheritance needs of high-net-worth
customers in both Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Bank opened a
private banking center under Wing Lung Bank, while operating as the
first overseas private banking centre of CMB, and was awarded the “2014
Best Cross-Border Wealth Management Service Private Bank in China”.
Meanwhile, deeply based in Hong Kong, the Bank also devoted efforts
to expand financing services for small and micro enterprises in the local
market and strengthened its differentiated competitive edge.
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To enhance management capability, the Board accelerated the
establishment and improvement of its comprehensive risk management
system, and continued to foster the consolidated reporting management
and joint implementation of the new capital accord requirements with
CMB. The Bank also strengthened its core capabilities of IT system,
channel building, performance appraisal system and customer service.
The Bank also strived to build a proactive, harmonious and progressive
culture in order to enhance its brand image.

The above achievements were attributable to the dedicated service of all
our staff and the valuable support from our customers, fellow bankers
and all walks of life as well as CMB. On behalf of the Bank, I would like
to express my sincere gratitude to all of our friends for their dedication
and continued support.

In 2015, we will face a more complex and mixed operating environment.
As the global economy is recovering amidst a lot of uncertainties and
unstable factors, the US Federal Reserve quantitative easing tapering
and the implementation of quantitative easing policy by the Eurozone
will bring significant impact on the emerging markets, while the local
economy will be restrained by increased uncertainties, the operating
environment will be challenging for the Bank. Nevertheless, the
acceleration in the reform of interest liberalisation in the Mainland
market and the steady promotion of Shanghai Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the increase in demand for cross-border financial services
as well as further integration and business collaboration with CMB
will bring new opportunities to the Bank for its future development.
Under the new situation, the Bank will continue to strengthen its
integration and coordination with CMB, and put top priority on the
development of wealth management, cross-border corporate finance,
cross-border finance for small and medium-sized banks and coordinated
business with investment banks and commercial banks, and accelerate
the establishment of a cross-border financial service platform.
Meanwhile, the Bank will strive to deepen the reform in management,
accelerate strategic transformation, and enhance overall management
efficiency, capital efficiency and operational efficiency, so as to make
new breakthrough in its key competencies. Moreover, the Bank will
offer prime-quality services and achieve better results to reward the
community for their valuable support.

We sincerely look forward to the continuous support from the public in
the years ahead.

MA Weihua
Chairman

16 March 2015
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

KOE O ATBEEK
ZHU Qi Chief Executive Officer

In 2014, Hong Kong economy maintained moderate growth, with real
GDP increased by 2.3%. In view of the sluggish recovery of global
economy and the weak external demand, total exports of goods recorded
a slight rise. Domestic demand saw growth slowdown and private
consumption expenditure recorded a mild increase, but investment
expenditure declined. With the low unemployment rate and moderately
improved payroll and income, the labor market held overall stable. Real
estate developers successively launched large property development
projects under the low interest rate environment, resulting in increase
of trading volume and selling price of residential properties. Given
moderated global inflation, along with decline in local cost pressure,
inflation was on an easing trend.

Externally, the global economy recovered slowly at an uneven pace
across the world. With the gradual picking up of US economy, the
Federal Reserve ended its asset purchase programme in October. Amid
structural problems and heightened geopolitical tension in Eastern
Europe, the Eurozone economy remained weak. The European Central
Bank delivered more monetary easing measures to stimulate economic
growth and reduce deflation risk. Japan slipped into recession and further
extended quantitative easing measures so as to boost the economic
growth. The major emerging economies showed decelerating growth,
of which Asian emerging economies remained firm. The Mainland
economy stayed steady growth. Given its open economy, Hong Kong
was inevitably affected by the external factors. Under the complicated
and ever-changing economic environment, the banking industry was
confronted with more challenges.

15



Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
AKBESRATAH RA R O —IHARAFEHR

FT U R

Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

O T AE R B R AT (TR
111) DFBEATT N FEAE - AR 47
—HRACEBITNES > BB
i ) A% T B B SR B W B o B
e B S RE R T - SR
05 R O > BT HAR AN 36
B BWMEBREMRE A
T R AF A -

HE_O—NWEFf _H=+—
H k4 B > A 45 1 11 R A s
I 2y e 31,6918 T » B O —
=AEWR22.0% 0 EEHFAE
WA B A B o IE R B E T Uk 25
I BTN -

O — VU AR B B LR A B
38.97MB 0 > = O — ZA4EHEE27.9% >
F Tl R EFOR AL BT AR
ORI O — =AW R4 L F
1.72%

FEF B F WA L 167442 00 0 1K
O — =R NN21.2% > Horp R 2 K Af
SFWALBETRET B 0—=
EBEIN16.1% > F2 2l it 78 75 88 40 S 4%
Bk - B OGRS A Irm ;s %
B 7 2 TR U I = O — = 4F KR B4
48.3% 2 s 1.8 18I0 - T HoAth 25 U A
IR NA44.7% £ #3618 9T X H UL
%5 1A > AR E BRI IR O — AR
ET120.4% B HHE3 72T 5 MRS B S)
25 B O — AR T Rk o

T R 7.92f8 T > B0 —=
EHINI13% > EERS B THE - I
B RECEF AR BB A AR A E R
P ES A B BT o — O — PU4E 1 AR
AR L32.2% > 8 .0 — =4 T 4.2
(R

F A T A R 38 i e ek (B 15 2K 8 ] O
Do B ERRLE Z M EB R O
— AR E 5,026 8 0 > Al it
Z S AE R R IR O — = AR N
W WE1,0798 L E W WA5T3 L0 AR
BHRANER O — =4 -

BE_O—MNWE+_HA=+—H &4
B A A 47618 T - B0 —=
ERIR14.0% 5 B3 RE A6 1 25 2 ok W
3MEIE : B0 — 4R E16.6% 5
B FH63.5% > B 0 — =4JK F
R 74 B o o

A EEE maen
ANRMSRRAE

2014 was the sixth year for China Merchants Bank
(“CMB”) to takeover the Bank. The Bank realised
synergy effects through further collaboration with
CMB, actively promoting cross-border coordinated
business and enhancing key competencies.
Consequently, the Bank achieved remarkable results
and established a solid foundation for building a
cross-border financial service platform.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Group was
HK$3,169 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 22.0%, which was mainly driven by the
increase in net interest income. There was also a
significant increase in non-interest income.

27LUES
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In 2014, the Group recorded a net interest income of HK$3,897 million,
representing an increase of 27.9% as compared with that in 2013, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in average loan amount. The
net interest margin for the year was 1.72%, up by 14 basis points as
compared with that for the year of 2013.

Net non-interest income was HK$1,674 million, representing an increase
of 21.2% as compared with that of 2013. Net fees and commission
income amounted to HK$732 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 16.1%, which was primarily attributable to the increase in
the income from securities brokerage and investment services as well
as trade finance. Insurance business posted net operating income of
HK$181 million, representing a significant year-on-year increase of
48.3%, while other operating income rose by 44.7% to HK$361 million.
As for trading gains, net gains in foreign exchange trading increased by
20.4% to HK$372 million when compared with that of 2013. However,
the net gains from securities trading decreased.

Operating expenses amounted to HK$1,792 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 11.3%, which was primarily due to the increase in
payroll, depreciation, system consultancy fee, China business tax and
withholding tax, etc. The cost-to-income ratio for 2014 was 32.2%,
representing a decrease of 4.2 percentage points as compared with that
in 2013.

Due to the increase in total loans and decrease in impairment write-
back, the impairment loss on loans and accrued interest increased to
HK$59.26 million. The impairment loss on available-for-sale securities
also increased by HK$19.79 million to HK$45.73 million, and the non-
performing loan ratio was lower than that of 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$247.6 billion, representing an increase of 14.0% as compared with
that at the end of 2013. Equity attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$23.1 billion, representing an increase of 16.6% as compared with
that at the end of 2013. Loan-to-deposit ratio was 63.5%, down by 2.7
percentage points as compared with that at the end of 2013.
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As at 31 December 2014, common equity tier 1 capital ratio, tier 1
capital ratio and total capital ratio of the Group were 10.8%, 12.1%
and 16.0% respectively, and the average liquidity ratio for the reporting
period was 42.5%, all above statutory requirements.

Deposits
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total deposits
from customers amounted to HK$183.4 billion,
representing an increase of 18.2% when compared
with that at the end of 2013.

Among various kinds of deposits, Hong Kong Dollar
deposits increased by HK$22.7 billion or 33.6%;
US Dollar deposits after translation increased by
HK$8,094 million or 26.8%; RMB deposits after
translation decreased by HK$1,475 million or
BEAMFHEEN 3.5%; and deposits in other foreign currencies after
BEEBEmMHES . [

translation decreased by HK$1,080 million or 7.1%
as compared with those at the end of 2013.

Advances to customers

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of total advances to customers,
including trade bills, of the Group rose by 16.7% to HK$154.1 billion as
compared with that at the end of 2013 and the non-performing loan ratio,
including that of trade bills, was only 0.07%, down by 0.04 percentage
point than that at the end of 2013, which implied a sound loan quality on
the whole.

With respect to corporate banking business, total corporate loans
amounted to HK$47.7 billion as at 31 December 2014, which was
approximate to that at the end of 2013. During the reporting period, the
Bank continued to improve its “financial service platform for cross-
border enterprises”, striving to provide corporate customers with
comprehensive services, such as syndicated loans, loans for overseas
enterprises which were secured by guarantees from their respective
parent companies, bilateral loans, trade finance and structured loans.

During the period, the Bank constantly improved its
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capability to provide syndicated loans and participated
in various syndicated loans during the year, achieving
significant market effect. In the meantime, the Bank also
proactively developed structured financing business,
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generating comprehensive income from various financial
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services. The Bank will strengthen its business interaction
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with CMB, leverage its competitive advantages in cross-
border financial services, and focus on building customer
base in major fields. It will also pay close attention to the
capital market trends, explore opportunities from business
aspects such as new share issue, asset reorganisation,
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mergers and acquisitions and overseas bonds issue, and
cater the needs of customers by personalised solutions.
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As to commercial banking business, the balance of loans amounted
to HK$16.0 billion as at 31 December 2014, representing an increase
of 25.7% as compared with that at the end of 2013 and the increase
in balance of loans together with profit was mainly attributable to the
improvement in interest margin and wide range of cross-border financing
business. The Bank will continue to target at trade finance to increase its
fees and commission income.
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As for the mortgage and personal loan business, as at
31 December 2014, the balance of loans amounted to
HK$29.7 billion, representing an increase of 12.5%
over that at the end of 2013. Of the total loans, the
balance of residential mortgage loans amounted to
HK$8,622 million, representing an increase of 6.8%
as compared with that at the end of 2013. In 2014,
the total number of registered property transactions
recorded a mild increase. The Bank continued to
increase its sales arrangement, including promotion
of mortgage loans and other improved products of
funds, bonds and secured loans of private wealth
management, and the financing service “Premium

Financing” which appoints trustees as policy holders
and beneficiaries.

With respect to the business of mainland branches, as at 31 December
2014, loans to customers amounted to HK$15.6 billion, representing a
decrease of 8.0% as compared with that at the end of 2013. Through the
strategic plan of cross-border business coordination and cross-selling of
financial products, our branches in Mainland China will coordinate the
resources of the Head Office and enhance the comprehensive product
services to maintain a steady growth in size of assets and profit.

Investments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s balance of debt securities
investment amounted to HK$26.9 billion, representing a decrease
of 9.1% as compared with that at the end of 2013. More than 80%
of the debt securities were rated A3 or above and were exposed to
comparatively low risks.

Treasury business

In 2014, the Bank recorded active foreign exchange transactions for
personal business, and successfully completed a number of foreign
exchange transactions for its corporate customers, thus increasing the
overall revenue from foreign exchange trading. Revenue from foreign
exchange trading business increased by 56.3% to HK$184 million as
compared with that in 2013, and revenue from currency swaps increased
by 67.2% to HK$170 million. For money exchange business, as more
efforts had been exerted to comply with market regulation, the business
would fall correspondingly, and revenue from money exchange business
was HK$59.07 million.



Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAH RAF —O—MFEFR

RGBT ES > MEREGEHE
JEUEE o N IRE 2 P AR R AT SAOR A A
T JL B A 5 5 RIS > OB i K I RE 2
Wi > RS ERE R > D RER
WMER  WesEELERRRE > N
5 25 B0 DA 2 4% 8 R SR 1 B D)
ko

<5 Rl 8 5

S PR RESE B 7 T > AT HE R I B A
FONRATES S R ESF& - BENE
Bl BRE ] = RRE > RALAS
B o H O RE S EBIAR G E bR
B FRAMAE A b TR R A
[ B 5 ) > A1 ORT - n bR EE A T
AARAC > Lot i 0 R A - JIE
MET G 8 R B R BRI
EBT R o = O — V4R 3 R AU
KBS — b m s HEAL - EMZ
i s BEETUEF K] B
PEFE i > BANCEB A - S8 B A
FREE 0GR 5T I R AR BN AT 8 -
PR R~ P AR
AL e R ARES - T LA R AY 2 R
B o WG WIEA R R as > I E TR
A = B o

O VUAR s ARATHE T AL M 40 JF SR AT
SRR EB R > R RE A TG BT
J o BN AT EE AR S A AL G BHUE A A
B SE R T T Y TR IR SR AT B AR A
Mo BB AT FEEH IR
A - fRER - FASF R JRRIT &
AR P RS R AR EB BIR > A
B MR WE > B O — AR B
Ji B E SRR o

The Bank will capture the market changes and capitalise on all kinds
of opportunities to offer various products and provide customers with
products which efficiently mitigate the foreign exchange risk in due
course. Meanwhile, the Bank will expand its business scope in options,
and study various new products to pursue sustainable growth. The Bank
will also continue to optimise its bonds portfolio and diversify the types
of bonds to meet the strong needs of investors for bonds.

Financial institution business

As regards the banking businesses with financial institutions, the Bank
continued to build the cross-border financial service platform for
medium and small-sized banks, and realise three main functions, namely
“Clearing and Settlement, Dealing and Trading as well as Investment
and Financing”, providing cross-border comprehensive product services
such as settlement, dealing and trade finance. Adhering to its product
philosophies of “We are here just for you” and “Change as situation
does”, we proactively made innovations to upgrade products and
launched products better suiting the needs of customers, to capitalise on
market development demands and meet the needs of target customers
for cross-border business. In 2014, we placed great emphasis on further
transformation to service professionalisation and product diversification,
and focused on “customer-centric” products. By seizing the business
opportunities and in response to the characteristics of cross-border
customer base, we strengthened coordinated marketing of its cross-
market products to provide customers with comprehensive financial
services with wider range and type. Such targeted products and services
have realised significant synergy effects, leading to new growing points.

In 2014, the Bank proactively expanded non-bank financial institution
business and developed service and product portfolios based on
prudent market research. The Bank strived to retain the overseas
platform for Chinese-funded non-bank financial institutions with better
comprehensive profitability as its major customers and put great effort
in establishing business relationship with its customers such as non-
bank financial institutions of securities firms, asset management,
insurance and private equity, from which gaining experience, making
achievements, and thus laying a solid foundation for its business
development in 2015.
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Private Banking
BAMTT

Wealth management

OrRERE  DiERf
In 2014, revenue from the Group’s
wealth management business amounted
HABER KiERE il i
i R g to HK$133 million, representing an

increase of 75.9% as compared with
2013, mainly due to the increase of
commission income resulted from the
popularity of the funds and selected
bonds launched during the year. In
future, the Bank will launch competitive
wealth products, optimise sale team management and provide its
customers with specialised account management service.

BARITHEG
B (852) 268 95555 /it (86) 4008 822388
www.winglungbank.com/privatebanking
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Credit cards

As at 31 December 2014, the credit card receivables
amounted to HK$331 million, representing a slight
decrease of 1.5% as compared with that at the end of
2013. However, the merchant business turnover amounted
to HK$8,100 million, representing an increase of 28.7%
as compared with 2013, due to the Bank’s vigorous
, effort in promoting its merchant business. In future, the
- B Bank will strengthen the Xcite Visa promotion scheme
R—WER R—BRE .
ERRAME : 3711 6688 and develop loan products which meet the needs of
customers.

| REEEVETTE

Securities broking

In 2014, Wing Lung Securities Limited (“Wing Lung
Securities”) realised securities brokerage commission
income of HK$174 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 9.5%. During the year, Wing Lung Securities
not only devoted to promote customer transactions through
electronic channels, but also strengthened its business
interaction for cross-border business with CMB, successfully
acquiring a number of quality customers. Wing Lung
Securities will focus on enhancing its key competencies and
adhere to the development direction of optimising service
procedures, improving product lines and enhancing customer
EBREAR service. In addition, it will also strengthen marketing efforts
BERELM and ensure that its services and products satisfy various
Biomie - 230 95555 customer bases so as to maintain its flexibility, adaptability
and competitiveness.

BAREEER

Insurance

ZO—HAEKRRERBAMRAA ([ In 2014, Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited (“Wing Lung
BB ) EBEREIWAUNT7.45(870 > Insurance™) realised a gross premium income of HK$745 million,

B O0—=F@P41%; #

KIEH M representing a decrease of 4.1% as compared with 2013. Total insurance

F0.7% % W 4. 2008 50 - RAEEERAI L claims slightly increased by 0.7% to HK$420 million. Underwriting
F+39.2% % W 16,9958 T © K2 > /KFE  business recorded an increase of profit by 39.2% to HK$69.95 million.

TR Bt ot 48 A 1%
- 5% R 1Y

In future, Wing Lung Insurance
will continue to implement the

SR M R
B A AR E 36
B o B ML BE R
T U A A0 A
o il
B B 2 B 8
(R S
B HLF -

business strategy of balanced
development, namely, maintaining
BN BEELRRAERS [REEORR] good performance of renewal
. 15%31&533#’4‘4-27—:& coverage business, developing
£ t—‘:* A ‘ new channels and acquiring
customers, such as sales of
insurance online business, to
enhance its operating profit.
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Branch network

After consolidation and strengthening of branch network, at present, the
Bank has a total of 41 banking offices in Hong Kong.

The Bank has 4 branches and representative offices in Mainland China,
a branch in Macau and three overseas branches, located respectively in
Los Angeles and San Francisco in the United States, and the Cayman
Islands.
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of
employees of the Bank is 1,849 (31 December 2013:
1,721), of which 1,643 are in Hong Kong, 145 are
in the PRC, 37 are in Macau and 24 are overseas.

Looking ahead 2015, global economy will remain
uncertain. The US is expected to further foster
its economic growth but the interest policy
adopted by the Federal Reserve is hard to predict.
Amid the anticipation of structured problems in
Eurozone and Japanese economy and the rise
in deflation, economic recovery was greatly
hampered. Currency policies of key central banks
deviated from the market, coupled with heightened
geopolitical tension in Eastern Europe and Middle East and drop in oil
price, hitting the global finance badly. Given their solid fundamentals,
Asian emerging economies are expected to perform well. Although
the Mainland economy has stayed prudent, it will face the pressure
of economic downturn. In view of uncertain economic outlook, the
operating environment continues to be challenging for the banking
sector. The Bank will continue to maintain vigilance and strengthen its
risk management capabilities. Great emphasis will be placed on fine-
tuning operating procedures, enhancing efficiency, tightening cost
control measures and effectively improving resources allocation. Being
a member of the China Merchants Bank Group, the Bank has strong
parental support and wide business scope for further development. The
Bank will strive to realise synergy effects through further integration
and collaboration with CMB. Moreover, the Bank will also cooperate
with CMB to build a cross-border financial service platform, so as to
strengthen its competitive edge and enhance its profitability.

ZHU Qi
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

16 March 2015
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segment is set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2013:
Nil) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014.
Reserves

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Bank’s reserves are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$5,000,000 (2013: HK$5,000,000).

Other properties and equipment

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Bank’s other properties
and equipment are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Capital instruments

During the year, the Bank redeemed subordinated notes which qualified
as Tier 2 capital of the Group and the Bank totaling HK$1,500,000,000.
The Bank issued equity instruments which qualify as additional Tier 1
capital totaling USD$260,000,000. Details of the Bank’s subordinated
debt issued and additional equity instruments are set out in note 34 to the

financial statements.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of the financial

statements are as follows:

Dr MA Weihua

Dr ZHANG Guanghua
Mr LI Hao

Mr ZHU Qi*

Dr XU Zhihong?*

Mr LIU Jun®

Ms XU Ziying

Dr ZHENG Xianbing

Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward’

Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln'
Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard'
Mr LIU Erh Fei'

Dr ZUO Zhonghai

Mr WANG Wangqing

Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman'

# Executive Director

(Chairman)
(Vice-Chairman)

(Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as Non-executive Director
on 8 August 2014)

(appointed as Non-executive Director
on 30 June 2014)

(appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director on
30 June 2014)

(resigned on 10 January 2014)
(resigned on 30 April 2014)
(retired on 30 June 2014)

! Independent Non-executive Director

Directors’ interests in shares

None of the directors have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to

subscribe for shares of the Bank.

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any

other body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Bank’s business to which
the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
which set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
authorised institutions must make in respect of the income statement,
state of affairs and capital adequacy. The financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 comply fully with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates retirement schemes for its employees. Details of
the Group’s retirement schemes are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
MA Weihua
Chairman

16 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

The Bank is devoted to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the Bank, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) has put in place governance practices
with special emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and control,
sound business ethics and integrity in all business activities. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Bank is committed to the
guidelines set out in the “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors

The Board is charged with leading the Bank in a responsible and
effective manner. Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share
responsibility for the proper direction and management of the Bank. The
Board is responsible for providing direction at the top of the organization
and for the operations and financial soundness of the Bank. Its main
responsibilities include, but not limited to, the following:

* Approving and monitoring the Bank’s objectives, strategies,
business plans and key policies;

*  Ensuring the establishment of effective risk management polices;

*  Appointing and overseeing the Executives as well as ensuring their
competence;

. Setting corporate values and standards;
e Ensuring effective audit functions;

*  Ensuring prudent conduct of operations within laws and approved
policies;

*  Ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Bank’s conduct of affairs;
and

*  Responsible for the risk management and internal control of the
Group.

The Board currently comprises twelve members, three executive
directors and nine non-executive directors, of whom four are independent
non-executive directors. The individuals who make up the Board draw
on a rich and diverse background of experience from both within and
outside of the banking community. The independent non-executive
directors possess appropriate professional qualifications. The names and
brief biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 6 to 10 this
Annual Report.
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Since the Bank has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., the Board strives to improve its corporate
governance and ensure operational compliance so as to enhance
management quality. The Bank currently establishes Strategy Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee as well as Audit and Risk
Management Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Bank’s
affairs. Each of the committees has defined terms of reference setting
out its duties, powers and functions. The committees report to the Board
and, where appropriate, make recommendations on matters discussed.
The Board, in addition to its overall supervisory role, retains specific
responsibilities such as approving specific executive appointments,
approving financial accounts, recommending dividend payments,
approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer are
separate.

The Chairman, Dr MA Weihua, provides leadership for the Board. He
is responsible for ensuring that the Board works effectively and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr ZHU Qi, in conjunction with
the Management Committee, is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for running the Bank’s operation and implementing the
Bank’s business strategies.

Management Committee

The Management Committee consists of three members, all appointed
by the Board. The current members are Mr ZHU Qi, Dr XU Zhihong
and Mr LIU Jun. The Management Committee exercises the powers,
authorities and discretions of the Board relating to the management and
day-to-day running of the Bank in accordance with its terms of reference
and directions as the Board may determine from time to time. Its main
responsibilities include the following:

« To implement agreed policies and to execute business plans
approved by the Board;

*  To review and approve the policies with the authority granted by the
Board as well as make recommendations to the Board with respect
to the key policies;
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*  To assist the Board to formulate the Bank’s risk appetite and
strategies for managing various types of risk to which the Bank’s
business are exposed; and the implementation and maintenance of
the overall risk management framework across the Bank’s business;

* To ensure smooth day-to-day operations of the Bank within
applicable laws and policies approved by the Board;

+ To oversee the specific committees of the Bank, and delegate
authority and power to these committees for daily monitoring as the
Committee thinks fit from time to time;

*  To collect market information and to recommend policy and strategy
to the Board;

*  To manage the Bank’s business in a prudent manner;

*  To provide timely information to other members of the Board and
keep them apprised of the latest development of the Bank so as to
enable them to discharge their duties; and

e To carry out any other matters as the Board thinks fit from time to
time.

The Management Committee presents to the Board regularly by way
of detailed business reports on management’s business strategies and
objectives, updates on different lines of business, action plans, etc
for discussion at each Board meeting. The Committee also provides
appropriate and sufficient information to the other members of the Board
in a timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest development of
the Bank so as to enable them to discharge their duties.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee consists of five members, all appointed by the
Board. The current members are Dr MA Weihua (Chairman), Mr ZHU
Qi, Dr ZHENG Xianbing, Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln and Mr LIU Erh
Fei. The duties of the Strategy Committee include the following:

*  To establish strategic development goals, and to formulate medium
to long term development strategies of the Bank;

*+ To implement and review the strategies of the Bank as well as
strengthen the consistency and stability of the implementation of the
strategies of the Bank;
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To approve significant investment and capital expenditure plan;

To evaluate the Bank’s key partnership with external organizations;

To evaluate and approve the donations made to charitable
organizations; and

To put forward proposals and plans for important issues to be
discussed and decided by the Board.

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of five members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Dr ZHANG
Guanghua (Chairman), Ms XU Ziying, Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward,
Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln and Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard. The
Committee shall exercise such functions as shall be determined from
time to time by the Board and unless otherwise determined shall include
the following:

To oversee, examine and evaluate the execution of the Bank’s
annual business plans and the Board’s resolutions;

To make recommendations of the individuals for the appointment as
Directors and Executives to the Board;

To study the performance appraisal standards for the Directors and
Executives, and to conduct appraisals and make recommendations
annually;

To study and review the Bank’s remuneration policy and packages
for the Directors, senior management and key personnel as specified
therein;

To evaluate and approve the employment or service agreements of
the Bank’s Directors and Executives;

To evaluate and approve the Bank’s remuneration strategies, the
annual pay adjustment and benefits schemes for the staff of the

Bank; and

To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee consists of six members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Mr CHOW Kwong
Fai Edward (Chairman), Mr LI Hao, Dr ZHENG Xianbing, Mr SOO
Hung Leung Lincoln, Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard and Mr LIU Erh Fei.
They possess appropriate academic and professional qualifications or
related financial management expertise, and are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The principal duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
include the following:

*  To ensure the rationality and accuracy of the internal accounting
and financial control systems of the Bank;

*  To propose the appointment or replacement of external auditors, and
assess their independence and performance;

*  To propose the approval of the Audit Charter;

*  To approve the annual internal audit plan;

*  To evaluate the procedures and performance of internal auditors;

«  To review the significant issues raised in the internal audit reports;

e To review the significant issues raised in the management letters
from external auditors and reports from the regulatory authorities
to ensure that prompt remedial action is taken as well as all
recommendations are followed up and implemented within a
reasonable period of time;

*  To propose the approval of significant policies;

e To monitor the risk management system of the Bank, to conduct
regular assessment of the risk position of the Bank, and to propose
the implementation of the relevant policies;

*  To audit the internal control system of the Bank and to monitor
the risk management of the Bank’s exposures to credit risk, market
risk, operational risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk, legal risk,
reputation risk and liquidity risk by the Executives; and

*  To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
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Nomination of Directors

The Bank does not have a Nomination Committee. The Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee is responsible for making recommendations of
the individuals for the appointment as Directors and Executives to the
Board. The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure of agreeing
to the appointment of its members and for nominating appropriate person
for election at the annual general meeting, either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing directors.

Internal Control

The Board and Executives are responsible for establishing, maintaining
and operating an effective system of internal control. The internal
control system of the Group comprises a well-established organisational
structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee and other designated committees have
been established with the objective of assisting the Board to manage
and monitor various risks. The Board’s expectations regarding duty,
responsibility and integrity of each department are clearly spelled out
in formal policy statements, which include Code of Conduct, Internal
Control Policy Statement and Compliance Policy Statement, etc. The
Board has clearly defined the lines of authority and responsibilities
of each business and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and
balances.

The Group’s internal control system covers every business and
operational function so as to safeguard its assets against loss and
misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting records for producing
reliable financial information; to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material fraud and errors. Policies and procedures are
established to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
industry standards. To cope with the increasingly stringent requirements
from relevant regulatory authorities together with ever-changing business
environment, the Board has dedicated more resources and efforts to
further strengthen the Group’s management structure and oversight.
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The Group has had in place various risk management policies and
procedures. There are specific committees and units that are responsible
for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing the risks that the
Group faces. Risk management policies and major risk control limits are
established and approved by the Board or the Management Committee.
A more detailed discussion of the policies and procedures for managing
each of the major types of risk the Group is facing, including credit,
market, liquidity and operational risk, is included in note 2 to the
financial statements “Financial Risk Management” section.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Group’s internal audit function
plays an important role in the Group’s internal control framework. It
provides objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established
processes and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on
all business and operational functions. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee reviews the significant issues raised in the internal audit
reports. Significant issues raised in the management letters from external
auditors and reports from regulatory authorities will be brought to the
attention of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to ensure that
prompt remedial action is taken. All recommendations will be properly
followed up to ensure they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. Pursuant to a riskbased methodology, the Internal
Audit Department plans its internal audit schedules annually with audit
resources prioritised towards higher risk areas. The Internal Audit Plan is
submitted to the Management Committee for review as well as the Audit
and Risk Management Committee for approval. To preserve the audit
independence, the Board has established the Audit Charter to set out
the authorities and responsibilities of internal audit function. The Group
Chief Auditor reports directly to the Management Committee as well as
the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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Accountability and Audit

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014, the directors have applied suitable accounting policies
consistently, approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards, and made prudent judgements and estimates, and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of 4 months and 3 months respectively after the
end of the relevant period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WING LUNG BANK LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Lung
Bank Limited (“the Bank™) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set
out on pages 35 to 198, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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2014 2013
FERE ¥ T T
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
FLE A Interest income 4 7,965,212 6,047,009
FE Interest expense 5 (4,067,985)  (3,000,348)
LB WA Net interest income 3,897,227 3,046,661
RS 2 B AR 4 e A Fees and commission income 874,907 749,524
MR s 2 T AR 4 2 Fees and commission expense (143,126) (119,405)
IR 5 2 1 & i A Net fees and commission income 6 731,781 630,119
PRBEE A Insurance operating income 7 600,746 539,142
352 7 Wi Net trading gain 8 382,946 378,697
R RS Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
& securities 17,713 1,369
HoA g ZE A Other operating income 9 361,356 249,735
BERA Operating income 5,991,769 4,845,723
£ g H1 2% HE A Charge for insurance claims 7 (420,095) (417,338)
R E %2 B ZEWA  Operating income net of insurance claims 5,571,674 4,428,385
¥ Operating expenses 10 (1,792,007)  (1,609,815)
PEHUURAA Y M i >~ 2% 2 %A Operating profit before impairment charge 3,779,667 2,818,570
S RlE E 2 WE R R Impairment losses on financial assets 11 (104,986) (64,247)
e Operating profit 3,674,681 2,754,323
ES-LYE Fa/Na E Il V& Fair value gains on investment properties 28 107,376 291,270
A LA 2 S Net loss on disposal of other properties and
T 518 equipment (363) (547)
JRE AL L[] 32 ) B BS 2 35 1) Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities 38,123 34,894
JREAG Bt 7 A ) 2 1 U ) Share of net profits of an associate 1,253 1,948
o 56 i vz A1 Profit before taxation 3,821,070 3,081,888
e Income tax 14 (658,792) (488,788)
A4 B ¥ Profit for the year 3,162,278 2,593,100
BB Attributable to:
ARAT B Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,169,387 2,596,935
FEHE T 1) JRE BRORE 2 Non-controlling interests (7,109) (3,835)

TR 41 EH £ 55198 H 2 51 B /Ay b 25 Bf

Bk —HBY o

The notes on pages 41 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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HE O~ H =+—HILZ 4 For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2014 2013
¥ T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
ﬂiﬁffgﬁﬁéﬂ Profit for the year 3,162,278 2,593,100
AR A BE s 2 T WL 4R Other comprehensive income for the year
HAZRE W 40 JH 2 Items that may be reclassified subsequently
Wi £ 2IHE to the income statement:
At B SR Changes in fair value of
/\$1fﬁﬁﬂl available-for-sale securities 141,991 4,014
it ] AR R 2 I Transfer to income statement on disposal of
LN e available-for-sale securities (17,713) (1,369)
A AT ARk M B R A Y (R Transfer to income statement on impairment of
LGN EHES available-for-sale securities 45,728 25,942
JREA Bh 25 ) 2 b Mg Share of associate’s reserves 10 (28)
WA S [m] 12 i BE R 2 frb s Share of jointly controlled entities’ reserves 1,866 (149)
SETIN =RTE2 1 Exchange difference on translation of
B 2 ) A B S i financial statements of overseas branches
FE A 1) REE 5, 5 58l and subsidiaries (8,328) 25,609
ﬁﬁﬁ‘éﬁqﬁfﬁz Effect of deferred taxation on other comprehensive
PR ST JE 2 5 2 income items (12,483) 5,799
HEBEAGEHSEE Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
WamEZHHE : to the income statement:
G B2 AR Surplus on revaluation of bank premises - 16,926
F 8 A E ) 2R SR A Actuarial gains on defined benefit scheme (35,687) 111,818
HoAth 4> H I R 2 Effect of deferred taxation on other comprehensive
AR SEFL TE 2 528 income items 5,888 (18,450)
AR B At i W i Other comprehensive income for the year 121,272 170,112
A B 4 T G A AR AR Total comprehensive income for the year 3,283,550 2,763,212
SR Attributable to:
ARATHER Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,290,659 2,767,047
I 42 il 1) B SRR 25 Non-controlling interests (7,109) (3,835)

A L4 E 198 E 2 51 B /4 45 Bf

BshR 2 — W o

The notes on pages 41 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013
AR W Tou BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
& Assets
AR S MEES Cash and short-term funds 16 34,159,938 23,928,958
[A] 2 72 BA A7 T S B Placements with and loans and advances to banks 17 21,379,849 22,964,424
FEEE & Z B 5 Trading securities 18 982,500 717,762
ATAE 4 T H. Derivative financial instruments 19 1,258,160 545,572
PAATEERS AR iR Financial assets designated at fair value
4 Tl & through profit or loss 20 2,622,114 2,842,872
Al it 2 B Available-for-sale securities 21 19,159,944 20,408,029
2 2 IR 75 Held-to-maturity securities 22 5,910,494 6,943,449
A S HoAth R TE Advances and other accounts 23 157,915,112 134,803,051
L[] P ) B B HE A Interests in jointly controlled entities 26 239,738 220,103
Wt A E R £ Interest in an associate 27 4,351 5,113
ERS<CTE 3 Investment properties 28 2,635,330 2,606,870
FHE - R 55 Interests in leasehold land 29 222,705 219,517
Ho At S Ko 5 A Other properties and equipment 30 1,032,061 918,693
A [m] Ui A JE Tax recoverable 22 5,152
% 0B 3 TR Deferred tax assets 35 44,189 56,867
W Total assets 247,566,507 217,186,432
fafE Liabilities
FEZZ ¢ Deposits and balances from banks 12,228,501 14,521,077
LG ERTE T 2 AfE Trading liabilities 31 - 99,899
A4 T H Derivative financial instruments 19 1,681,457 899,615
PAAFEES AR IR Financial liabilities designated at fair value
S B through profit or loss 32 513,238 559,565
AR Deposits from customers 33 183,406,628 155,136,651
BEAT Z AR Certificates of deposit issued 15,649,605 15,916,870
AT 2 BB ETE Subordinated debt issued 34 3,039,331 4,537,798
& WA JE Current taxation 269,127 244,399
R SE B T B (S Deferred tax liabilities 35 11,821 8,707
H A BE TR A7 FE R Other accounts and accruals 36 5,560,100 5,305,500
Y=L Total liabilities 222,359,808 197,230,081
HE A3 Equity
AR Share capital 37 1,160,951 1,160,951
bt Reserves 38 21,906,988 18,616,344
5 B A AT RO RE 4 B R Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 23,067,939 19,777,295
BOMER TH Additional equity instruments 34 2,015,390 -
IEFE 11 1 e TR 2 Non-controlling interests 123,370 179,056
e 55 AR AH Total equity 25,206,699 19,956,351
HE £ I B AR AR Total equity and liabilities 247,566,507 217,186,432

RER_O—HE=ZH T+ "Hh#EFEY

M K A7 AR AT o March 2015.
35 iy 4 HwHE MA Weihua
% H R TIAE R ZHU Qi
k% AR XU Zhihong
2 B SR A A LIU Jun

A T4 EH £ 55198 E 2 51 B2 /Ay I 25 Bf

Bk z —aB Y o

Chairman
Director and Chief Executive Officer
Director and General Manager
Director and General Manager

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16

The notes on pages 41 to 198 form part of these financial statements.

37



38

Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited

AKBESRATAH RA R O —IHARAFEHR

IABAR LR

Statement of Financial Position
ZO—M4E+—=H=-+—H As at 31 December 2014

O ' —Oo0—=
2014 2013
R i T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
K Assets
Jo A7 B 4 I R Cash and short-term funds 16 33,632,611 23,545,716
[R] 2 5 WA B Bk Placements with and loans and advances to banks 17 21,143,047 22,531,695
FHEEE Rz &5 Trading securities 18 192,853 324,673
fird: 4 pt TR Derivative financial instruments 19 1,258,160 545,572
LA PEERE AR IR Financial assets designated at fair value
4 Rl through profit or loss 20 2,622,114 2,842,872
Al it Available-for-sale securities 21 18,811,850 20,128,512
FrE 3R Held-to-maturity securities 22 5,398,709 6,475,354
Bk K H A R TE Advances and other accounts 23 157,165,174 134,004,058
WA & 2 A 2 Interests in subsidiaries 25 698,603 694,843
[ B ) B A S Interests in jointly controlled entities 26 33,669 36,503
ERSAL//E Investment properties 28 2,757,427 2,723,108
T + Hh R 42 Interests in leasehold land 29 175,457 172,117
HoAth 2 K 5t Other properties and equipment 30 946,957 829,563
A ] s A Tax recoverable - 4,652
0% S 3 T Deferred tax assets 35 28,417 26,652
A Total assets 244,865,048 214,885,890
i Liabilities
[] A7 7K Deposits and balances from banks 12,228,501 14,521,077
fiitE&m TR Derivative financial instruments 19 1,681,457 899,615
PAATEERS AR R Financial liabilities designated at fair value
oA =K through profit or loss 32 513,238 559,565
B Deposits from customers 33 184,984,861 156,454,058
BT 2 ARG Certificates of deposit issued 15,649,605 15,916,870
BT BEETE Subordinated debt issued 34 3,039,331 4,537,798
W R T Current taxation 239,102 220,461
% E B I & i Deferred tax liabilities 35 9,752 6,710
HoAth R TH R PR Other accounts and accruals 36 2,782,761 2,952,307
AR Total liabilities 221,128,608 196,068,461
BE 4 Equity
il & Share capital 37 1,160,951 1,160,951
(FA Reserves 38 20,560,099 17,656,478
578 AT R #5 At Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 21,721,050 18,817,429
BHMER TH Additional equity instruments 34 2,015,390 =
Tk 25 48 % Total equity 23,736,440 18,817,429
W ts X BB Total equity and liabilities 244,865,048 214,885,890

MER_O—HE=ZH T NHHh#EFEY

M K A7 AT o March 2015.

35 iy 3 ERR MA Weihua Chairman
xR 5 R T B ZHU Qi

YA R AL XU Zhihong

2 8 T S AR A B LIU Jun

R SRATHE 29198 H Z 51 R M I 45 B

Bk —HB M o

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16

Director and Chief Executive Officer
Director and General Manager
Director and General Manager

The notes on pages 41 to 198 form part of these financial statements.



Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAH RAF —O—MFEFR

E

sl %

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEZO—WAE+TZH =+—H ILZ 4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

if
7 Rk Hiff HOMER BRI
Bank ¥R TR Reshis
A& EARME  premises Investment HEAREE  IREER Additional Non-
Share Capital revaluation revaluation Other  Retained it equity  controlling At
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total instruments interest Total
ERTE ERT #WTm  EWTx EWTx #WTx #WTx #%Tx #WTo @R Tx
HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000  HK$000
RZ0—=%—H—H At | January 2013 1,160,951 57,500 49843 237,122 1,004288 14,500,544 17,010,248 - 72,300 17,082,548
TO— RIS © Changes in equity for 2013:
TR A Net profit for the year - - - - ~ 2596935 2,596,935 = (3:835) 2,593,100
Other comprehensive income
ARAERERM A for the year - - 16,926 34209 25,609 93368 170,112 = -
Total comprehensive income
AP 2 T A for the year - - 16,926 34209 25609 2,690303 2,767,047 - (3,835) 2,763,212
AR Transfer from contingency reserve = = = = (224) 24 = = = =
Amount increase in
FEHE I R R non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 110,591 110,591
REO=ZA4+ZA=1—H  At31 December 2013 and
kZ0—M%—H—H 1 January 2014 1,160,951 57,500 66,769 271,331 1,029,673 17,191,071 19,777,295 - 179,056 19,956,351
ZO—TUAEREG AR © Changes in equity for 2014:
xadj il Net profit for the year - - - - - 3,169,387 3,169,387 - (7,109) 3,162,278
Other comprehensive income
AR M2 for the year - - - 159399 (8328  (2979) 121272 - - nm
Total comprehensive
RAE A T A income for the year - - - 159399 (8,328) 3,139,588 3,290,659 - (7,109) 3,283,550
AR Gl Transfer from contingency reserve - - - - (176) 176 - - - -
Issue of additional equity
BITROMER TR instrumens - - - - - - - 2015390 - 2015390
Amount decrease in statutory
e R surplus - - - - (15) - (15) - - (15)
Amount decrease in
JEPEIR R M 43 Bl non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 85T (48577)
RZO—MF+ZA=1—H At31 December 2014 1,160,951 57,500 66,769 430,730 1,021,154 20,330,835 23,067,939  2,015390 123370 25,206,699

A 41 EH £ 50198 H 2 51 B /Ay b 25 B

Bk —AB Y o

The notes on pages 41 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEZO—W4E+TZH =+—H L Z 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2014

—~O0O—MH —0—Z=

2014 2013
bR W TOU T
Note  HK$’000 HK$°000

BREREBZHEWA Cash generated from operations 43(a) 5,240,411 6,932,577
SO e R A3 Hong Kong profits tax paid (442,069) (274,058)
AT SMBLIA Overseas tax paid (177,159) (124,535)
B B B A\ Net cash generated from operating activities 4,621,183 6,533,984
& i B Investing activities
Wil A AT it B 2 R R K Purchase of available-for-sale securities and

Fr 2 3| e 5 held-to-maturity securities (17,213,965) (16,174,548)

FL[R] 48 I B 2 A R Loans repaid from jointly controlled entities 2,834 2,834
LI&CEX S [m] 2 ) BB Dividends received from jointly controlled

Bt A ) 2 IR entities and an associate 19,545 19,025
&%&E;EEIEW%%Z Proceeds from sale and redemption of

%&?—rﬁ?”ﬁﬂ%# available-for-sale securities and
FfM:E'fZ held-to-maturity securities 16,469,520 9,110,242
Payment for additions of other properties and

B H A 3 SR equipment (166,729) (158,524)
Hh B A 3 K Proceeds from disposal of other properties and

R TS Z K0 equipment 124 659
BEHH Z B &0 T Net cash used in investing activities (888,671)  (7,200,312)
Al i Bl Financing activities
BATRSMER TR Additional Equity Instruments 2,015,390 =
ERC BT 2 BRI Repayment of subordinated debt issued (1,500,000) -
#T’AK%J 1) % SR ARE 25 (1Y) Amount (decrease)/increase in

W) s non-controlling interests (48,577) 110,591

i B < B U\ Net cash generated from financing activities 466,813 110,591
HERFEFRREGEHAZ Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

TR (W) cash equivalents 4,199,325 (555,737)
B—H—-HE&K

ZFB4&HEE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 27,743,858 28,212,259
AN T SR S 8y 2 Effects of foreign exchange rate changes (135,254) 87,336

RT_H=1+—H3&ER
EATE Y E| Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 43(b) 31,807,929 27,743,858

BERHZBEREEHF ©  Cash flows from operating activities include:

FE WA Interest received 7,813,456 5,907,582
RS Interest paid 3,709,261 2,645,380
e B A Dividends received 26,384 23,729

R AT EH B 198 H Z sE B L6 B The notes on pages 41 to 198 form part of these financial statements.
gz — B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading (including derivative financial instruments), financial
assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss and investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
The Group adopted the following revised HKFRSs which are relevant to
its operations:

—  Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment
entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents which
qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the amended HKFRS
10. Investment entities are required to measure their subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss. The adoption of these amendments
does not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32. The adoption of these amendments does not have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. The amendments expand the
disclosures required for an impaired asset or cash generating unit
whose recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The adoption of these amendments does not have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement — Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge
accounting

The amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge
accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging
instrument meets certain criteria. The adoption of these amendments
does not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to pay
a levy imposed by a government should be recognised. The
amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
also issued certain new/revised HKFRSs which are not yet effective
for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2014 and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. The following new/revised
HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s operations:

—  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

—  Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements — Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations, which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

— HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

—  Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011), Defined benefit plans — Employee
contributions, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

HKFRS 9 may have an impact on the Group’s classification and
measurement of financial instruments.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 provide new guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a
business. They may have an impact on the Group’s interest in jointly
controlled entities.

HKFRS 15 provides a principles-based approach for revenue recognition,
and introduces the concept of recognising revenue for obligations as they
are satisfied. The standard should be applied retrospectively, with certain
practical expedients available.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions from employees or
third parties under defined benefit plans. They may have an impact on
the Group’s defined benefit obligations.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation from
the Group’s first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
Group’s financial year beginning on 1 January 2015) in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the financial statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure
of information in the financial statements.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. They include entities in which the Bank, directly
or indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors, controls
more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued
share capital.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the financial statements from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

The Group has interests in certain unconsolidated structured entities
which include (i) investment funds established and managed by the
Group to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors; and
(ii) third-party managed investment funds purchased by the Group.

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s interests in
unconsolidated structured entities is the carrying amount of the assets
held and is included in notes 18 and 21. As at 31 December 2014, no
financial support was given to the unconsolidated structured entities
(2013: Nil).
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.3 Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

A jointly controlled entity is an arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets
and any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the interests in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

1.4 Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decision. This is
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.

The Group’s interest in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the associate’s net assets and any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the interest in an associate
is stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
associate are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:

(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or
received between parties to the contract, including cash rebates
granted in relation to residential mortgage loans, that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent increase of such
net present value of impaired assets due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest income.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided
by the Group and is recognised when the corresponding service
is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the costs
of a continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income
in the accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred and is
accounted for as interest income.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.
Commission paid to dealers for acquisition of finance lease loans
or hire purchase contracts is included in the carrying value of the
assets and amortised to the income statement over the expected life
of the lease as an adjustment to interest income.

Rental income for operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised as
other operating income in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price
of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.

1.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:
loans and receivables, trading securities, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity securities, and
available-for-sale securities. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short term funds,
placement with and loans and advances to banks, trade bills and
loans and advances to customers, are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Trading securities

A financial asset is classified as trading if it is acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group does not have derivative financial instruments which

meet the criteria for hedge accounting as described in note 1.9.

Trading securities are stated at fair value, and transaction costs
taken directly to the income statement. Changes in fair value are
recognised as “Net gain/loss from trading securities” in the income

statement as they arise.

(c¢) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are
not those financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term but designated by management as such at

inception if they meet the following criteria:

— The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains

and losses on them on different bases;

— A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and this
is the basis on which information about these assets is provided

internally to the management; or

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract and the
separation of the embedded derivative(s) from the financial

instrument is not prohibited.

These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement. Changes
in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss” in the

income statement in the period in which they arise.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be
tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses.

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify a financial asset as held-to-maturity, it shall
be reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.

(e) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale securities are those intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Purchases and sales of trading securities, financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale
securities are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument. Loans are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group

about the following loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i)

interest or principal payments;

(ii1) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a

concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv)

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties; or

(vi)

assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the

group; or

— national or local economic conditions that correlate with

defaults on the assets in the group.

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes that asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial
assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. If the financial asset has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics.
Those characteristics relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor’s ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those
in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis
of current observable data on economic and credit environment to
reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove
the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example, change
in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other
factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the
group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual

loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount
of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowances for

loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The

amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

(b) Financial assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement is removed from
the other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss is

reversed through the income statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, deposits, certificates of deposit issued,
subordinated debt issued and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are
classified at inception and recognised initially at fair value.

(@)

(b)

Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit or loss
if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so designated
include certain certificates of deposit issued and certain deposits
received from customers that are embedded with derivatives. A
financial liability is typically so designated if it meets the following
criteria:

— The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases;

— A group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and this
is the basis on which information about these liabilities is
provided internally to the management; or

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract and the
separation of the embedded derivative(s) from the financial
instrument is not prohibited.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss”
in the income statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(c) Deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debt issued
and other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debt issued,
other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair
value through profit or loss, together with other financial liabilities
are carried at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. Certain derivatives embedded in other financial
instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised depending on the purpose of the derivatives.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or
liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting
is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria
are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to the income
statement over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the equity security.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the hedging reserve. The gain and loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect profit
or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity in the hedging reserve at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the
income statement.

The Group currently does not use hedge accounting.

Derivative financial instruments held for trading and those that do not
qualify for hedge accounting will be accounted for with changes in fair
value reported through the income statement.

Derivative transactions are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.10 Valuation of securities and derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the valuation date without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid prices while
financial liabilities are priced at current ask prices. For unlisted securities
and where the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group
estimates fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

1.11 Investment properties

Land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a leasehold
interest for long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and
that is not occupied by the companies in the Group, is classified as
investment property. When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
income statement.

When a property is transferred to investment property following a
change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between
the carrying amount of the property immediately prior to the transfer
and its fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the bank premises revaluation
reserve in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”.
However, a revaluation increase is recognised as income only to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense. Decreases are first set off against increases on
previous valuations of the same asset and thereafter are debited to the
income statement. Upon disposal of the property, the relevant portion of
the bank premises revaluation reserve is released and transferred from
the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.12 Other properties and equipment

(a) Premises

Premises represent those properties held for own use and are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where
the land and building elements of the leasehold properties held for
own use can be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease, the
land element is accounted for as finance lease if the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
leasee. As such, any leasehold land premiums for acquiring the land
leases, or other lease payments, are charged to the income statement
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease or where there
is impairment, the impairment is charged to the income statement.
Any buildings which are situated on such land leases are presented
as part of premises. Where the land and building elements of the
leasehold properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of
the lease, the land and building elements are treated as a finance

lease and classified as premises.

Depreciation of premises is calculated on a straight line basis to

write off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired terms of the

leases.

— Building and improvements thereto are depreciated over the

remaining estimated useful life.

(b) Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance
basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives, at

annual rates ranging from 20% to 30%.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.13 Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

1.14 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as “Other accounts” under
“Advances and other accounts” and the relevant loans are derecognised.
The repossessed collateral assets are measured at the lower of the
carrying amount and net realisable value.

1.15 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items such as
equities classified as available-for-sale securities are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.16 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing deductible
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.16 Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group or the Bank has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

1.17 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. As
a general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured
event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur.

(a) Recognition and measurement

The Group issues various classes of insurance contract including
accident and health, motor vehicle, ships, goods in transit, property
damage, employees’ compensation, general liability and pecuniary
loss. Risks under these insurance policies usually cover one year
duration.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired
risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned
premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of
commission and are net of duties levied on premiums.



Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAH RAF —O—MFEFR

1 FEFFBOR (4)
1.17 RES# (#)

(a)

B HREE (H)

AR SRR S T E A R
He SO AR R o MO AR R A
FHOREHERBRZHENER
HRME - ARMEZ AR SEH R
BT - ZAEMEUC BWALEE
Z AR 2 A B DA SR R T A
CE#AEHRERZRME -

(b) A7 E R

(©)

REREEH > AEEYEET M
TR AE R AL - AR AR B TS 2 Y
RE ST LUIE AT PR B 5 %) BT (BR R 2R
TE WSO A B ) o AR HEAT L B
R BRI RGBSR E
R AT BB o DL RS E
7% S 51 ) R B T A B I
i 19 fo FE TR P AOEAT « AEMARLZ
SIS N & R =K
FE BB A 2 AR R AR B YE A
& CREIME B e

1A HRIREAT

R P BLOR & 40 548 7 48 [ B 4
WA N2 &4 > TS H P
IR BERIR B A Z 8K
A E T B o A B — B R
NFTT 2 PRBRa % (1] 9 7 45 AR B )
TEEERBEEHN -

AEE ARG A 2GR
FEERERE - ZEEOFEER
RANZ & > U LHERRER
P 7 2 Y 4 S0 B A LA R R A
it o BEBRANZEfF e g
ARG EH - BUtEE
AR #% R AR5 #) 2 sk B -
HARAABERELHRREHZE
AR ER B 2SI 7 2 SRS 51 2 Sty o

A 4R W] g AT A 1B AR B 2
{6 o WA ZBLAE R 78 W] P B R
EE > AEEEEIEARRER
F1 J% T (L 2 JEL T g [ < > S0 Bk
EIRRI AU LR o

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.17 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(a) Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the income
statement as incurred. They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up to
the end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been
reported to the Group. Liabilities for unpaid claims are separately
analysed by class of business. They are estimated using the input
of assessments for individual cases reported to the Group and

statistical techniques for the claims incurred but not reported.

(b) Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities net of
related deferred acquisition costs assets. In performing these tests,
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims
handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the income statement and by subsequently
establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy

tests (the unexpired risk provision).

(c¢) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which
the Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts
issued by the Group and that meet the classification requirements
for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held.
Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under which the
contract holder is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included

with insurance contracts.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets
consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and
benefits as arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured
insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums
payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense

when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an
annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance
asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that

impairment loss in the income statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.18 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligation as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

1.19 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognised as deferred income in the financial statements on
the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with note 1.18 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are recognised in
the income statement.

1.20 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term leave entitlements and long-term
staff retirement benefits as follows:

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
recognised when the absences occur.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) BIUIKHEF (b) Retirement benefits
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The Group operates six staff retirement schemes. The assets of
these schemes are all held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to schemes with defined contribution
arrangements and the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) schemes
are expensed as incurred.

Annual contributions to the retirement benefit schemes with defined
benefit arrangements are determined based on periodic valuations
of the assets and liabilities of such schemes by qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost
of providing retirement benefits is charged to the income statement
so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of employees
in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries. The defined
benefit obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of government securities
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit schemes are
recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings.

1.21 BEMA 1.21 Operating leases
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Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term.
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Where the Group or the Bank is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out mainly include properties and equipment and are depreciated
in accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies except where the
asset is classified as investment property. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.22 Hire purchase contracts and finance leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing
the net investment in the lease is included in the statement of financial
position as “Advances and other accounts”. The net investment
represents the total rentals receivable under hire purchase contracts and
finance leases less unearned finance income. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1.7. Finance income implicit in the rental receivable is credited to the
income statement over the lease period or hire period so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

1.23 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
Information provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance
of operating segments is measured in accordance with HKFRSs.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

1.24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity within three months from the
date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks, treasury bills
and certificates of deposit.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.25 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related party is a person
or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii1) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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2 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group recognises that
taking risk is core to its financial business and the operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of the inherent risk of the
operations. The most important risks are credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by
the Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Management
Committee”). The Internal Audit Department also performs regular audits
to ensure compliance with policies and procedures.

2.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that an
obligor (including guarantor) or a counterparty will cause a financial
loss for the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit
exposures arise principally from loans and advances, debt securities,
derivative financial instruments, treasury bills, and other on-balance
sheet exposures to counterparties in the Group’s asset portfolio. There is
also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan
commitments. Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a
particular industry segment, could result in losses that are different from
those provided for at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has established credit policies that govern credit extension
criteria, credit approval, review and monitoring processes, the internal
credit rating system and impairment assessment processes. The
Group’s credit risk management and control are centralised in a credit
management department which reports to the Credit Committee and
Management Committee regularly.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(a) Credit risk measurement

(i) Loans and advances

In assessing credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks
and other counterparties, effective systems are adopted for measurement
and monitoring of the credit risk as part of the credit assessment process.
The Group’s credit grading system, which in general, takes into account
the underlying credit-worthiness of the counterparties, including the
financial strengths of the guarantors (as the case may be), collateral
pledged and the risk of specific transactions, allows differentiation and
management of credit risk for asset portfolios of respective business
units.

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities, external ratings from recognised external credit
assessment institutions are used for assessing and managing credit
risk exposures. The investments in these securities allow the Group to
achieve an appropriate level of returns commensurate with the risks and
to maintain a readily available source of funding at the same time.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever
they are identified, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups,
and to industries and countries.

To avoid concentration risk, credit exposures to individual customers,
counterparties and industry sectors are carefully managed and
monitored by the use of limits. All credit risk limits are approved by the
Management Committee. The Management Committee is also responsible
for the review and approval of the largest credit exposures and portfolio
management of risk concentrations. Approval authorities are delegated
to the Group’s Credit Committee and other lending officers. Actual
credit exposures, including on- and off-balance sheet exposures, limits
and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by the Credit
Management Department by keeping a central liability record for each
group of related counterparties and are subject to checks by the internal
audit function.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted
by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily
delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign
exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Some specific control and risk mitigation measures are outlined below:

(1) Collateral

The Group seeks to obtain collateral to mitigate credit risk to an
acceptable level. All credit decisions, whether or not secured by
collateral, are based on counterparties’ repayment capacity. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal types of collateral in
credit risk mitigation include:

—  Mortgages over residential properties and other properties;

—  Charges over business assets such as cash deposits, premises,
machineries, inventory and accounts receivable; and

— Charges over financial instruments such as equities and debt
securities.

The Group has established policies to govern the determination of
eligibility of assets taken as collateral for credit risk mitigation. In order
for an asset to be considered as effective risk mitigation, the market
value of the asset should be readily determinable or can be reasonably
established. The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset. In addition, the Group is able
to secure control over the asset if necessary. The collateral is revalued
periodically ranging from daily to annually, depending on the type of
collateral. As for those past due exposures, the main types of collateral
held are cash deposits and properties.

(i1) Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into
master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes
a significant volume of transactions. Master netting arrangements do not
generally result in an offset of the assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis.
However, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced
by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default
occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a
net basis.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(iii) Derivatives

The principal derivatives used by the Group are interest and foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have been entered
into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other trading
positions. The Management Committee places trading limits on the level
of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight and intra-day
market positions. With the exception of specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated with these
derivatives are normally offset by entering into counterbalancing
positions, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions. Given the purpose for entering
into such derivative transaction, collateral or other security is not usually
obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the
Group requires margin deposits from counterparties.

Under the terms of the Group’s current collateral obligations under
derivative contracts, it is estimated the Group would not be required to
post additional collateral in the event of one or two notch downgrade in
the Group’s credit rating based on the positions as at 31 December 2014
(2013: nil).

(iv) Credit related commitments

The Group has issued credit related commitments including guarantees
and letters of credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is
to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. These
instruments represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties. These instruments carry similar level of the same credit risk as
loans.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorised
facility limits in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the
total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(c) Impairment allowance policies

The Group undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring of its
credit portfolios, and requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above preset thresholds at least annually or more regularly when
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances are recognised
for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period
based on objective evidence of impairment as described in note 1.7. The
Group’s internal credit rating system assists management to determine
whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses commitment of
collateral held and the anticipated cash flows for that individual account
adjusted at the relevant discount rates.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below preset
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been
individually identified, using available data on historical loss experience,
and economic conditions, statistical analysis and supplemented by
experienced judgment.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(d) B IR AL i SR 7 B 2 iy

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

Z R E B R credit enhancements
A4 .
The Group The Bank
—O0O—I —O0—= —O—| —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
EW T BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MIRE % Short term funds 33,473,703 22,976,144 32,946,376 22,592,902
] 2 22 HA A7 il & Placements with and loans and
=3 advances to banks 21,379,849 22,964,424 21,143,047 22,531,695
FEE B %2 % Trading securities 192,853 324,673 192,853 324,673
A A T H Derivative financial instruments 1,258,160 545,572 1,258,160 545,572
LA EEREA Financial assets designated
Bz at fair value through
SR E profit or loss 2,622,114 2,842,872 2,622,114 2,842,872
ay ik B 2 B Available-for-sale securities 18,216,538 19,534,645 18,216,538 19,534,645
Fr 2 2| WRE 25 Held-to-maturity securities 5,910,494 6,943,449 5,398,709 6,475,354
AR S Fo A IR TE Advances and other accounts 157,915,112 134,803,051 157,165,174 134,004,058
] 2 i Loan to jointly controlled
R entities 8,669 11,503 8,669 11,503
{5 B YE Credit commitments 31,230,551 33,004,914 31,297,196 33,071,559
272,208,043 243,951,247 270,248,836 241,934,833
(e) K/ 50 (e) Gross loans and advances to customers
() ZHFERAHEERER (i) Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality
A 4 N
The Group The Bank
—O0—I —O0—= —~O0—M —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT W T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ES LY E TR Neither past due nor impaired 126,165,653 113,095,548 126,631,992 113,182,187
70 1 4 Y (L Past due but not impaired 779,898 702,374 779,898 702,108
2 (E Impaired 77,401 100,969 77,163 70,688
127,022,952 113,898,891 127,489,053 113,954,983
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2 b b B (#)

2.1 fa & mEBE (4)

(e) /7 Bk #AE (%)

(i) 7% 7 HA S ek (B 2 % P B Sk A AR

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor

impaired
A H The Group
oAt
LE %0 Others
Real estate 3k fid A &t
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T BT #W% T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BO— M4 At 31 December 2014
+=g=+—H
2 il — Grade 1 20,119,393 98,213,538 7,137,761 125,470,692
R — Grade 2 39,127 645,303 10,531 694,961
A= Grade 3 - - _ _
20,158,520 98,858,841 7,148,292 126,165,653
ENF) The Bank
Hofth
LE i Others
Real estate 3k i A L
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
BT #W T BT BT U
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
RO 4 At 31 December 2014
FoA=
SR — Grade 1 20,137,427 98,666,233 7,133,371 125,937,031
Al — Grade 2 39,127 645,303 10,531 694,961
SR = Grade 3 - - - _
20,176,554 99,311,536 7,143,902 126,631,992
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor

(#%) impaired (Continued)
A H The Group
HoAtb
E S QUIeE
Real estate 12 (PN Gt
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T T T W T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BO— =4 At 31 December 2013
+=ZH=+—H
SR — Grade 1 18,376,630 89,687,427 4,294,470 112,358,527
R — Grade 2 68,381 624,162 9,685 702,228
A= Grade 3 19,323 15,470 - 34,793
18,464,334 90,327,059 4,304,155 113,095,548
ENF) The Bank
HoAtb
ES Others
Real estate 2 (5PN Gt
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
BT T T T BT T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=ZH=+—H
SR — Grade 1 18,395,273 89,761,400 4,288,493 112,445,166
R — Grade 2 68,381 624,162 9,685 702,228
SR = Grade 3 19,323 15,470 - 34,793
18,482,977 90,401,032 4,298,178 113,182,187
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2 Smh R b P (%)
2.1 fa & mEBE (4)
(e) & BB ()

(i) A f ) B S (H < & 58 K A A

(%)

BN LA AR o M 2 B

Bl — 5 [ ) > ACRMEHNRER I
%o Ae LAE e -

Bl — 7 TR Bt | > RN
VR > FT BB RS AR SR O AR o

B =5 TR ARBRNKE
HH R A T AR W RE A S HLAER EKRE T 5
AN ATl A ST B RE Y A i
IE] o]

QR AT A o % AR R
e BRI - R — 5 5 B Bk B
HE 18 o BERZ 5 S BSIE R [ RIER
e | 2 8RR o (H R AE BRI R B R B
{E BT B4R S AR AR A o

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor
impaired (Continued)

The following definitions have been adopted for the purpose of the above
analysis:

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special monitoring” represents loans with which borrowers are
experiencing difficulties and which may threaten the Group’s position.

Grade 3 “substandard” represents loans in which borrowers are
displaying a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment; or
collection in full is improbable without realisation of available collateral.

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment
loss where the loans are fully collateralised. While such loans are of
“substandard” grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have
been included in the above table.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(iii) Gross loans and advances to customers which were past due but not

impaired
A H The Group
H iy
LE %0 Others
Real estate 3 DN ARt
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
W T W T W T Tt
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
® = O— 4 At 31 December 2014
+=A=+—8H
EX(HPEE 1Y Three months or less 458,321 175,951 112,058 746,330
—fHALE Six months or less but
ZEMEH over three months 23,034 - 2,928 25,962
ME AU E Over six months 7,606 - - 7,606
488,961 175,951 114,986 779,898
N The Bank
3L fily
LE i Others
Real estate 3 (DN ARt
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
BT T W T T oo
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
= O— M4 At 31 December 2014
+oA=t
—f\H A Three months or less 458,321 175,951 112,058 746,330
—fEA U E Six months or less but
275 H over three months 23,034 - 2,928 25,962
ME A A B Over six months 7,606 - - 7,606
488,961 175,951 114,986 779,898
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 {5 &ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk #AE (%) (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(iii) %8 S (E 2 & P SR AR (A8 (iii) Gross loans and advances to customers which were past due but not
impaired (Continued)

A H The Group
HAth
E SIS0 Others
Real estate 13 PN &5F
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T s o BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W _O—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=p=+—H
= H 8L Three months or less 412,527 200,083 70,171 682,781
—fALE Six months or less but
EVaY (i DE| over three months 12,967 868 — 13,835
7MEH A B Over six months 5,428 330 - 5,758
430,922 201,281 70,171 702,374
N} The Bank
HoAth
ES Others
Real estate 12 PN =0
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
ek T e o T T oT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
RO —=4 At 31 December 2013
+—-HA=+—H
—f\H A Three months or less 412,527 199,854 70,134 682,515
—fAALL L Six months or less but
275 H over three months 12,967 868 = 13,835
ME A A E Over six months 5,428 330 = 5,758

430,922 201,052 70,134 702,108
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(iv) 17l B Wi 2 % 5 B sk s
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JRE WA - K88 A4 1R IR A 7R

B 2 FBLE TR > %18 3 T 3 6K
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(iv) Gross loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The gross amount of impaired loans, which represents those individual
advances where there is objective evidence of impairment resulting
from loss events occurring after the initial recognition of the advances
and where these loss events have an impact on the estimated future cash

/(I N flows of the advances, is analysed as follows:
i L The Group
oAt
LE i Others
Real estate M3 i A fit
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T BT #W% T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—O—Y4f 2014 33,293 41,611 2,497 77,401
—O—=4F 2013 36,505 61,797 2,667 100,969
ENF) The Bank
Hofth
LE i Others
Real estate 3 i A fit
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
W T #W T BT BT U
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—O—Y4F 2014 33,293 41,373 2,497 77,163
—O—=4F 2013 36,505 31,516 2,667 70,688
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 fE &b (4) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk #AE (%) (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(iv) TR A2 % F B () (iv) Gross loans and advances to customers individually impaired
(Continued)
A4 AAF
The Group The Bank
—O0O—MH —0—= —O—I —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

T BT il wHT o
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

R RERSE Impaired loans 77,401 100,969 77,163 70,688
IR F B AR Percentage of total advances

AT to customers 0.06% 0.09% 0.06% 0.06%
¥ bl SRR Individual impairment

AR A A A allowances made in respect

(FEF¥23(a)) of such advances (note 23(a)) 51,475 57,211 51,237 42,929

Total value of collateral taken

FEA 2 into account in respect of
WIHERC EE the assessment of individual
ZARHH 2 A impairment allowances 36,593 42,901 36,593 42,901

AR A AR M 5 R A B K Z S The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into

A EAE - account the value of collateral in respect of such advances.
(v) FERER (v) Renegotiated loans
A B B A AT
The Group and the Bank
—~O0—M —0—=
2014 2013

T wT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

40 oA R T KT AT B Renegotiated loans that would otherwise
B3 A sX 2 (B 2 T R K be past due or impaired 1,519 18,757
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

GYGES-¢ 4 3-¢-63 (f) Gross balance with banks by credit quality
A4 N
The Group The Bank

—~Oo—iK —0o—= —O0—N —0—=

2014 2013 2014 2013

EW T BT T W T BT

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EES= v ¢k Gross balance with banks
— oA % ] Ko 48 ki (L — Neither past due nor

(B A—) impaired (Grade 1) 54,853,552 45,940,568 54,089,423 45,124,597

Bl — 5 [ ) > AURAE N BER 1
%o AeLAE e -

REZOo—METZA=Z+t—H  FEE
AR I s S BEER (ZO
—=4F ) -

(g) Wl &

T2 AT I3 A % I A [ 98 R 2 KA A A
T

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

At 31 December 2014, there were no overdue or impaired balances with
banks (2013: Nil).
(g) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security, as follows:

AR H R AT
The Group and The Bank
—O—I —O0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000
(it ES Residential properties 25,186 5,392
ENEY/ES Commercial and industrial properties - 2,102
25,186 7,494

W _Oo—ME+_H=+—H > AREMH
B AR 47 2 0 8] E 4 s #6°3,697,000 70
(CO—=4F : #5#5,392,0007T) °

W lml W) SE e AE AT AT I DL T S A
JIr WK VL LA AR 5 45 K

At 31 December 2014, the repossessed assets of the Group and the Bank
amounted to HK$3,697,000 (2013: HK$5,392,000).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 BB () 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) 17 (h) Debt securities

(i) A M I (2 35 05 B B %+ (i) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor impaired

AL
The Group
—~Oo—K —0o0—=
2014 2013
#WTou BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000

Y NF)
The Bank
—0—Iy —0—=
2014 2013
il ik o TH
HK$°000 HKS$’000

{E#s#E 4 B EE%+  Debt securities and treasury bills
— R M MY {H  — Neither past due nor impaired 26,941,999 29,645,639

26,430,214 29,177,544

AZO—M4E+"H=+—H > A4H There were no impaired available-for-sale debt securities of the Group
R AT 4 B 2 vl i 8 &5 and the Bank as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$19,927,000). No
(O — =4F : #1%19,927,0007C) ©  collateral was held by the Group and the Bank in respect of the impaired
AL LARTTRA 2 B E 2 BB # S debt securities and full impairment provision has been provided against

S SEFEH i O AF H A A o the gross amount.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills by credit quality

The tables below present an analysis of debt securities and treasury bills
BT AT M 78 77 B % 2 {5 & by rating agency designation based on the external credit assessment

JEB institutions’ ratings that the Group has used in relation to credit risk
exposures:
A H The Group
B ) 73 155 w8 27
Treasury Debt A ut
bills securities Total
BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
m=O— M4 At 31 December 2014
+=A=+—H
AA-ZEAAA AA- to AAA 3,986,939 12,644,958 16,631,897
A-FEA+ A- to A+ - 4,966,517 4,966,517
BBB-ZBBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 3,208,248 3,208,248
KA BBB- Lower than BBB- - 130,534 130,534
ST A Unrated - 2,004,803 2,004,803
3,986,939 22,955,060 26,941,999
HBTAL - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— R B K AP R AT central banks 3,986,939 1,397,130 5,384,069
— SRAT B A 4 Rl A — banks and other financial institutions - 15,360,146 15,360,146
— % — corporate entities - 6,197,784 6,197,784
3,986,939 22,955,060 26,941,999
Hoarsh - of which classified by:
—FEHE B2 &S — trading securities - 192,853 192,853
— DIAPEMEREA — financial assets designated at fair
5 IR 2 4 Rl A = value through profit or loss - 2,622,114 2,622,114
— Ak R — available-for-sale securities - 18,216,538 18,216,538
— R R ES — held-to-maturity securities 3,986,939 1,923,555 5,910,494
3,986,939 22,955,060 26,941,999
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2 Smh R b P (%)
2.1 fa & mEBE (4)

(h) (EEEEH (4)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

(i) EH 5 M EER 2 FEEER (H) (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills by credit quality (Continued)
Y NF) The Bank
B ) 73 155 o8 27
Treasury Debt ARl
bills securities Total
BT BT BT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RO 4 At 31 December 2014
+=A=+—H
AA-ZEAAA AA-to AAA 3,986,939 12,644,958 16,631,897
A-EA+ A- to A+ - 4,864,206 4,864,206
BBB-ZBBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 3,087,824 3,087,824
KA BBB- Lower than BBB- - 23,706 23,706
A Unrated - 1,822,581 1,822,581
3,986,939 22,443,275 26,430,214
HBIT G - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— R B K A R AT central banks 3,986,939 1,397,130 5,384,069
— PRAT K HoAth 4 AR AR — banks and other financial institutions - 15,360,146 15,360,146
= = — corporate entities - 5,685,999 5,685,999
3,986,939 22,443,275 26,430,214
Hoamh - of which classified by:
—FEEBEMA®BZ &5 — trading securities - 192,853 192,853
— DA PEEES — financial assets designated at fair
Bk GREE value through profit or loss - 2,622,114 2,622,114
— A fit i 2 — available-for-sale securities - 18,216,538 18,216,538
— & B R — held-to-maturity securities 3,986,939 1,411,770 5,398,709
3,986,939 22,443,275 26,430,214
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

BE (8 (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills by credit quality (Continued)

A H The Group
Treasury Debt e
bills securities Total
wHT T T T T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
MN_O—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=A=+—8H
AA-ZEAAA AA-to AAA 5,040,608 7,177,594 12,218,202
A-EA+ A- to A+ — 10,385,917 10,385,917
BBB-ZBBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 2,620,063 2,620,063
i A BBB- Lower than BBB- = 171,383 171,383
ST A] Unrated = 4,250,074 4,250,074
5,040,608 24,605,031 29,645,639
HBIT AR - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— R YR N A R AT central banks 5,040,608 718,850 5,759,458
— PRAT S HoAth 4 AR AR — banks and other financial institutions - 17,823,805 17,823,805
— {2 — corporate entities - 6,062,376 6,062,376
5,040,608 24,605,031 29,645,639
Hamh - of which classified by:
—FEEHE B2 &S — trading securities 99,998 224,675 324,673
— DA PEEES — financial assets designated at fair
IR 2 4 Rl A = value through profit or loss = 2,842,872 2,842,872
— At Y B — available-for-sale securities — 19,534,645 19,534,645
— B 3| 5 — held-to-maturity securities 4,940,610 2,002,839 6,943,449
5,040,608 24,605,031 29,645,639
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2.1 fa & mEBE (4)

(h) (EEEEH (4)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Debt securities (Continued)

(i) EH 5 M EER 2 FEEER (H) (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills by credit quality (Continued)
Y NF) The Bank
Treasury Debt e
bills securities Total
wHT T T T W
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
MN_O—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=A=+—H
AA-ZEAAA AA-to AAA 5,040,608 7,177,594 12,218,202
A-EA+ A- to A+ — 10,314,389 10,314,389
BBB-ZBBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 2,493,567 2,493,567
{KX A BBB- Lower than BBB- = 23,877 23,877
ST A Unrated - 4,127,509 4,127,509
5,040,608 24,136,936 29,177,544
HBITAL - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— R YR N A R AT central banks 5,040,608 718,850 5,759,458
— PRAT S HoAth 4 AR AR — banks and other financial institutions - 17,823,805 17,823,805
— {2 — corporate entities - 5,594,281 5,594,281
5,040,608 24,136,936 29,177,544
Hormh of which classified by:
—FEEHE B2 &S — trading securities 99,998 224,675 324,673
— DA PEEES — financial assets designated at fair
IR 2 4 Rl A = value through profit or loss = 2,842,872 2,842,872
— At Y B — available-for-sale securities — 19,534,645 19,534,645
— B 3| 5 — held-to-maturity securities 4,940,610 1,534,744 6,475,354
5,040,608 24,136,936 29,177,544
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities

and off-balance

Vi sheet items
A H The Group
MH =R fa BR ¥
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
?=O—PY4E At 31 December 2014
+=ZH=1+—H
T Hong Kong 234,478,647 213,331,831 27,384,882
£ United States of America 3,251,462 2,763,017 633,120
e R I E People’s Republic of China 50,741,903 47,453,838 919,224
! Macau 15,755,842 15,493,628 2,293,325
B 2 B 5 Cayman Islands 21,159 - -
53T B AH HE S Inter-segment elimination (56,682,506) (56,682,506) -
247,566,507 222,359,808 31,230,551
YN iy The Bank
A MAE i BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
Tt W T oo W T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
= O— M4 At 31 December 2014
+—-H=+—H
e Hong Kong 231,794,972 212,103,035 27,451,527
EC United States of America 3,237,417 2,760,613 633,120
AREE N RS L [ People’s Republic of China 50,738,164 47,453,838 919,224
! Macau 15,755,842 15,493,628 2,293,325
B B Cayman Islands 21,159 - -
43 B A A Inter-segment elimination (56,682,506) (56,682,506) -
244,865,048 221,128,608 31,297,196
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

sheet items (Continued)

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance

A H The Group
HMERE HmEfE 5 BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
BT T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R_O—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=-HA=+—H
i Hong Kong 196,801,786 180,234,094 28,335,564
£ United States of America 2,894,822 2,505,044 379,258
e R I E People’s Republic of China 44,928,303 42,116,561 2,026,707
Y Macau 11,818,155 11,652,858 2,263,385
FEHE Cayman Islands 21,842 - -
53 FR AR HE 8 Inter-segment elimination (39,278,476)  (39,278,476) -
217,186,432 197,230,081 33,004,914
. The Bank
HERE Y= 5 BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R_O—=4& At 31 December 2013
+=A=+—Hn
s Hong Kong 194,519,349 179,062,639 28,402,209
EC United States of America 2,880,768 2,502,641 379,258
FrEE A R IR [E People’s Republic of China 44,923,744 42,128,291 2,026,707
A Macau 11,818,155 11,652,858 2,263,385
BHE B Cayman Islands 21,842 = =
53 L AH K S Inter-segment elimination (39,277,968)  (39,277,968) -
214,885,890 196,068,461 33,071,559
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet items (Continued)

Geographical sector risk concentrations within the

portfolio are as follows:

customer loan

A H The Group
—~—0—MH —0—I —0—= =0==
2014 2014 2013 2013
T T
HK$°000 % HKS$’000 %
T Hong Kong 102,292,621 80.6 89,655,396 78.7
£ United States of America 3,082,639 2.4 2,746,831 2.4
HREE RS AD People’s Republic of China 15,626,637 12.3 16,979,856 14.9
P Macau 6,021,055 4.7 4,516,808 4.0
127,022,952 100.0 113,898,891 100.0
YN iy The Bank
—O0—Iy —O—mM =0—== =0==
2014 2014 2013 2013
W T ik T
HK$°000 % HKS$’000 %
ik Hong Kong 102,740,688 80.6 89,692,844 78.7
e United States of America 3,100,673 2.4 2,765,475 2.4
FREE N RS R People’s Republic of China 15,626,637 12.3 16,979,856 14.9
R Macau 6,021,055 4.7 4,516,808 4.0
127,489,053 100.0 113,954,983 100.0
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s market risk primarily
arises from its positions in foreign exchange, securities and derivatives
in its trading and banking books.

(a) Market risk measurement

The Group’s market risk exposures in different activities are managed
by way of limits established by the Management Committee. Exposures
are measured and monitored on the basis of contractual or notional
amount and outstanding balances. Limits are set by portfolio, product
and risk type, using a combination of risk measurement techniques,
including position limits, sensitivity limits, VaR limits as well as stop
loss limits. All market risk trading positions are monitored and managed
by the Treasury Department. Independent monitoring, checking, daily
mark-to-market valuation and trade confirmation are undertaken by
departments independent of the Treasury Department. Regular checking
and reviews are also conducted by the Group’s internal audit function
to ensure compliance with risk limits. All exceptions are reviewed and
approved by the appropriate level of management and the Management
Committee. Actual positions are monitored by the Risk Management
Committee.

The Group also applies a wide range of stress testing to assess the
financial impact of more extreme events on the market risk exposure
of the Group. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the Risk
Management Committee.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

(1) Currency risk

The Group’s currency risk positions mainly arise from foreign exchange
dealing, commercial banking operations and structural foreign currency
exposures.

At 31 December 2014, if HKD had weakened/strengthened within
the pegged range of 0.64% (2013: 0.64%) against USD with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation
for the year would have been HK$15,658,000 (2013: HK$17,675,000)
and HK$8,868,000 (2013: HK$10,090,000) higher/lower respectively.
The impact on the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation in 2014
were lower than in 2013 due to the decrease of net USD positions.

If HKD had weakened/strengthened 1% (2013: 1%) against other
currencies except USD with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation for the year would have
been HK$22,972,000 (2013: HK$23,736,000) and HK$19,305,000 (2013:
HK$21,216,000) higher/lower respectively. The impact on the Group’s
and the Bank’s profit after taxation in 2014 were lower than in 2013 due
to the decrease of net foreign currencies (exclude USD) positions.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(i1) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the timing differences
in the repricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
positions. Any changes in interest rates would affect the value of those
financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The Group enters into
interest rate swaps to mitigate the interest rate risk associated with the
fixed-rate financial assets and financial liabilities.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis
points (2013: 100 basis points) higher with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation for the year
would have been HK$3,835,000 (2013: HK$14,826,000) higher, mainly
as a result of revaluation of trading securities, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The
Group’s and the Bank’s other comprehensive income would have been
HK$123,924,000 (2013: HK$44,557,000) lower due to the revaluation of
those available-for-sale securities.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis
points (2013: 100 basis points) lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation for the year
would have been HK$8,660,000 (2013: HK$18,152,000) lower, mainly
as a result of revaluation of trading securities, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The
Group’s and the Bank’s other comprehensive income would have been
HK$121,521,000 (2013: HK$33,256,000) higher due to the revaluation
of those available-for-sale securities.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(iii) Equity risk

The Group’s equity risk position mainly arises from the holdings of
certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The majority of this
position is held for long term investment purposes.

At 31 December 2014, if the Global equity index at that date had been
10% (2013:10%) lower/higher with all other variables held constant
and all the equity instruments had moved according to their historical
correlation with the index, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year
would have been HK$66,000 (2013: HK$24,513,000) lower/higher, and
the Group’s and the Bank’s other comprehensive income would have
been HK$55,009,000 (2013: HKS$ 46,657,000) and HK$ 24,925,000
(2013: HK$21,426,000) lower/higher respectively. The lower impact
on the Group’s profit after tax but higher impact on the Group’s and
the Bank’s other comprehensive income in 2014 compared with 2013
was mainly attributable to a decrease in holdings of the Group’s trading
portfolios but an increase in the Group’s and the Bank’s holdings of
available-for-sale portfolios respectively.

(iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue

The average daily revenue in 2014 earned from market risk-related
activities by the Bank and certain subsidiaries, including trading-related
net interest income and other revenue was HK$1,522,000 (2013:
HK$1,341,000). The standard deviation of this daily revenue was
HK$2,249,000 (2013: HK$1,975,000).
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(iv) TR B A B H A 15 B (&) (iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue (Continued)
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(¢) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Group’s exposures mainly comprise foreign exchange dealing
by the Treasury Department and currency exposures originated by its
commercial banking businesses.

The Management Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. All
exposures are centrally managed by the Treasury Department and
independently monitored by a separate department on a daily basis.

Foreign currency exposures arising from customer transactions,
including currency options embedded in certain customer deposits, are
normally offset against other customer transactions or transactions with
the market. Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar
assets is hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s and the
Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December.
Included in the tables are the Group’s and the Bank’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency. The off-balance
sheet gap represents the net notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to manage
the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure to currency movements.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

A H The Group
#L £t T8 AR HAl it
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
EhTr  wWTE  wkTx #WTx  #WTx  #WTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZO—N4 At 31 December 2014
+ZH=+—H
203 Assets
JEAES & R E 4 Cash and short-term funds 10,405,074 12,014,096 64,314 10,814,159 862,295 34,159,938
78 B R Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 542,246 3,888,993 - 16,915,654 32,956 21,379,849
BERE R % Trading securities 2,652 979,836 - 12 - 982,500
MiE4mIE Derivative financial instruments 1,258,160 - - - - 1,258,160
DIATE(AE ARSI Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss - 2,622,114 - - - 2,622,114
k& 2 H Available-for-sale securities 3,182,900 4,114,459 3,365,088 8,217,085 280,412 19,159,944
SEEILIE o Held-to-maturity securities 4,288,887 701,449 - 920,158 - 5910494
B H A BRIR Advances and other accounts 90,423,077 30,523,707 1,535,684 33,826,632 1,606,012 157,915,112
HAE Other assets 4,094,974 56,598 - 26,359 465 4,178,396
Mg Total assets 114,197,970 54,901,252 4,965,086 70,720,059 2,782,140 247,566,507
fifk Liabilities
EEZEZo Deposits and balances from banks 903,680 6,898,941 - 4,255,017 170,863 12,228,501
ME4MIE Derivative financial instruments 1,681,457 - - - - 1,681,457
DATEERARER  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARE fair value through profit or loss 513,238 - - - - 513,238
EFTEH Deposits from customers 90,308,803 38,260,647 8,055,407 40,762,817 6,018,954 183,406,628
HIPRS ¢ Certificates of deposit issued 3,994,658 3,481,908 - 8,173,039 - 15,649,605
B2 BEEE Subordinated debt issued 1,500,000 1,539,331 - - - 303
Hiv & Other liabilities 3,964,998 499,773 52,132 1,178,826 145,319 5,841,048
ek Total liabilities 102,866,834 50,680,600 8,107,539 54,369,699 6,335,136 222,359,808
BEAMRNFAEHE  Net on-balance sheet position 11,331,136 4,220,652 (3,142,453) 16,350,360  (3,552,996) 25,206,699
HEABRINERE Off-balance sheet net notional
e position 7,784,701 (1,290,577) 3,186,557  (13,692,453) 3,602,146 (409,626)
5 BEARHf Credit commitments 27,787,420 2,339,919 76,247 809,007 217,958 31,230,551
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

(78)
. The Bank
T 1 Wt AR HAlh it
HKD Usbh AUD RMB Others Total
BT WM WwRTx  BWTx B%Tx wETx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
RZO—My4 At 31 December 2014
+=H=+—H
B Assets
EEH S RENES Cash and short-term funds 10,330,136 11,706,185 64,314 10,669,681 862,295 33,632,611
[F 38 WA LR Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 396,068 3,850,117 - 16,863,906 32,956 21,143,047
BERE R k% Trading securities 1,587 191,254 - 12 - 192,853
MiE4mIE Derivative financial instruments 1,258,160 - - - - 1,258,160
DIATE(AE AR Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss - 2,622,114 - - - 2,622,114
T fik i & 7 Available-for-sale securities 2,871,944 4,083,145 3,365,088 8,217,085 274,588 18,811,850
FFREHES Held-to-maturity securities 4,288,887 401,909 - 707,913 - 5398709
BRI AR Advances and other accounts 89,295,219 30,908,657 1,535,684 33,819,602 1,606,012 157,165,174
Hopth B e Other assets 4,184,513 429,193 - 26,359 465 4,640,530
HgE Total assets 112,626,514 54,192,574 4965086 70304558 2,776,316 244,865,048
ffi Liabilities
EEZEZo Deposits and balances from banks 903,680 6,898,941 - 4,255,017 170,863 12,228,501
ME4MIE Derivative financial instruments 1,681,457 - - - - 1,681,457
DATEERARER  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARE fair value through profit or loss 513,238 - - - - 513,238
ERHER Deposits from customers 91,291,412 38,835,056 8,055,467 40,783,385 6,019,541 184,984,861
HIPRS ¢ Certificates of deposit issued 3,994,658 3,481,908 - 8,173,039 - 15,649,605
BT BEEE Subordinated debt issued 1,500,000 1,539,331 - - - 3,039,331
HAth & Other liabilities 1,171,469 487,283 52,132 1,175,412 145,319 3,031,615
ek Total liabilities 101,055,914 51,242,519 8,107,599 54,386,853 6,335,723 221,128,608
GEAMEMNFFAFE  Net on-balance sheet position 11,570,600 2,950,055  (3,142,513) 15,917,705  (3,559,407) 23,736,440
BERAEFINEESR Off-balance sheet net notional
R position 7,784,701 (1,290,577) 3,186,557  (13,692,453) 3,602,146 (409,626)
5 BEARHf Credit commitments 27,854,065 2,339,919 76,247 809,007 217,958 31,297,196
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) B m b () (c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE -~ BEAERERERINER

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

(%)
A H The Group
Vi EH LT N Hib A5
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
BT B%Fr W% fr  BRTxr B%Fr %
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
RoO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=H=+—H
203 Assets
EFRE LAY E4 Cash and short-term funds 6,221,859 4517436 497304 11,642,444 1,049915 23,928,958
IF] 3 2 M I Placements with and loans and
Bk advances to banks 855,817 6,717,153 - 15302,268 80,186 22,964,424
BERE R ks Trading securities 202,222 427,389 = 88,151 = 717,762
fitsm TR Derivative financial instruments 545,572 = = = = 545,572
DATEME#ARLRE  Financial assets designated at
ZERMERE fair value through profit or loss - 2842872 = = - 2842872
[ {ik i & 7 Available-for-sale securities 4,109,575 5,931,589 1,668,409 8,518,715 179,741 20,408,029
SRR Fe Held-to-maturity securities 5,326,063 998,933 - 618,453 — 6,943,449
B S A ETE Advances and other accounts 74,872,671 35,682,972 1,212,265 22,452,263 582,880 134,803,051
HAb &R Other assets 3,941,497 55,492 = 33,206 2,120 4,032,315
HLE Total assets 96,075,276 57,173,836 3377978 58,655,500 1,903,842 217,186,432
g Liabilities
HEE Y Deposits and balances from banks 755,562 7,344,935 - 6313803 106,777 14,521,077
THIRET 2 B fR Trading liabilities - 99,899 = = = 99,899
MESMITE Derivative financial instruments 899,615 = = = = 899,615
PIAF-E(EzE A% Financial liabilities designated at
2EBEE fair value through profit or loss 512,948 46,617 = = = 559,565
KF Deposits from customers 67,578,178 30,166,233 8,848,822 42,237,700 6,305,718 155,136,651
BT A Certificates of deposit issued 1,873,129 5,083,235 - 8,960,506 - 15916,870
B2 BEEE Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 1,537,798 - - - 4537798
Hibf & Other liabilities 3,787,281 510,208 37,907 1,180,326 42,884 5,558,606
U Total liabilities 78,406,713 44788925 8,886,729  58,692335 6,455,379 197,230,081
GEAMENFLEE Nt on-balance sheet position 17,668,563 12,384,911 (5,508,751 (36,835)  (4,551,537) 19,956,351
BEAERILERE Off-balance sheet net notional
| position (4213,520)  (9,077,398) 5,579,259 2,846,495 4,514,012 (351,152)
R Bk IE Credit commitments 28294926 1,997,721 83,012 2,401,716 227,539 33,004,914




Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAH RAF —O—MFEFR

2 Smh R b P (%)
2.2 i G EBE (%)
(c) B i (%)

HE -~ BEAERERERINER

(%)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

PN iy The Bank
T e T AR Hily Tl
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
BT W%Fr BT B%Fr BETr B%Tr
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
R=-0—= At 31 December 2013
+ZHA=+—H
B Assets
[P 5 4 I 4 Cash and short-term funds 6,207,921 4,183,673 497304 11,606,903  1,049.915 23,545,716
IF] 3 72 A TR Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 775400 6,438,219 ~ 15,228,889 89,187 22,531,695
FEEE ARz s Trading securities 201,418 35,104 = 88,151 - 324,673
ik EmTH Derivative financial instruments 545,572 - - - = 545,572
DIATEERFABLGIE  Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss - 2842872 - - - 2842872
{2 S Available-for-sale securities 3,866,933 5,900,538 1,668,409 8,518,715 173917 20,128,512
SEE e Held-to-maturity securities 5,326,063 617,762 = 531,529 - 6475354
B IR Advances and other accounts 74067,723 35772791 1212,065 22,450,114 501,165 134,004,058
HAb Other assets 4,024,905 427,207 - 33,206 2,120 4487438
AR Total assets 95,015,935 56,218,166  3377,978 58,457,507 1,816,304 214,885,890
=R Liabilities
EEI¢ Deposits and balances from banks 755,562 7,344,935 - 6313803 106,777 14,521,077
Ttk emM TR Derivative financial instruments 899,615 = = = = 899,615
PIAF-E(Ez ATB40E  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEREARE fair value through profit or loss 512,948 46,617 = = = 559,565
EEHR Deposits from customers 68,316,425 30,729,141 8,848,887 42253255 6,306,350 156,454,058
B2 Certificates of deposit issued 1,873,129 5,083,235 ~ 8960,506 ~ 15916870
Bz BEEE Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 1,537,798 - - ~ 4537,798
HAbf Other liabilities 1,407,369 510,926 37907 1,180,393 42883 3,179478
BATK Total liabilities 76,765,048  45252,652 8,886,794 58,707,957 6,456,010 196,068,461
BREAGENFFAFE  Net on-balance sheet position 18,250,887 10,965,514  (5,508,816)  (250,450)  (4,639,706) 18,817,429
BEREFINEFESEA  Off-balance sheet net notional
B position (4213,520)  (9,077,398) 5,579,259 2,846,495 4,514,012 (351,152)
fr BRI Credit commitments 28361571 1,997,721 83,012 2401,716 27,539 33,071,559
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates in respect of its fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may
reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Group has established policies and systems to monitor its
interest-sensitive positions and net repricing gap to ensure that they are
all properly managed under the limits approved by the Management
Committee. Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and
independently monitored by a risk management department.

While the primary objective of interest rate risk management is to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income, interest rate positions may be taken for yield enhancement
within the risk limits.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s
exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s and
the Bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amount categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.
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2.2 Market risk (Continued)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Pl (4) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
B R EE PR — BHE B %S Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis
Hr
A H The Group
—fiA
UT —MAME Z@ANE  —®MBE  EENE it B
Upto Z=MA F—A R Over Non-interest At
1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
EHTr  #WTz  #WTx  #WTx  #%Tx  #WTr  #WTx
HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000  HKS$000  HKS$°000
RO~ M4 At 31 December 2014
+=ZA=+—H
203 Assets
R e LM E4S  Cash and short-term funds 22,899,735 - - - - 11,260,203 34,159,938
78 B R Placements with and loans and
=0 advances to banks 3,779,057 8,470,786 9,130,006 - - - 21,379,849
FEEE G2 Trading securities - 157 1,442 191,254 - 789,647 982,500
it amTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,258,160 1,258,160
AR (RS Financial assets designated at
Rk SMEE fair value through profit or loss - - 417,852 2,204,262 - - 2,622,114
ki Available-for-sale securities 4,820,710 7,892,595 1,623,366 3,879,867 - 943,406 19,159,944
e oo Held-to-maturity securities 638,708 1,806,065 1,871,542 1,594,179 - - 5,910,494
B R ERTE Advances and other accounts 86,625,748 38,079,450 24,327,121 4,259,337 1,166,757 3,456,699 157,915,112
R & Other assets 8,669 - - - - 4,169,727 4,178,396
Mg Total assets 118,772,627 56,249,053 37,371,329 12,128,899 1,166,757 21,877,842 247,566,507
i Liabilities
[FHE =2 Deposits and balances from banks 2,790,341 5,115,261 732,811 - - 3,590,088 12,228,501
k(=N Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,681,457 1,681,457
DI TEEREA Financial liabilities designated at
Rk &REE fair value through profit or loss - - - 513,238 - - 513,238
VASVeE Deposits from customers 83,349,887 48,060,150 39,972,274 3,808,961 - 8215356 183,406,628
BT Certificates of deposit issued 3,180,339 7,191,979 5,277,287 - - - 15,649,605
BT HIEEE Subordinated debt issued - - - 1,539,331 1,500,000 - 3,039,331
Hih AR Other liabilities 4,963 - - - - 5,836,085 5,841,048
M s Total liabilities 89,325,530 60,367,390 45,982,372 5,861,530 1,500,000 19,322,986 222,359,808
FIEBUREEI A% Total interest sensitivity gap
(FRBHE) (unadjusted) 29,447,097  (4,118,337)  (8,611,043) 6,267,369 (333,243)
FlEfE TRAH
Va7 Effect of interest rate derivatives (1,616,104) 4,094,291 (281,379)  (2,065,405)  (140,555)
FIEBURE XA Total interest sensitivity gap
(%) (adjusted) 27,830,993 (24,046) (8,892,422) 4,201,964  (473,798)
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2 <l e B A PR (A 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 W ABE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) FIZ&m b (4) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
HE R EEZ P RRE — HEE %5 Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis (Continued)
B (48)
. The Bank
—fiA
UT —MAME Z@ANE  —®MBE  EENE it B
Upto Z=MA F—A R Over Non-interest At
1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
EHTr  #WTz  #WTx  #WTx  #%Tx  #WTr  #WTx
HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000  HKS$000  HKS$°000
O~ 4 At 31 December 2014
+ZA=+—H
203 Assets
R e LM E4S  Cash and short-term funds 22,492,623 - - - - 11,139,988 33,632,611
IR 38 W7 B R Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 3,779,057 8,233,984 9,130,006 - - - 21,143,047
BERE R bk Trading securities - 157 1,442 191,254 - - 192,853
Mt eBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,258,160 1,258,160
DATEERARLE Financial assets designated at fair
R value through profit or loss - - 417852 2,204,262 - - 2,622,114
ki Available-for-sale securities 4,820,710 7,892,595 1,623,366 3,879,867 - 595312 18,811,850
SEEIFe Held-to-maturity securities 638,708 1,776,623 1,859,066 1,124,312 - - 5,398,709
B R ERTE Advances and other accounts 86,640,903 38,079,305 24,779,480 4,258,401 1,166,757 2,240,328 157,165,174
HAbERE Other assets 8,669 - - - - 4,631,861 4,640,530
g Total assets 118,380,670 55,982,664 37,811,212 11,658,096 1,166,757 19,865,649 244,865,048
i Liabilities
FEZ=4 Deposits and balances from banks 2,790,341 5,115,261 732,811 - - 3,590,088 12,228,501
it E Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,681,457 1,681457
DIATEERE AR Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMEE fair value through profit or loss - - - 513,238 - - 513,238
VASVeE Deposits from customers 83,546,262 48,286,666 40,606,675 3,811,691 - 8,733,567 184,984,861
BT A Certificates of deposit issued 3,180,339 7,191,979 5,277,287 - - - 15,649,605
BT HIEEE Subordinated debt issued - - - 1,539,331 1,500,000 - 3,039,331
Hih AR Other liabilities 4,963 - - - - 3,026,652 3,031,615
M s Total liabilities 89,521,905 60,593,906 46,616,773 5,864,260 1,500,000 17,031,764 221,128,608

FIEMRURE 4% Total interest sensitivity gap

(FRBHE) (unadjusted) 28,858,765  (4,611,242) (8,805,561) 5,793,836 (333,243)
FlEfE TRAH
Va7 Effect of interest rate derivatives (1,616,104) 4,094,291 (281,379)  (2,065,405)  (140,555)

FIEBURE XA Total interest sensitivity gap
(L) (adjusted) 724,661 (516951) (9,086940) 3728431  (473,798)
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2.2 Market risk (Continued)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Pl (4) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
HE R EEZ PR — 2B %5 Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis (Continued)
B (48)
AL The Group
—fi A
gUT —MAMLE =@EAME  —FME REME Rt
Upto Z=fAHA 4 FHA Over Non-interest A5
1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
BT T BETr BWTx B%Trc B Tx %
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
RZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZH=+—H
B Assets
EEfF B4 R E4S  Cash and short-term funds 18,091,656 = - - ~ 5837302 23,928,958
GE ek Va1 94 Placements with and loans and
v advances to banks 6,227,320 10,843,413 5,893,691 - - - 22,964,424
FFEEE MR 2% Trading securities 100,294 = 76,929 147,450 = 393,089 717,762
fEEMTH Derivative financial instruments = = = = - 545,572 545,572
PIAT-E(EEAHEHE  Financial assets designated at fair
R value through profit or loss = = 79,361 2,763,511 - - 284287
Wt & 25 Available-for-sale securities 7,255,070 9,308,299 2,071,901 899,375 - 873,384 20,408,029
RER RS Held-to-maturity securities 729406 3,853,969 1,304,507 1,055,567 - — 6,943,449
BRI IR Advances and other accounts 74,696,983 37,294,063 13,991,813 5,122,493 800,056 2,897,643 134,803,051
Hol Other assets 11,503 - - - — 4020812 4,032,315
W Total assets 107,112,232 61,299,744 23418202 9,988,396 800,056 14,567,802 217,186,432
AfE Liabilities
I 3EAF R Deposits and balances from banks 2,552,892 8,437,802 2,110,443 - ~ 1419940 14,521,077
THRET 2R Trading liabilities = = = - - 99,899 99,899
it 4mM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 899,615 899,615
PIATE(EE ARG Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMA R fair value through profit or loss - 46,617 - 512,948 - - 559,565
KR Deposits from customers 70,178,630 37,357,113 34975554 5,594,673 — 7,030,681 155,136,651
B2 Certificates of deposit issued 2,604,547 2,067,145 11,081,546 163,632 = - 15,916,870
BTz REER Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 - 1,537,798 1,500,000 - 4537798
HAbA & Other liabilities 10,200 = = = — 5548406 5,558,606
BAMRK Total liabilities 76,146,269 48,608,677 48,167,543 7,809,051 1,500,000 14,998,541 197,230,081
FIE U 2 B A Total interest sensitivity gap
(KAL) (unadjusted) 30,965,963 12,691,067 (24,749,341) 2,179,345 (699,944
FIRMAETEAH
ba 7 Effect of interest rate derivatives 1,231,202 1,380,670 238,068 (2,684,769)  (175,194)
FIEVMRURE B4 Total interest sensitivity gap
(&%) (adjusted) 32,197,165 14,071,737 (24,511,273)  (505,424)  (875,138)
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 W ABE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) FIFm i (4) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
HE R EEZ PR — 2B %5 Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis (Continued)
B (48)
Ny The Bank
i ‘
gUT —MAMLE =@EAME  —FME REME Rt
Upto ZE={HA Eo2 FRE Over Non-interest aat
1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
wiETr  wBTx  w%Tr  BETx RBTx w%Tr BT
HK$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$°000  HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$000  HKS$’000
RZ0—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=HA=+—H
i Assets
[EFR A RG4S Cashand short-term funds 18,036,115 - - - — 5480601 23,545,716
IR 338 WA B R Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 6,180,797 10,511,269 5,839,629 - - — 22,531,695
FEEERGZ#S  Trading securities 100,294 - 76929 147450 - - 34673
fitkgmTIA Derivative financial instruments = = = - - 545,572 545,572
DIATEERE AL Financial assets designated at fair
ZERMERE value through profit or loss = = 79361 2,763,511 - - 2842872
ikt 2 Available-for-sale securities 7,255,070 9,308,299 2,071,901 899,375 - 593,867 20,128,512
FEIE S Held-to-maturity securities 729,406 3,853,969 1,177,907 714,072 - - 6475354
BRI RE Advances and other accounts 74,695,696 37,304,112 14,055,201 5,120,945 800,056 2,028,048 134,004,058
oot Other assets 11,503 = = = ~ 4475935 4487438
B Total assets 107,028,881 60,977,649 23,300,928 9,645,353 800,056 13,133,023 214,885,890
AfE Liabilities
FEZ=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 2,552,892 8,437,802 2,110,443 - - 1,419,940 14,521,077
it sMT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 899,615 899,615
DIAFEERABEIE  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMEE fair value through profit or loss = 46,617 = 512,948 = = 559,565
VaSVeE ¢ Deposits from customers 70,509,516 37,367,580 35,581,671 5,601,189 ~ 7,394,102 156,454,058
BT A Certificates of deposit issued 2,604,547 2,067,145 11,081,546 163,632 - - 15,916,870
BT HEEE Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 - 1,537,798 1,500,000 - 4537798
Al & i Other liabilities 10,200 = = = - 3169278 3,179,478
ARk Total liabilities 76,477,155 48,619,144 48,773,660 7,815,567 1,500,000 12,882,935 196,068,461
) B R 2 B Total interest sensitivity gap
(REHE) (unadjusted) 30,551,726 12,358,505 (25,472,732) 1,829,786 (699,944)
Rl TRAH
Va7 Effect of interest rate derivatives 1,231,202 1,380,670 238,068 (2,684,769)  (175,194)

FEBUREXIA%  Total interest sensitivity gap
(&%) (adjusted) 31,782,928 13,739,175 (25,234,664)  (854,983)  (875,138)
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2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

The table below summarises the effective interest rate by major
currencies of monetary financial instruments not carried at fair value

FIE through profit or loss:
i L The Group
W *70 Wt NG A i
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
% % % % % %
BZO— M4 At 31 December 2014
+=H=+—H
B Assets
4 R EE4  Cash and short-term funds 0.1 0.31 - 3.83 0.06 1.36
HE 38395 Placements with and loans and
Bk advances to banks 2.81 2.12 - 5.32 1.54 4.67
QRS pa o Available-for-sale securities 1.12 1.65 3.61 4.49 2.64 3.14
F5 2 235 5 Held-to-maturity securities 0.11 5.12 - 3.89 - 1.29
PR Advances to customers 2.64 2.55 5.66 4.62 2.34 3.08
A5 Liabilities
] 317K Deposits and balances from banks 0.11 0.54 - 4.85 0.15 2.00
B Deposits from customers 0.71 0.88 2.45 3.22 1.46 1.41
BT # Certificates of deposit issued 1.25 1.31 - 3.10 - 2.23
Wi REEE Subordinated debt issued 5.70 3.58 - - - 4.62
RZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—H
B Assets
R4 KM &4 Cash and short-term funds 0.27 1.33 2.63 5.48 0.84 3.08
] 2E E WATE I e Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 2.42 2.07 = 6.61 1.75 5.12
Ak 2 R R Available-for-sale securities 1.14 1.24 3.50 4.77 0.99 2.90
FEE 2 5 Held-to-maturity securities 0.16 5.39 = 5.14 = 135
P EE Advances to customers 2.54 242 4.00 4.94 3.04 2.92
=it Liabilities
] 317K Deposits and balances from banks 0.43 0.97 = 4.98 0.46 2.68
B Deposits from customers 0.57 1.02 2.30 3.21 1.05 1.50
BIT IS # Certificates of deposit issued 1.03 1.10 - 2.83 - 2.07
BT REEAE Subordinated debt issued 4.26 3.58 = = = 4.03

103



104

Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAHRA R —O—MFEFR

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 b b B (#)
2.3 i B & A b

U B A g ) 6 A 4 T R RE S < B
R H AT AR AT - SRR 1R
BESERAEM T E S - JATRE® 713
B R BRI A P U 7 SR BUEE OR
REE 7R ol I o A 42 1 4 R i W B A
B IR > DU AR B R B K 1
SIERS ~ BT HRCUN - BRE
EAFR R - LUK A PR AE S SOHA E &
HEMETARNTRR -

(a) I B) B2 o B PR 7

A S [ Y I B e B AC R
A 14 9L B < gy A B R D B B
B -AEABEHLZEgREARESFY
MERZBGRE  ARERAEEE
FEE ) O ) < B o A B
7 B g i R B B < B Y SR
BUR MR THEEGREME B G5
> DA AR ORA ST A B S BB
MRt o B AR MR B 8T

ik > MR AT TR 15 A A P s 1 B
B > DLROR TR A T R e
e MERARHAWRBESEH - I
58wt 0 S b s B s 4 PR A
W AEMNEEAREREZ S AR
oo R E IR A > FRIR IR ED
B A B e A LA BT -

I8 A7 B 36 020 A7 7 S B U B L B
BB K2 R R Z e T R E A B
B B 0 U B B o 3 e 4 P
HEAMEHEZAEGESE - Z2RAN
R TR 2% ) T S O S oy ) — IR
38 oy JERIEAT > i By B HC A 5 = 7
Aoy — B W% 37w W R O R
il

MEEGEM Y B BTN IER RE
S UUE B 2 R > RS S DU AT
GEMEBHENTAEEZRBES L
Ro pit s REBMAUTZRBESE
AR

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments
to lend. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash
resources from overnight deposits, current accounts, matured deposits,
loan drawdowns and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on
cash-settled derivatives.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The management of the Group’s liquidity risk is governed by the
liquidity risk management policies and principles as approved by the
Board of Directors. The Asset and Liability Management Committee,
which is delegated by the Management Committee on behalf of the
Board of Directors, is responsible to monitor the Group’s overall
liquidity management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
sets the strategy, policy and limits for managing liquidity risk for
approval by the Board of Directors or the Management Committee, and
the means for ensuring that such strategy and policy are implemented
effectively. Regular meeting is held to review the compliance status of
the monitoring matrix established and the needs of change in strategy
and policy. Daily liquidity management is managed by the Treasury
Department. The limits, triggers or alerts are monitored by the Financial
Accounting Department and Financial Management Department and
reported to the Asset and Liability Management Committee on a regular
basis. The Internal Audit Department performs periodic reviews to
make sure that the liquidity risk management functions are carried out
effectively.

The primary responsibility for managing liquidity and funding within
the Group’s framework and risk appetite resides with the mainland
and overseas branches, which is monitored by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee. Internally, intra-group funding transactions are
transacted at arm’s length and treated in a manner in line with other third
party transactions, with regular monitoring and appropriate control.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet the obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth and to
comply with the statutory liquidity ratio. To achieve this, the following
liquidity management processes are in place:
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(a) B & 2/ bR E PR )T (A

(a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

(i) 72 WITEIE W KB 1% 5 T A B

(1) Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios
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regularly, using the net mismatch gap between assets and
liabilities to estimate the prospective net funding requirement and
formulate the corresponding actions.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons,
including next day, seven days and one month, which are key
periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the
financial assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet items as
well as the expected maturity of these items based on historical
observations and cash flow models.

Liquidity stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating
risk exposure under stressed conditions arising from extreme but
plausible market or macroeconomic movements.

Different stress testing scenarios, namely an institution specific
crisis, a general market crisis and combined crisis, are performed
on a regular basis in accordance with the principles stated in
Supervisory Policy Manual “Sound Systems and Controls for
Liquidity Risk Management” (LM-2).

The stress testing result is also one of the most important
early warning indicators under contingency funding plan. With
reference to the stress testing results, the Group identifies
potential vulnerabilities on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions. If the impact is severe enough and triggers
the plan, the Bank will deal with such liquidity problems in
accordance with the formulated contingency funding plan that sets
out remedial actions;

(i1) Monitoring the liquidity ratio, loan to deposit ratio and maturity

mismatch ratio against internal and/or regulatory requirements;

(iii) Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,

through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core level
of the deposit portfolio;

(iv) Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding structure

during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient funding and
an appropriate funding mix;
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

(v) Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new

product;

(vi) Maintaining high-quality liquid assets (“HQLA”) which can

be sold or pledged as collateral to provide liquidity even under
periods of stress. The Group invests in good credit quality
investments with deep and liquid market to ensure short term
funding requirements are covered within prudent limits. Level 1
assets comprise cash, balances with central bank and high quality
central government and central bank securities, while level 2
assets comprise corporate securities of investment grade.

The table below shows the balances (before assumed haircuts) of
HQLA of the Group and the Bank:

—~O0O—Ml —O—=4

2014 2013
w0 [liki o I

HKS$000 HK$°000

—&R Level 1 17,741,168 13,257,302
5 Level 2 958,442 23,566
18,699,610 13,280,868

WHERBEEAS T FAN 2
FS S ) M HE RS

(vii) 5 B ) S (5 T3

(viif) A6 5 22 il ) o AR B A TE

R (B3 N3 i 5 458
) o Bl A R 7 B A Y A S A AR
R HY 5 R o DLELE IR ER B A R A
EE S URCRERENE S s
MBE SRR EREE - i
EEATEARR R E e R
B & i o U P a1 o 4R B
A R EAT B - 3 B
B 52 B 1) A F 5 B2 B A o A
5 W I B 2 S A S B ST % R
M o

All assets held as HQLA are unencumbered,;

(vii)Maintaining access to the interbank money market to activate

facilities;

(vii)Maintaining a contingency funding plan. The Group will utilise

early warning indicators (including both internal and market
indicators), and integrate with the results of the scenarios and
assumptions used in the stress test to monitor both internal and
external factors. Should there be any signs of significant impact
on the Group’s liquidity position, the Crisis Management Team,
which is chaired by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer, will be
formed to handle the crisis. Corresponding actions as laid down
in the policy will be taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to
minimise adverse long-term implications for business. The plan is
also subject to review and update on a regular basis.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis

The tables on the following pages analyse the Group’s and the Bank’s
assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The analysis in respect of insurance liabilities is based
on the estimated timing of net cash outflows resulting from recognised
insurance liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

A4 The Group
—HA —WANLE ZM@AUE
B £ KUT  E=MA - YL HENL TERED
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA Over Hi it
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BRTT  B%Tr  wWTx  WRTx  E%Tr  #%Tr #WTr w%Tx
HKS’000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
R-O—N4E At 31 December 2014
+ZR=t—H
B Assets
FfFB & RIEMES  Cash and short-term funds 11,561,621 20,409,322 - - - - 2,188,995 34,159,938
EE 3 ilca9/3 Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks - 3,719,057 8,469,786 9,131,006 - - - 21,379,849
FHEHEMEZ®%  Trading securities - - - 1,197 191,656 - 789,647 982,500
fiksMT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 1,258,160 1,258,160
MAFEERE AR Financial assets designated at fair
LEMERE value through profit or loss - - S8R 2204262 - S XM
ki 2 A Available-for-sale securities - 195,650 631,501 6,212,548 11,176,839 - 943,406 19,159,944
235 Held-to-maturity securities - 638,708 1,806,065 1,871,542 1,594,179 - - 5910494
SR IRIE Advances and other accounts 2124374 6941423 12,718,194 57,223,821  57437,770 20,702,555 766,975 157,915,112
HobE Other assets - - - n 8,669 44,189 4125516 4,178,396
HEE Total assets 13,685,995 31,964,160 23,625,546 74,857,988 72,613,375 20,746,744 10,072,699 247,566,507
Aff Liabilities
HEZZ Deposits and balances from banks 3621455 2,758,974 5,115,261 732,811 - - - 12,228,501
fiksmM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 1,681,457 1,681,457
MAFEEE B  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMAR fair value through profit or loss - - - - 513,238 - - 513,238
ZF Deposits from customers 49,877,003 41,688,240 48,060,150 39,972,274 3,808,961 - — 183,406,628
BT Certificates of deposit issued - 3,180,340 5822629 6,646,636 - - - 15,649,605
Bz R ERE Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 3,039,331 - 3,039,331
Hof % Other liabilities 816542 1,123,476 523,643 1,791,322 1,106,218 11,821 468,026 5,841,048
BEMR Total liabilities 54315000 48,751,030 59,521,683 49,143,043 5428417 3,051,152 2,149,483 222,359,808

B 2V Net liquidity gap

(40,629,005)  (16,786,870) (35,896,137) 25,714,945 67,184,958 17,695,592 7,923,216 25,206,699
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
—fA —WANLE ZMANLE
B £ 8 U E=ZMA F- —EUE EENE L
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 T4 Over i ait
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
wHTr  #WTr  EWTx  #WTx  wWTx  #WTx  #WTx ERTx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RO At 31 December 2014
A ESS
B Assets
BB A ES  Cash and short-term funds 11,441,406 20,002,210 - - - - 2,188,995 33,632,611
[ 37 BA7 TR Placements with and loans and
v advances to banks - 3779057 8232984 9,131,006 - - - 21,143,047
HEEE AR Z®B%  Trading securities - - - 1,197 191,656 - - 192,853
Mt & m T A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 1258160 1,258,160
MATEEEABRGIE  Financial assets designated at fair
LEMER value through profit or loss - - - 417,852 2,204,262 - - 2,622,114
{7 Available-for-sale securities - 195,650 631,501 6,212,548 11,176,839 - 595312 18,811,850
R SIS Held-to-maturity securities - 638,708 1,776,623 1,859,066 1,124,312 - - 5,398,709
BN IRIE Advances and other accounts 2124237 6271057 12,652,849 57,391,475 57415451 20,701,065 609,040 157,165,174
i Other assets - - - - 8,669 28417 4,603,444 4,640,530
HERE Total assets 13,565,643 30,886,682 23,293,957 75,013,144 72,121,189 20,729,482 9,254,951 244,865,048
Afi Liabilities
FEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 3,621,455 2,758,974 5,115,261 732,811 - - - 12,228,501
it H Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 1,681,457 1,681,457
MATEEEAREHE  Financial liabilities designated at
ZRHALR fair value through profit or loss - - - - 513,238 - - 513,238
EFf Deposits from customers 50,554,022 41,725,807 48,286,666 40,606,675 3,811,691 - - 184,984,861
BATZ 5% Certificates of deposit issued - 3180340 5822629 6,646,636 - - - 15,649,605
BT 2 HIEER Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 3,039,331 - 3,039,331
A& Other liabilities 762,008 510,580 445,170 1,057,338 159,458 9,752 87,309 3,031,615
ek Total liabilities 54,937,485 48,175,701 59,669,726 49,043,460 4,484,387 3,049,083 1,768,766 221,128,608
WB % 4 % VA Net liquidity gap (41,371,842)  (17,289,019) (36,375,769) 25,969,684 67,636,802 17,680,399 7,486,185 23,736,440
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

AL The Group
—fA —MmANL Z=@AMUL
B BUTF  E=fA g —FUE HEDE sk B
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 A Over H 5l
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
WL BT WETr T w%To w%Tre Wl BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$000
RZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—H
B Assets
JEfF B4 R ES  Cash and short-term funds 6,629,424 14,795,937 - = - - 2,503,597 23,928,958
EE Y39 Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks - 6227320 10,843,413 5,893,691 = = — 22,964,424
FEEE M Z®S  Trading securities = 99,998 = 75,365 149,310 = 393,089 717,762
fitsmM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 545,572 545,572
PVATEGEAESIE  Financial assets designated at fair
ZERERE value through profit or loss - - - 79361 2,763,511 - - 2842872
b2 Available-for-sale securities = 649,827 270394 7,175,025 11,439,399 = 873,384 20,408,029
PR 5IE S Held-to-maturity securities = 691277 3,853,969 1,304,507 1,093,696 = - 6,943,449
B R AMIEIE Advances and other accounts 1487372 3337,524 10,268,601  36,365246 63,845,060 18,685,899 813,349 134,803,051
Hibg Other assets = = - 5,152 11,503 56,867 3,958,793 4,032,315
B Total assets 8,116,796 25,801,883 25236377 50,898,347 79,302,479 18,742,766 9,087,784 217,186,432
AfR Liabilities
EEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,458,866 2,513,966 8,437,802 2,110,443 - - - 14,521,077
REIEET 2tk Trading liabilities - - - = = - 99,899 99,899
it T Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 899,615 899,615
DIATE (5 AB4IE  Financial liabilities designated at
2ERAR fair value through profit or loss = = 46,617 = 512,948 = = 559,565
EFE Deposits from customers 41,980,463 35228848  37357,113 34975554 5,594,673 = - 155,136,651
AT Z 5% Certificates of deposit issued — 2,604,547 1,912,080 11,236,611 163,632 - - 15916,870
BT HIEEIR Subordinated debt issued - - - = - 4,537,798 - 4,537,798
HAbA Other liabilities 772,746 799,672 527,263 1,795,900 988,809 8,707 665,509 5,558,606
ek Total liabilities 44212075 41,147,033 48280875 50,118,508 7,260,062 4,546,505 1,665,023 197,230,081
T 2 B R A Net liquidity gap (36,095,279) (15,345,150) (23,044,498) 779,839  72,042417 14,196,261 7,422,761 19,956,351
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
—fA —MAMLE =MAME
Bt BUT  E2=MA g —FNE HENE L
Repayable Up to 1-3 3-12 R Over H &3t
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BT W T W WM WM T BT BT BB
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
RZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
FEAZ—H
B Assets
JEfFBLG B E4  Cashand short-term funds 6,277,166 14,764,953 - = - - 2,503,597 23,545,716
[ 372 BAF 1 Placements with and loans and
X advances to banks - 6,180,797 10,511,269 5,839,629 - - - 22,531,695
FHERERGZB%  Trading seourities = 99,998 - 75,365 149,310 - = 324,673
&R TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 545,572 545,572
WAFEEREABGIE  Financial assets designated at fair
LEMERE value through profit or loss - - - 79,361 2,763,511 - - 2,842,872
WL E 2R Available-for-sale securities - 649,827 270394 7,175,025 11,439,399 - 593,867 20,128,512
TR Held-to-maturity securities - 691,277 3,853,969 1,177,907 752,201 - - 6,475,354
B SRR Advances and other accounts 1,489,377 2,986,611 10,208,083 36,168,091 63,759,490 18,749,203 643,03 134,004,058
Hib g Other assets - - - 4,652 11,503 26,652 4444631 4,487,438
&R Total assets 7,766,543 25,373,463 24,843,715 50,520,030 78,875,414 18,775,855 8,730,870 214,885,890
A K Liabilities
EEZ:= Deposits and balances from banks 1,458,867 2,513,965 8,437,802 2,110,443 - - —- 14,521,077
MEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 899,615 899,615
WA TEERE ARG  Financial liabilities designated at
ZERER fair value through profit or loss - - 46,617 - 512,948 - - 559,565
ERHEX Deposits from customers 42,419,078 35,484,540 37,367,580 35,581,671 5,601,189 - - 156,454,058
BT A% Certificates of deposit issued - 2,604,547 1912,080 11,236,611 163,632 - ~ 15916870
BT EEE Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 4,537,798 - 4537798
A& & Other liabilities 720,714 464,119 459,496 1,144,419 125,951 6,710 258,069 3,179,478
ek Total liabilities 44,598,659 41,067,171 48,223,575 50,073,144 6,403,720 4,544,508 1,157,684 196,068,461
TE) & & 2% Net liquidity gap (36,832,116) (15,693,708) (23,379,860) 446,880 72,471,694 14,231,347 7,573,186 18,817,429
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of
losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and currency risks.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the commitment
because the Group does not generally expect the third party to draw
funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate
without being funded.

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables on the following pages analyse the cash flow payable by the
Group in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities, and by
estimated timing of net cash outflow for insurance liabilities at the end
of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

AL The Group
—fA —fANLE ZMANL
WPy 52 XUT  E=MA F-H —EPRE O HEDE HEREH
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA: Over 4 Fit
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
EHTe  EWTx  #WTx  BWTx  #WTx #%Tx #RTx #RTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO— N4 At 31 December 2014
+ZH=+—H
FRiEB SR EAME  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
BRI Deposits from customers 49,881,360 41,892,351 48,444,773 40,909,499 4,192,990 - - 185320973
EEZ: Deposits and balances from banks 3,621,461 2,789,967 5,159,724 741,780 - - - 12,312,932
MAFEERE ARG  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMATRE fair value through profit or loss - - 3,616 10,313 506,875 - - 520,804
BT 2 At Certificates of deposit issued - 3,260,538 5913405 6,760,033 - - - 15933976
72 B IEEE Subordinated debt issued - - 21,316 118,412 559,149 3,384,921 - 4,083,798
HA Al Other liabilities 805,279 833,403 167,668 1,289,921 989,055 11,821 468,026 4,565,173
T B4 i Derivative cash flow
it sM TR Derivative financial instruments - 20,371,165 13,338,617 40,571,614 5,339,036 1,060 - 79,621,492
54,308,100 69,147,424 73,049,119 90,401,572 11,587,105 3,397,802 468,026 302,359,148
—fA —MAMLE =@AME
B2 BUT  2=MA g4 —FUE HENE i
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ZTAF Over H it At
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
wWTT  BWRTr wW T %I BT B¥Tx BT %
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
RZ0—= At 31 December 2013
FEAZER
FRiEHEREAME  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
BRI Deposits from customers 41,997,683 35,338,565 37,541,650 35,325,028 6,107,700 - - 156,310,626
D= Deposits and balances from banks 1,458,874 2,526,327 8,498,690 2,166,910 - - - 14,650,801
RHIEET 2 A& Trading liabilities = - - - - - 99,899 99,899
MATEERE ARG  Financial liabilities designated at
ZamaE fair value through profit or loss - = 51,019 10,313 520,625 - - 581,957
B2t Certificates of deposit issued - 2,633,238 1919,838 11,447,485 166,132 = - 16,166,693
T2 HIEEE Subordinated debt issued - 4,754 24,768 145,203 702,045 5,051,201 - 597971
HA A Other liabilities 755,934 613,131 309,989 1,344,835 867,384 8,707 665,509 4,565,489
T B4 i Derivative cash flow
fitsMTR Derivative financial instruments - 24746521 10,763,100 23,212,499 3,585,047 3,304 - 62,311,071
44212491 65,862,536 59,109,054 73,652,273 11,949,533 5,063,212 765,408 260,614,507
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
—fA —fANLE ZMANL
WPy 52 XUT  E=MA F-H —EPRE O HEDE HEREH
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA: Over 4 Fit
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
EHTe  EWTx  #WTx  BWTx  #WTx #%Tx #RTx #RTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
RZO— M4 At 31 December 2014
+ZA=+—H
FRiEB SR EAME  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
BRI Deposits from customers 50,558,378 41,929,924 48,671,461 41,554,517 4,195,739 - - 186,910,019
EEZ: Deposits and balances from banks 3,621,461 2,789,967 5,159,724 741,780 - - - 12,312,932
MAFEERE ARG  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMATRE fair value through profit or loss - - 3,616 10,313 506,875 - - 520,804
BT 2 At Certificates of deposit issued - 3,260,538 5913405 6,760,033 - - - 15933976
72 B IEEE Subordinated debt issued - - 21,316 118,412 559,149 3,384,921 - 4,083,798
HA Al Other liabilities 750,745 220,498 89,152 555,193 42,289 9,752 87,309 1,754,938
T4 B4 i Derivative cash flow
it sM TR Derivative financial instruments - 20,371,165 13,338,617 40,571,614 5,339,036 1,060 - 79,621,492
54,930,584 68,572,092 73,197,291 90,311,862 10,643,088 3,395,733 87,309 301,137,959
—fA —MAMLE =@AME
B2 BUT  2=MA g4 —FUE HENE i
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ZTAF Over H it At
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
wWTT  BWRTr wW T %I BT B¥Tx BT %
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
RZ0—= At 31 December 2013
+ZR=+—H
FRiEHEREAME  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
B Deposits from customers 42,436,299 35,594,524 37,552,143 35,940,638 6,114,262 - - 157,637,866
D= Deposits and balances from banks 1,458,874 2,526,327 8,498,690 2,166,910 - - - 14,650,801
WA TEERE ARG  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEmER fair value through profit or loss = - 51,019 10,313 520,625 - - 581,957
BT 2t Certificates of deposit issued - 2,633238 1,919,838 11,447,485 166,132 = - 16,166,693
B2 &R Subordinated debt issued - 4,754 24,768 145,203 702,045 5,051,201 - 597971
HA A Other liabilities 695,962 271,318 242,204 693,334 4515 6,710 258,069 2,178,112
T B4 i Derivative cash flow
fitk s TR Derivative financial instruments - 24,746,521 10,763,100 23,212,499 3,585,647 3,304 - 62,311,071
44,591,135 65,782,682 59,051,762 73,616,382 11,093,226 5,061,215 258,069 259,454,471
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(d) BEAEHRLSMEH

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(d) Off-balance sheet items

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

AL The Group
—AEE LT —4EDL B
Not later ZEHAE AV L b
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
i T T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
H=O—M4E At 31 December 2014
VS
TR A Loan commitments 26,326,164 - - 26,326,164
Yo prE J HoAth 4 il Guarantees and other financial
B facilities
— PERE K — Guarantees and standby
fa IR letters of credit 878,333 - - 878,333
— Documentary and commercial
— S Ak letters of credit 4,026,054 - - 4,026,054
BEMARIE Operating lease commitments 76,248 123,354 - 199,602
EA KIS Capital commitments 173,867 - - 173,867
31,480,666 123,354 - 31,604,020
—AEE LR —4ED E
Not later ZHE HAEM E At
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
T T BT i BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
RZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZHA=+—H
RO R E Loan commitments 27,696,586 — — 27,696,586
R R HAb &R Guarantees and other financial
L facilities
— PELRE KA — Guarantees and standby
15 R letters of credit 1,304,234 = = 1,304,234
— Documentary and commercial
— fE Rk letters of credit 4,004,094 — — 4,004,094
T A R YE Operating lease commitments 60,060 80,722 2,785 143,567
BRI Capital commitments 158,454 17 — 158,471
33,223,428 80,739 2,785 33,306,952
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(d) Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

N The Bank
—AEE LT —4EDL B
Not later ZEHAE AV L b
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
i T T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
H=O—M4E At 31 December 2014
+=A=+—H
TR A Loan commitments 26,392,809 - - 26,392,809
e R o HoAth 4 il Guarantees and other financial
W facilities
— YERE K — Guarantees and standby
fa R letters of credit 878,333 - - 878,333
— Documentary and commercial
— S Ak letters of credit 4,026,054 - - 4,026,054
BT AR Operating lease commitments 88,765 137,206 - 225,971
BRI Capital commitments 172,877 - - 172,877
31,558,838 137,206 - 31,696,044
—AEE LR —4ED E
Not later ZHE HAEM E At
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
T T BT i BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
RZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZHA=+—H
RO R E Loan commitments 27,696,586 = = 27,696,586
R R HAb &R Guarantees and other financial
L facilities
— PELRE KA — Guarantees and standby
13 Bk letters of credit 1,370,879 — — 1,370,879
— Documentary and commercial
— fE Rk letters of credit 4,004,094 — — 4,004,094
T A R YE Operating lease commitments 82,022 97,912 2,785 182,719
BRI Capital commitments 154,791 — — 154,791
33,308,372 97,912 2,785 33,409,069
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.4 Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.

The Group has established an operational risk management framework
to identify, measure, monitor and control operational risk. The Policy
on Operational Risk Management, approved by the Management
Committee, defines responsibilities of various committees, business units
and supporting departments and encompasses various tools including
control self-assessment, risk event management and key risk indicators
to facilitate measurement and assessment of operational risk. The Group
also relies on internal control mechanisms within the business lines,
supplemented by the internal audit function to manage and control
operational risk.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and integrity are
clearly spelled out in formal policy statements. The lines of authority and
responsibilities of each business and operational unit have been clearly
defined to ensure adequate checks and balances. Procedures including
risk assessments, segregation of duties, use of limits, training and regular
verification and reconciliation of transactions and accounts are used in
the internal control mechanism.

Risk assessment will be conducted on the outsourcing services, new
products and new systems implementation. Business continuity plans are
in place to mitigate the impact and interruptions to business activities
caused by system failure or natural disaster. Adequate insurance is taken
out to cover a reasonable extent of operational risk.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for regular review of
the operational risk profile and the Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s operational risk framework. It provides
an objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system
is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are as follows:

— To comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance;

— To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders;

— To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

— To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Hong Kong Banking Ordinance requires each bank or banking group
to maintain a prescribed ratio of regulatory capital to total risk-weighted
assets. Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, including the Securities
and Futures Commission and Office of the Commissioner of Insurance.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk
weights as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible
collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance
sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored on a regular basis
by the Group’s management. The Group applies an internal trigger capital
adequacy ratio which is well above the minimum statutory requirement
as an indicator for managing the capital adequacy. In addition, the Group
will assess the impact on its capital adequacy ratio when there are new
products, new investments or any significant transactions.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with
all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 and are well above the minimum required
ratio set by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial
liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. They include net
present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to similar
instruments for which market prices exist, Black-Scholes option pricing
models and other valuation models. Inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other
risk premiums used in estimating discount rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, bond and equity prices, price volatilities and correlations.

The Group uses valuation models that use only observable market data
for determining the fair value of debt securities and derivatives for
which there is no active market. Observable prices and model inputs are
usually available in the market for listed debt securities, exchange traded
derivatives and over-the-counter derivatives. Availability of observable
prices and model inputs is prone to changes as a result of specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets.

When observable prices and model inputs are not available, the Group
uses valuation models of which the inputs may not be observable in
the market but are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated
based on assumptions. Examples of instruments involving significant
unobservable inputs include unlisted equity securities and investment
fund for which there is no active market. Management judgement and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount
rates.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
value in the Group’s statement of financial position are estimated as
follows:

(a) Balances, placement with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
is their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits, which is normally less than one year, is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. Therefore
the fair value is approximately equal to its carrying value.

(b) Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for impairment.
All except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
customers bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has assessed the
fair value of advances to customers and trade bills, after taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and noted that the total fair
value is not materially different from the total carrying value.

(c) Deposits and balances from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances bearing
interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits from banks
and deposits from customers without quoted market price is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar
remaining maturity. As they are normally less than one year, their fair
values are approximately equal to their carrying values.

(d) Certificates of deposit and capital instruments

The fair value of certificates of deposit and capital instruments
issued is based on quoted market prices. For those where quoted
market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used
based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term
to maturity. The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates
of deposit and capital instruments issued after taking into account
the relevant yield curve and noted that the total fair value is not
materially different from the total carrying value.
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 axhbEE R AMZ A TFHEME () 2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(e) FAbHRIA K 12 (e) Other accounts and accruals
HAb IR R R — B A A HEEFIE 2 The estimated fair value of other accounts and accruals, which are
R W > HAPEME A LR normally non-interest bearing balances, is their carrying value.
fH -
B bl BABEIRDLRIE H Ak » TR Except for the above statement of financial position items, the following
A S S B BA SR DL R N AP (E(E 2 5] table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of other financial
(A ) 4 Rl A A B R AR T (ELFIME XY assets and liabilities not presented on the Group’s statement of financial
NPELE - position at their fair value.
A H The Group
g T 2 FEE
Carrying value Fair value
—O—I —0—= —O—| —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT i o BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
S RE E Financial assets
FEIMES Held-to-maturity securities 5,910,494 6,943,449 5,905,587 6,959,656
Y NF) The Bank
IR i L 2 FEE
Carrying value Fair value
—~O0O—M —0== —O—M —0=—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT i i T BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
4 E e Financial assets
FrE 2T Held-to-maturity securities 5,398,709 6,475,354 5,394,291 6,485,880
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair
value hierarchy:

e Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This
category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs.
This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices
for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the
instruments.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market prices in
its valuations where possible.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group recognises transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 axhbEE R AMZ A TFHEME () 2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

T RAEE AR A AT EEETLHE Y The tables below analyse financial instruments, measured at fair value
e TR SESEATEER  on arecurring basis at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the

JE WA 2 HT fair value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
i L The Group
B g BENE il
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T #W T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BO— M4 At 31 December 2014
+=ZH=+—H
HiE Assets
FrERERZRZ
Firi i Trading securities:
— BRI — Debt securities 192,853 - - 192,853
— RHERE S — Equity securities and
HEHEE investment fund 789,647 - - 789,647
e TR Derivative financial instruments - 1,258,160 - 1,258,160
PAAFEMERSA Financial assets designated
Halkz at fair value through
BRUERE profit or loss:
— B — Debt securities 1,380,124 1,241,990 - 2,622,114
At 2 RS Available-for-sale securities:
— BRI — Debt securities 16,397,950 1,818,588 - 18,216,538
— MR HERE 75 I — Equity securities and
RERE investment fund 620,852 56,615 265,939 943,406
19,381,426 4,375,353 265,939 24,022,718
fafE Liabilities
fiitE &/ T H Derivative financial instruments - 1,681,457 - 1,681,457
PAAFE(EES Financial liabilities designated
Bk at fair value through
o =R profit or loss - 513,328 - 513,328
- 2,194,785 - 2,194,785
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 axhbEE R AMZ A TFHEME () 2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
B—E g =g &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

W T BT T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000

BO— M4 At 31 December 2014

+=ZH=+—H
& Assets
FrERERZRZ

o Trading securities:

— fEHES — Debt securities 192,853 - - 192,853
fird: 4 p TR Derivative financial instruments - 1,258,160 - 1,258,160
PAAFEERS A Financial assets designated at

Bk fair value through

ERVERE profit or loss:

— fEH I — Debt securities 1,380,124 1,241,990 - 2,622,114
At 2 RS Available-for-sale securities:

— fEH I — Debt securities 16,397,950 1,818,588 - 18,216,538

— MRS I & — Equity securities and

HEHESE investment fund 320,692 56,615 218,005 595,312
18,291,619 4,375,353 218,005 22,884,977
fafE Liabilities
fiitE & T H Derivative financial instruments - 1,681,457 - 1,681,457
PAAFE(EES Financial liabilities designated
Bk at fair value through
G A profit or loss - 513,328 - 513,328

- 2,194,785 - 2,194,785
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

A H The Group
H—)g oy = At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
o BPTH it BPTH wHT T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRZO—=4 At 31 December 2013
+=H=+—H
#HiE Assets
FIEEER®RZ
B Trading securities:
— BE% s — Debt securities 238,390 86,283 - 324,673
— IR I K — Equity securities and
BEHSE investment fund 393,089 - - 393,089
A 4 T H Derivative financial instruments = 545,572 = 545,572
PN B E 5 Financial assets designated at
Bk fair value through
BRUEE profit or loss:
— B s — Debt securities 641,672 2,201,200 — 2,842,872
At 2 RS Available-for-sale securities:
— BB — Debt securities 12,399,640 7,135,005 - 19,534,645
— RRER I K — Equity securities and
BE R investment fund 527,117 51,152 295,115 873,384
14,199,908 10,019,212 295,115 24,514,235
fafE Liabilities
ZHMRIE T2 A Trading liabilities 99,899 - - 99,899
A4 TR Derivative financial instruments = 899,615 = 899,615
PAAFAE(EES Financial liabilities designated
Bk at fair value through
4 B AR profit or loss = 559,565 - 559,565
99,899 1,459,180 - 1,559,079
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
e i W= it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$°000
B O—=4 At 31 December 2013

+=H=+—H
293 Assets
FHEREM®RZ

[ire 2 Trading securities:

— B ES — Debt securities 238,390 86,283 - 324,673
A4 4 A TR Derivative financial instruments = 545,572 = 545,572
PAAFEE S Financial assets designated at

Bk fair value through

SRVERE profit or loss:

— B S — Debt securities 641,672 2,201,200 - 2,842,872
At 2 SR Available-for-sale securities:

— B H — Debt securities 12,399,640 7,135,005 - 19,534,645

— RS 25 K — Equity securities and

Ei'g -8 investment fund 292,591 51,152 250,124 593,867
13,572,293 10,019,212 250,124 23,841,629
fifl Liabilities
e =t Derivative financial instruments = 899,615 = 899,615
PAAFEEREA Financial liabilities designated
Bk at fair value through
ot SR profit or loss - 559,565 - 559,565
= 1,459,180 - 1,459,180
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

TR E AR IELLA FEESIMER S The tables below analyse financial instruments not carried at fair value
Rt TR #e G EATEMERNEIRMEE at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy

GIHT into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
AL The Group
<975
Assets
EL R P e

Held-to-maturity securities

—O0—Il —0—=

2014 2013

T T

HKS$'000 HK$'000
E—E Level 1 5,648,201 6,507,184
B Level 2 262,293 452,472
5,910,494 6,959,656
YN i) The Bank
R
Assets
REIWZ &5
Held-to-maturity securities
—O0O—I —0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
g Level 1 5,193,844 6,156,652
g Level 2 204,865 329,228
5,398,709 6,485,880
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value

BUE measurements is as follows:
A H The Group
%
Assets
w it i 2 R 2R
— IR I I 4R A
Available-for-sale securities
— Equity securities and
investment fund
—O—m —O0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
w—H—H At 1 January 295,115 256,726
(E518) /7 W #5 AR AR AR RR A Total (losses)/gains recognised in
— B — Profit or loss (49,983) (25,372)
— HoAth 4 T 4R — Other comprehensive income 20,807 32,750
4= Purchases - 31,011
WT_HA=+—H At 31 December 265,939 295,115
Wt HA=+—HRANERE
HAEFBERFEEHBANZ Total losses for the year included in profit or
JEq 8 AA4H loss for assets held at 31 December (49,983) (25,372)

BT A=Zt—HRAREE -
HALIE AR AR
LAt 2 T Wi 2 A 22 WAL i AR

Total gains for the year included
in other comprehensive income
for assets held at 31 December

20,807 32,750
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2 4l B A PR (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 axhbEE R AMZ A TFHEME () 2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
ENE) The Bank
HE
Assets
CIREFiR =P e
— R RERS 25 R S 4

Available-for-sale securities
— Equity securities and
investment fund

—~O—mM —0==
2014 2013
BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
w—H—H At 1 January 250,124 242,946
(E548) Wi ts SA AR AR SR Total (losses)/gains recognised in
— H5 — Profit or loss (49,983) (25,372)
— HC At A T i A — Other comprehensive income 17,864 32,550
wt+—Hg=+—H At 31 December 218,005 250,124
RTZHA=1t—HIRFFAENERE »
HAaFEEREEEENZ Total losses for the year included in profit or
iRk loss for assets held at 31 December (49,983) (25,372)

A H=1+—HFFAIMNERE >  Total gains for the year included
AL HE TE 2 4F B HAh A T AR A in other comprehensive income
2 Wi g A for assets held at 31 December 17,864 32,550
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable
inputs used at year end in measuring financial instruments categorised as

AABIER
N ¢ 3
AP R R
9 SRR
BEAAT B Fair value
B B iR measurement
ik 2] Significant IHEF-5) sensitivity to
Valuation unobservable HiE Weighted unobservable
techniques inputs Range average inputs
A EZ #5 Available-for-sale  FAREHE  ERABITEE  847%-12%  949% JERG e 4 B
FRhERE ) R BUE R4 securities: Equity  Discounted Risk-adjusted (2013: (2013: 11.24%)  HyE K ETH
securities and cash flow discount rate 8.12% — 12%) SIBATE(E
investment fund Y Bk

FAA AT PR A ) B R B A P AT fT

BCIB 197 2

S TR A-FEER S TR T KA
AR T & > RS B RAR YR 0 Bk
Slf: 48 A [] T HL 1 ] B 5 AT T 35 5 o 16
B SCRF > AN AS R DA AT IBLES T 35 Wi 7y 2
B o T RIURAE A HEE LT BEL0%
o AR S AT AT R AR R

BT -

reasonably possibly alternatives

of the fair value.

Significant increase
in risk-adjusted
discount rate
would result in a
lower fair value

Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to

The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are
not supported by prices from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument and are not based on observable market data. The
following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonable possible
alternative assumptions due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10%
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

P The Group
il 2 Y W i Y o A A T i i 1 5 28
Effect on other Effect on other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
AR5 8) A5 8y Rk x ) AF| 2 E)
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
—O0—M —O0—NH —0—= —0—=
2014 2014 2013 2013
BT L T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B Assets
At 2 Available-for-sale securities 26,594 (26,594) 29,512 (29,512)
. NF) The Bank
At 2 T WL i 2B A A T Wi i Y 2
Effect on other Effect on other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
A5 8) A F) 5 B A 2 E) NIE =2 )
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
—O0—MH —O0—Iy —0—= —0—=
2014 2014 2013 2013
-3 T T BT i ST
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
j2gr Assets
Al 2 3 Available-for-sale securities 21,801 (21,801) 25,012 (25,012)
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(a) B IAE e i

AAE [ 2 D4 AR L B AL LA REAS
FLUE o 3B 990 E s 15 B 75 e B0 Wi 4
b ACSE 5 R A B R A
BHMEZHAZBHERE > £ REMRRT
5% I 0 E A8 A B R > AR R AL 2 B
o EHUR ] RE AR A AT B MR AR R
A AL R 2 RN 2R BE A A
Rk s > m A ) [ P A 1 L
B 2 B A A B o A RIS A
TR R B LR 2 T A A A A B R K
JEL B o P ) PR O A o B BB B
WAL 1R ZBLAT AL o %8 (A LB R AR
B4 UL B 1A SRR B B ] 109 07 ik B ABGROHS
Yo WA > LABD TR X BR AR
Rz R o WETRANRREGEED
B B B (EL Y A

(b) Sk TH Z 2P 1E

7 % 8 I 85 VLA i M ) < T L DL
Trk Lt HAFEE - ERAMAETT
B (PR RY) % e - fEAE > 3%
S5 J7 3578 8 SR 22 B v 1 I B A+ B
BN LD S WA o (o AE S
I R KRB TG o TER T2
A P B I R AT 2 M
{H 50 d W 0 5 B e B (B4R A C e xe
S F) > PoE B B BAR o BERE b
JEAEH — Lo fli 5t - BB BREHH R
R a B HRE M TR A FE
fH -

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on
a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers
in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Changes in the assumptions used would affect the
reported impairment allowances on loans and advances.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management
to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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HUBTIRE > A SR B AR (AR R w4
B PR AT B A 355 AT IR 5 LA
B8 S AT AN E B R L
BN WA HATE L REEERE - B
P~ HEEBHAMETEH 2R ER

Bles -
(@) HESWE %

A AR R A A i YR RIS 395E 4R 5
AT 1B A S A < A [ E S PR
i I 17 2R & Al E 2> BT 2 E R
I5 o RO FHOT AT AR B ORI B o AE
E Ha% 55 F By > A 42 A A LR AT %
SHRERIM A E W REES o BRIEF
GRAE DU (i /B PRt 21 399 i 8 4 5 A
A AT RBBE) - a0 LE A GE A %
SERERFRINY > QRIS 2 2
BOE R S A R R Ry
HOwR A 2o - Fik > Z58E
GG P AE EL T I 8 845 AR 51 R

(e) BeE WA P A Z Al wt

PRS2 NV B AR ST e A
(EL R 2 2> B T 355 1 LA B BT Al 5 o 7%
(B E 7% 58— 7 355 2 B 5 e 1 %
ESZEEE T H RS EE M
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S T 2 A A A A A o R AP R
it IR M BCEAGETT % - MR T
WA AT E o &S KRR
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A% > B LLRUBLE B i 2 T iRk R T
LABEAAL o st i (E R BT R 2 £ 2R
BCEAE  PTIREI R & R - BEORART
EHHSZEN - =28 EBERER
2 Lo B TR 2 W E R o

BEAh > ik (8 RIS € LUK B T 35 1 AR 3t
[ BTG H AL S s 2% > i
L a% 55 W) SE A B A TR 3R G B Y 22
T~ M~ 2C 5y B TRE ] ~ T A Y e ) K
LA A 20 A R 2

ARART R A AE B B RS A BT s 2
HBLCEY RN AP EE -

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy (Continued)

(c¢) Impairment of available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity
securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities are impaired.
This determination requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Group evaluates among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fair value of an investment has declined; and the credit quality of and
near-term business outlook for the investee or issuer, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flows.

(d) Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances —
for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale as such class
is deemed to have been tainted. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost.

(e) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis. The valuation has considered a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset or by selling it to another
market participant who will use the asset in its highest and best use. The
fair values are assessed based on the capitalisation of the net income for
the properties using Investment Method of Valuation. The contractual
rental income and the expected future market rental income after
allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements are capitalised
at observed market yields. The principal assumptions underlying the
estimation of market value are those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods; maintenance
requirements; and observed market yields.

In addition, the valuations are also assessed by reference to comparable
market transactions as reported in the relevant market at similar
locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values of
the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location difference,
building age, time of transaction, shop frontage and pedestrian flow, etc.

Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy (Continued)

() Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under
insurance contracts is one of the Group’s critical accounting estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of loss
events that have been incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) to the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of IBNR claims is
generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim events is available. IBNR claims may not be
apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gives rise to
the claim has happened.

Estimation of the ultimate cost of certain liability claims can be a
complex process. There are several sources of uncertainty that need
to be considered in the estimating of the liability that the Group will
ultimately pay for such claims. In particular, the claims arising from the
employees’ compensation and other liability policies can be longer in
tail and difficult to estimate. The Group has appointed an independent
actuary to estimate the claim liabilities using established actuarial
methodologies. The methodologies are statistical in nature and can be
affected by various factors. The more significant factors that can affect
the reliability of the liability estimation include jurisprudence that can
broaden the intent and scope coverage of the protections offered in the
insurance contracts issued by the Group, the extent to which actual claim
results differ from historical experience and the time lag between the
occurrence of the event and the report of such claim to the Group.

(g) Staff retirement scheme

Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future pension obligations as
set out in note 13. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold
true in the future. They are reviewed periodically and are updated where
necessary.

(h) Provisions
Judgment has been exercised in determining the amount which may be

payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal claims arising
from the sale of investment products.
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4 M 2B A 4 Interest income
—O—M —~O0—=
2014 2013
T T oT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JiE A7 3R 4 e A7 ik [A] 2E Cash and balances with banks 2,011,048 1,584,698
wHERE Investments in securities
— bEHisHE — listed 537,702 492,363
— F EHAHE — unlisted 223,341 171,513
K Advances to customers 4,784,121 3,517,191
HoAth Others 409,000 281,244
7,965,212 6,047,009
) S % 46 Bl S AN A B R Interest income is analysed by types of financial assets as follows:
—O0—MH —0—=
2014 2013
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
KN FEEREA Financial assets that are not at
Ha R &Rl & = fair value through profit or loss 7,464,252 5,673,544
FEHE g2 s Trading securities 5,056 21,714
DA P E S Financial assets designated at
B iRy SREE fair value through profit or loss 112,542 73,933
F R 15 4 Interest rate swaps 383,362 277,818

7,965,212 6,047,009

BLFETFE R B A N FTHA W E S EHrdnd#E  Included in interest income is unwinding of discount on impaired assets
[a] 1) 5 Ui A #E 562,303,0000C (O — = of HK$2,303,000 (2013: HK$1,756,000).
4 #E1,756,0007C) ©
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5 FlE 2 H 5 Interest expense

—O0— —o—=

2014 2013
ol wT T
HK$’000 HK$°000

Deposits and balances from bank and

EEXEF S E-IuP deposits from customers 3,079,334 2,245,710
IR LN R EE R Certificates of deposit issued which are

AT 2 AT wholly repayable within 5 years 428,035 287,436
AT 2 % A R 0A Subordinated debt issued 163,314 176,762
FAt Others 397,302 290,440

4,067,985 3,000,348

LSS B A R AT N Interest expense is analysed by types of financial liabilities as follows:
—0—N —o—=
2014 2013

T T o
HKS$°000 HK$°000

KU FEEZEA Financial liabilities that are not

Ei=En =K at fair value through profit or loss 3,660,757 2,701,076
5 RIET 2 Afk Trading liabilities _ 1
PAASHEE RS A Financial liabilities designated

15 5 AR 2 4 Al B at fair value through profit or loss 13,948 14,773
) 2 45 HH G 4 Interest rate swaps 393,280 284,498

4,067,985 3,000,348
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6 M7 & M a3 6 Net fees and commission income
—O0O—Iy —O0=—=
2014 2013
T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
s 2 B AR 4 e A Fees and commission income
5 R 40 M BB RS Securities brokerage and investment services 348,876 233,932
EIRSETS Credit cards 153,368 130,388
ARG HEERZ
R 5 2 K A 4 Credit related fees and commission 212,748 247,021
g5 mE Trade finance 58,993 32,929
HAhZEE SR1T S Other retail banking services 11,782 14,716
HoAtb 5 2t A Other fee income 89,140 90,538
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 874,907 749,524
P25 2 B A 4 5 Fees and commission expenses
EIRSE S Credit cards (119,611) (97,378)
T Ath AR s 2 S Other fee expenses (23,515) (22,027)
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 (143,126) (119,405)
R 5 e K AR i A Net fees and commission income 731,781 630,119
Hr Of which:
FH JE R AF B sk Net fees and commission income, other than
i 5 A A E S amounts included in determining the
8 145 W 2 4 Rl 2 B effective interest rate, arising from financial
B T AR 2 IR B assets or financial liabilities that are
A F A O $E F1E not held for trading nor designated
FHAEBAIR Y &%) at fair value through profit or loss
— MR AR A A — fees and commission income 302,173 310,287
— RS B A 4 S — fees and commission expenses (99,970) (86,338)
AREMERER T AL Net fees and commission income on trust and
PG 2 s s A other fiduciary activities where the
ZRLEGEEZ Group holds or invests on behalf of
R 765 2 B A 45 Ui its customers
— R 2 KA & A — fees and commission income 11,622 10,586

— JRHs & B A 4 S — fees and commission expenses (1,055) (489)
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claims

7 Insurance operating income and charge for insurance

~O0—y —0O==

2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
PREBEEEWA Insurance operating income
A Gross
AR 2 B A AR Gross insurance premium written 745,239 776,910
A AT P e e 2 ol Change in unearned premium provision 31,499 347
ST ZRBEE A Premium revenue arising from insurance
P EE A 2 AR B A contracts issued 776,738 777,257
SHEPEIN Reinsurance
o 2 AR Reinsurance premium outward (114,962) (131,039)
o R 2 AR 2 s Change in unearned premium provision (19,334) 18
CBEITZRBREHZ Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers arising
PRE WA T AR A from insurance contracts issued (134,296) (131,021)
&= SET ' UN Net earned premium income 642,442 646,236
N Commission income 55,157 14,017
HAthlse A Other income 1,287 1,305
4 32 S Commission expenses (98,140) (122,416)
600,746 539,142
PREEH E S (GERE) Charge for insurance claims (note)
Fag) Gross
CLAR AT R E Gross claims paid (309,532) (341,358)
EEHRzRE Bt Change in reported claims,
BREBHRZRKE K IBNR and other
LA B HEAf 2 D5 insurance provision (145,703) (109,166)
(455,235)  (450,524)
AR Reinsurance
Wi [l PR AR 2 R AE Claims recovered from reinsurers 25,121 34,195
CERZRE  C#E Change in reported claims,
BREHRZ RKEX IBNR and other
At R i A 2 s insurance provision 10,019 (1,009)
35,140 33,186
HRME S H Total claims incurred (420,095) (417,338)
(- E ST UN Net insurance operating income 180,651 121,804

AR B REH IR RBEB T Note:
RIEZEEFEEEARZ THAR

HIBASZ -

Charge for insurance claims represents net claims incurred on the Group’s
insurance business and the related claims settlement expenses.
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8 WA 5 W i 8 Net trading gain
—O—| —O0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FEEE R B #E 575 Net (loss)/gain from
(E548) W as trading securities (1,088) 26,954
DAAHEES AR IRZ Net gain arising from financial instruments
4l T AR designated at fair value through profit or loss 20,773 2,025
A4 T HL i Net (loss)/gain arising from derivative
(B58) s financial instruments (8,628) 40,915
SN HEE B I A Net gain from foreign exchange trading 371,889 308,803
382,946 378,697
9 H & WA 9 Other operating income
—O—I —0—=
2014 2013
BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
B B A Dividend income
— bR — Listed equity securities 20,512 18,742
— Ik b R RERE 55 — Unlisted equity securities 5,872 4,987
BEYEZHEWA
Wk B 2P X Rental income from investment
#%532,000,0007T properties less direct outgoings
(CO—=4F: of HK$32,000,000
WEHE31,522,0007T) (2013: HK$31,522,000) 171,710 158,194
PR & 1 Ui o Net rental income on safe deposit boxes 34,211 32,735
i Hofth 4 T H 2 k%5 Net gain on disposal of other financial instruments 59,840 13,407
WA I 2 R 2 A R STk Recovery of other receivables previously written off 36,000 =
HoAth, Others 33,211 21,670
361,356 249,735
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10 B 10 Operating expenses
—O0O—Iy —O0=—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
NF2H Staff costs
— Hr4 M HAMANFEEH — Salaries and other costs 903,560 795,239
— B RAE A 37 H — Retirement benefit costs 51,019 54,832
[ e K st sc s Premises and equipment expenses,
NEFEPTE excluding depreciation
— WM A& — Rental of premises 81,810 66,891
— HoAt — Others 63,208 71,260
e Depreciation
— HAh ) 3 Skt — Other properties and
(FERE30) equipment (note 30) 123,396 111,249
— & i (5ERE29) — Leasehold land (note 29) 4,462 4,545
J 45 T SES Advertising and business promotion 50,878 46,512
6 B i A Electronic data processing 86,481 107,391
T % 58 Postage and communications 44,313 38,475
SCEL R BN Printing and stationery 14,958 14,161
A2 BRI Auditors’ remuneration 5,314 4,950
7K B2 Water and electricity 21,612 16,934
e YV ] Legal and professional fee 114,970 105,312
s REBRL 4 K in Business, withholding tax and surcharges 131,013 83,549
N g Insurance 14,519 12,070
H 25 A B 2 Securities related expenses 9,309 8,268
HiAte Others 71,185 68,177
1,792,007 1,609,815
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11 4R & B Z WAE R K 11 Impairment losses on financial assets

—O0— —o—=

2014 2013
ol wT T
HK$’000 HK$°000

WER K Impairment losses on
— B S B — loans and advances and accrued interest 59,258 38,305
— nfit i Y — available-for-sale securities 45,728 25,942
104,986 64,247
(a) Bk B HE ST A BT AR 1 2% (a) Impairment losses on loans and advances and accrued interest
—O0O—I —0—=
2014 2013
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
118 A B A Individually assessed
— — new allowances 24,656 29,541
— H [ — releases (21,767) (45,125)
— s [E] — recoveries (3,376) (12,444)
(487) (28,028)
e Collectively assessed
— By — new allowances 88,837 78,529
— 3wl — releases (27,485) (10,819)
— Uiz [] — recoveries (1,607) (1,377)
59,745 66,333
TR 4 2= 15 HIBR Net charge to the income statement 59,258 38,305
(b) W Bt 558 27 Z W AAL1E 2 (b) Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities
—O0—mKm —0—=
2014 2013
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000
AR A Al Individually assessed

— i — new allowances 45,728 25,942
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12 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to directors of the
Bank during the year are as follows:

—O0O—Iy —0==

2014 2013

T T

HKS$’000 HK$’000

e Fees 930 797
i > (EAL N H A RS Salaries, bonus and other allowances 16,318 16,325
B RAE AL 2K Retirement benefits contribution 1,121 1,121
18,369 18,243

13 13 B 2B pic e A1t 31

SR Iy AR AT 2 W B R T BB AR
KA EHE o 55 B AT — ] BRI A W) 2
B —HEH e H o o IHIK AR
RAE A # > Hop E R E (A5 5
[Zal &) LA — 8 5 % 18 A 5t 35 4
Fe— M 57 7€ A akwt BB Ay - HoAb A —
TE % O AR AR ARET B~ W IE 2 1 SME
BT i 2 558 ket # B —TH A iR A 4
FE# o LA A 2 78 ik 52 B 8 2T A
— PR LR > 20wt B0 A E R
AR BB IR A o

TE 5% w3 0 5 KR b > AR
R TR E B 2 BB M A FH10%
A R o A 48 [ 3 5% 5T #) A E i K
Wy R e N B Lk 1 28
A BRI i B R A ) o SE KRR R 4
T D o AR FE B 2 S 3k 4
BH W H59,515,0000C (O — —4F @ i
#6,140,0007T) ° AL H > KREHZ
i A 2K AT A 2 WA A 2Rk 2 Ak Sk 4 AR
57 91,591,000 (O — =4F : gk
1,816,0007%) o FA 445 H - Sl 4% 8 £ fit
K(ZO—=4F : #) -

AL [ 3 50 B AR B 2 RO R
o il e A A wT BV B > AR IR K
BHHZABABZS%EIE > mARA
BRI DL #530,00000 (3L H #15 — O
—AERNH—H) £ LR o

TAE N 3B 5% 55 A A E Ry 2 5T E
o 4 w1 ) 2 Ak SR 5 v 639,412,000
It (O—=4 : #%36,701,0007C) °

13 Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates five staff retirement schemes for the staff of the
Bank and an MPF scheme for the staff of a subsidiary of the Bank.
The five staff retirement schemes comprise a principal scheme (the
“Scheme”) which includes a defined benefit (“DB”) section and a
defined contribution (“DC”) section, a defined benefit pension scheme,
two defined contribution schemes for overseas employees and an MPF
scheme. All new Hong Kong employed staff members who join the Bank
are offered a one-off choice between the DC section of the Scheme and
the MPF scheme.

Under the DC section of the Scheme, the Group is required to contribute
10% of the monthly salary of the members who opted for the DC
arrangement. The Group’s contributions to the DC section of this Scheme
may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totaling HK$9,515,000 (2013: HK$6,140,000) were utilised
during the year. The unutilised forfeited contributions at the year end
amounted to HK$1,591,000 (2013: HK$1,816,000) which are available
to reduce future contributions. No contributions were payable at the year
end (2013: Nil).

The Group’s contributions to the MPF schemes are based on 5% of
the monthly relevant income of each employee up to a maximum
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (effective from 1 June 2014) in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance.

The contributions to schemes with defined contribution arrangements and
the MPF schemes during the year amounted to HK$39,412,000 (2013:
HK$36,701,000) in aggregate.
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13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

For the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme (collectively referred to as the “Plan”), the contributions are
determined based on periodic valuations by qualified actuaries of the
assets and liabilities of the Plan. The Plan provides benefits based on
members’ final salary. The costs are solely funded by the Group.

The Plan is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, and has been granted with MPF Exemption by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The Group has an unconditional
right to the surplus of the Plan. Asset ceiling and minimum funding
requirements do not apply to the Plan.

The Plan was established under a trust arrangement. The key
responsibilities of the trustees are to ensure that the Plan is administered
in accordance with the trust deed and to act on behalf of all members
impartially, prudently and in good faith.

The Plan exposes the Group to the following key risks:

Investment risk

Positive investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Plan
assets and therefore improve the Plan’s financial position, whilst
negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The assets of the Plan are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities,
bonds and cash, covering major geographical locations around the world.
The diversification of asset classes and geographical location reduces the
concentration of risk associated with the Plan’s investments.

Interest rate risk

The defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate based
on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond yields will increase the
amount of obligation.

Salary risk

Salary increases that are higher than assumed at the valuation will
increase the defined benefit obligation.

Inflation risk

Pension in payment under the defined benefit pension scheme may be
increased, at the discretion of the Group, to reflect all or part of the
cost-of-living increase in Hong Kong. The higher-than-assumed increases
in pensions will increase the defined benefit obligation.
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% S R AREE B B ) — R 2 M BN (E R
ZO—WMETZA=ZT—H > HHEER
HREAEH N TBARAR > HEE R
T aEe ya QK RIEHHES
FRITA & r B8 AT 2 s e w T e I SE 19 9%
YEFEAR - 5% 5 R IRFTE 2 L 48 A1 26 75
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13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)
Mortality risk

A prolonged pension in payment due to longer life expectancy of the
pensioners will increase the defined benefit obligation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was performed in accordance
with HKAS 19 issued by the HKICPA at 31 December 2014 by Towers
Watson Hong Kong Limited, a professional actuarial firm, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong. The
present values of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost
of the Plan are calculated based on the projected unit credit method. At
the valuation date, the Plan had a funding level of 122% (2013: 136%).

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014 are analysed as follows:

—~0—MH —o—=
2014 2013
‘T BT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000
EASELINGE () -Vl
INFAE(E Fair value of Plan assets 483,382 512,826
C 2 AEEFFEH 2 B(H  Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation (395,050) (377,200)
T BA TS IR DL 2% TR B R Net asset recognised in the statement
B E R AR of financial position 88,332 135,626

Lh_E AR 2 7 I AE 2 1 — 4R AR A i
(] o 10 I < B AN 7 B BELOR AR+ L A
A IE WSO R 2 B RO B B o R R A
Z M B B R A ) s £ 3t LA B R AR
RS A wh AN T S L - IR —O—
TG 5 R E B RAE A F B AR b A

K o
HE_O—MWER_O—=4+"H=

F— Bk 2 R R AR 81 2
i W B

A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from
the amounts receivable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in
actuarial assumptions and market conditions. No contribution to the Plan
is expected to be paid in 2015.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment or settlement impact for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

—O0— —o—=

2014 2013
il wT T
HK$’000 HK$°000

ik 5 B A Current service cost (14,306) (18,358)
AR A Net interest income 2,699 227
AL HETE AR R AR AR A Net expense for the year included in

A 2 S R AR retirement benefit costs (11,607) (18,131)

BE_O—WE+_H=+—HILF
B sZ S IRIREN B G E 2 B R A
M1.849,0007T (O — =4F : [a] 4% /Ay uk
#53.699,0007C) ©

4 AR T 2 B AT

The actual loss on Plan assets for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
HK$1,849,000 (2013: return of HK$53,699,000).

The movements in the defined benefit obligation during the year are as
follows:

—0—M —0—=

2014 2013
T ERT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000

R—H—HZHE Present value of obligation

fE A B B at 1 January 377,200 478,205
AR5 A< Current service cost 14,306 18,358
FiLE AR Interest cost 7,642 3,214
B AR A Actual benefits paid (27,595) (61,017)
A BRI BEE Actuarial loss/(gain) due to

1 (U ts) liability experience 11,574 (15,621)
W 5 {1 5 38l BT ) Actuarial loss/(gain) due to

KA EER () financial assumption changes 11,923 (45,939)
BrZHA=t—Hx

B B AR R 2B Actual obligation at 31 December 395,050 377,200

Roo—ME+—"H=+—H &:t#l
2 B AR A BBy S e 4w FER AR FT ) (Y
B 78 A I SR 2 0 HE - 35 47 48 1A 1 49 il
FT.64F (O — =4 : 7.64F) M2.84F
(ZO—=4 1 3.14F) »

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31
December 2014 is 7.6 years (2013: 7.6 years) and 2.8 years (2013: 3.1
years) for the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme respectively.
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13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The movements in the fair value of the Plan assets during the year are as

o follows:
—O0O—Iy —0==
2014 2013
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
H—H— B3R Fair value of Plan assets
FHEE E 2 A EE at 1 January 512,826 520,144
FLE WA Interest income 10,341 3,441
T RZ SRR B
FILEWALISNZ (Loss)/return on Plan assets
(E518) 1] ¥ other than interest income (12,190) 50,258
B AR A S Actual benefits paid (27,595) (61,017)
mt+_HA=+—H%% Fair value of Plan assets
BIRGH B EE 2 AFEE at 31 December 483,382 512,826

%R B E BT

The major categories of the Plan assets are as follows:

—O0—I —o0—=
2014 2013

T T I0

HK$’000 % HKS$°000 %
MRS Equities 312,701 64.7 344,755 67.2
EEitie:s Bonds 78,632 16.3 84,995 16.6
W4 Cash 92,049 19.0 83,076 16.2
k) Total 483,382 100.0 512,826 100.0

RZo—MEFTZA=Z+T—H  ZHR
IR B 2 B LG AR IRAE AT 2 A K A
{E#EH64,951,0007C (— O —=4F :
66,469,0007C) °

TERPA IR T 3R < ZERE BRI T

At 31 December 2014, the amount of the Plan assets includes deposits

with the Bank of HK$64,951,000 (2013: HK$66,469,000).

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation are as

follows:
—O—| —0—=
2014 2013
% %
ER Discount rate
— Wl B 2 AR AR — DB section of the Scheme 1.7 2.1
— FE AR ARG — Defined benefit pension scheme 0.9 0.75
wZnt #l 2 FLUE R A 2 Long-term average rate of salary increase
= O 2 35 B - e for the DB section of the Scheme 5.0 5.0
FE fa ARG E 2 Pension increase rate for the defined
AR AR 1 R benefit pension scheme 3.0 3.0
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13 Bk BB Ok Al st 30 (4 13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

DIF A FERE/REM A BTG HH  The below analysis shows the effect on the defined benefit obligation
RTZA=1T—HMWAREWAFERE  as at 31 December as a result of reasonably possible changes in the

BT - significant actuarial assumptions:
B4 25l 2k B T 258l 1
Increase of Decrease of
25 basis points 25 basis points
—~0—Iy —~0—= —~0—Iy —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

WwWToU W ToL  WWTo W TOC
HK$°000  HK$°000 HK$000  HK$’000

mEE Discount rate
— ZahE 2 A — DB section of
A R A5y the Scheme (7,534) (7,317) 7,785 7,564
— S AR A — Defined benefit
B AR E pension scheme (23) (28) 24 29
wZnt #l 2 FEfE A Long-term average rate of
TR Z = HAF-1 salary increase for the
B Tt DB section of the Scheme 7,740 7,547 (7,532) (7,340)
FEMEFIEIRFT# 2 Pension increase rate for the
R 4 482 defined benefit pension scheme 24 29 (23) (28)

bl A OB EE A AT ROE A AR A2 ) The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes
MR PR > INAF % B M B in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take
% - into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

TR ZERARFH DT AWK E  The following table sets out the expected benefit payments (including
i % w3 B T EH AR A S A &% (1484 benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary)

wh AR AR B RS B i Jag 2 A ) from the Plan based on the adopted actuarial assumptions:
T A S A B
Expected benefit payments

—~O0—M —0—=
2014 2013
BT T
18 H 1% B 45 8 Number of years after valuation date HK$’000 HK$’000
14F 1 year 22,653 22,740
24F 2 years 24,597 27,086
34 3 years 41,524 26,713
44 4 years 43,918 40,162
54 5 years 32,858 44,539
62 104F 6 to 10 years 174,505 168,420

R 104F Over 10 years 275,654 295,807
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14 Income tax

(a) Taxation charged in the consolidated income statement represents:

—O0— —o—=

2014 2013
il wT T
HK$’000 HK$°000

A BRI - Current taxation:
— FHAE B — Hong Kong profits tax 441,231 339,603
— Over provision of taxation
— 1 4 R B R iR in respect of prior years (229) (131)
441,002 339,472
— HAIMBIIAE — Overseas taxation 208,593 136,187
ARIERLIH - Deferred taxation:
—AREYEFH — Relating to the origination and
B A S i (] reversal of temporary differences 9,197 13,129
658,792 488,788

B Vs R 15 B O H A 4F BE Al 5 I ST B s )
PAFEZ16.5% (O — =4F : 16.5%) &t
B o Mg HMBLIE ) He A AR BEAG FRE B
I A A 42 8 SE 75 Fr 76 Hh 354738 ) 2 B o

(b) A5 1 A7 B B B i i ) - Bl

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year is calculated at
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

(b) The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the

TR 2 BRI A 2 BB 2 theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
ZRMT Kong as follows:
—~O0—m Z0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Rt il s A Profit before taxation 3,821,070 3,081,888

PIBLZ16.5% (—.O—=4F : Calculated at a taxation rate

16.5%) wHH of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 630,477 508,512
AN B2 S Tax effect of expenses not

BRIHZ R deductible for taxation purposes 13,682 9,773
T AR Z A Tax effect of income not

HIFiIH subject to taxation (37,768) (65,906)

Effect of different taxation

B A 5] 5 AN [R] Bl 2R 2 5 28 rates in other tax jurisdictions 54,191 28,941
T 4 R YR AR i Over provision of taxation in respect of prior years (229) (131)
R RE BT 1R 2 R Effect of unrecognised tax loss (2,046) (224)
HoAth Others 485 7,823
P g Bi Income tax 658,792 488,788

147



148

Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAHRA R —O—MFEFR

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

14 Frfa Bt (4)

14 Income tax (Continued)

(c) HoAth 2= il 25 B & AT T3 8L (c) The income tax effects relating to components of other
2 comprehensive income are as follows:
Z0—y —0—=
2014 2013
Bt i 44 BEeHE  BlEeHE BifE&H
Before- P - Net-of- Before- Jir 3B Net-of-
tax Income tax tax Income tax
amount tax amount amount tax amount
W wHTx WWTx W%t WETo w¥To
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Surplus on revaluation
HEEEZHG of bank premises - - - 16,926 = 16,926
A R S Changes in fair value of
N TE available-for-sale securities 141,991 (12,483) 129,508 4,014 5,799 9,813
Transfer to income statement
Rt SR RF on disposal of
YN EoFS available-for-sale securities 17,713) - 17,713) (1,369) — (1,369)
Transfer to income statement on
AR RS ERF  impairment of available-for-sale
LN ETE securities 45,728 - 45,728 25,942 - 25,942
WEILI 25 /A 7] 2 [ Share of associate’s reserves 10 - 10 (28) - (28)
JRE A s ] 5 A Share of jointly controlled
TR entities’ reserves 1,866 - 1,866 (149) = (149)
PR 33 S AT e Exchange difference on translation
WJE A 7 R of financial statements of
i M Y R 5, 538 overseas branches and subsidiaries (8,328) - (8,328) 25,609 = 25,609
FE R 2 Actuarial gains on defined
A E benefit scheme (35,687) 5,888 (29,799) 111,818 (18,450) 93,368
Other comprehensive income
A A HC A A T for the year 127,867 (6,595) 121,272 182,763 (12,651) 170,112
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J% RO AL 5 A H R A U 2,829,624,000
JCII IR ARATIR R RN (O — =4 ¢
H#e2 498.616,0007C) ©

HK$2,498,616,000).

15 Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Bank to the extent of HK$2,829,624,000 (2013:

16 G & REHE & 16 Cash and short-term funds
A 4 N F)
The Group The Bank
—~O—Iy —O0—= —~0—Iy —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
T ik oo BT 3 ATH ki o I
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
[EAT 4 RAEE 2 Cash and balances with banks 2,079,752 2,587,991 1,959,537 2,235,733
T2 Y8R 47 Balances with central bank 11,670,864 6,545,030 11,670,864 6,545,030
45 Wi A7 i R] 26 Money at call and short notice 20,409,322 14,795,937 20,002,210 14,764,953
34,159,938 23,928,958 33,632,611 23,545,716

M_Oo—ME+_H=+—H > A&EH
Ko A KT 5% A1 B A 3k 7 B ) A0 A IR
B8 AT 45 17 B s 52.188,995,0007T (—

O— =4 : #%2 503,597,0007C) °

17 [A) 3 & W1 B Bk

The Group’s and the Bank’s balances with central bank that are
subject to exchange control and regulatory restrictions amounted to
HK$2,188,995,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$2,503,597,000).

17 Placements with and loans and advances to banks

A4 H Y NF)

The Group The Bank
—O0—MH —0—= —O0—mHm —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
W T T T L e T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
[7] 2E 2 Ak Placements with banks 8,516,163 5,114,114 8,279,361 4,727,908
EES=Ee Gross loans and advances to banks 12,863,686 17,850,310 12,863,686 17,803,787
21,379,849 22,964,424 21,143,047 22,531,695

149



1 5 0 Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAHRA R —O—MFEFR

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 FEREMiZ 2 # %5 18 Trading securities
A4 N}
The Group The Bank
—~O—lM —O0—= —O0O—Iy —Z0=—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

il T il T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

INEE At fair value:
(0 Tee Debt securities
— & Ll — Listed in Hong Kong 192,853 113,423 192,853 113,423
— g4 BTl — Listed outside Hong Kong - 24,969 - 24,969
—F b — Unlisted - 186,281 - 186,281
192,853 324,673 192,853 324,673
R HE G 7 Equity securities
— & bl — Listed in Hong Kong 789,595 159,135 - -
— g4 BTl — Listed outside Hong Kong - 233,931 - =
789,595 393,066 - -
JRREHR & B Equity investment fund
— FHius bl — Listed in Hong Kong 52 23 - -
52 23 - -

982,500 717,762 192,853 324,673
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18 FHEHEMEZ &I (4) 18 Trading securities (Continued)
A H
The Group
~—O0—mH —0—=
2014 2013

il T
HK$°000 HK$’000

Y NF)
The Bank
—0—Iy ZO0—=
2014 2013
T % o BTH
HK$’000 HK$’000

Included within

EFS B I debt securities are:
Bl 5 (EL15 5N E Treasury bills (including
HAB TR Exchange Fund Bills) - 99,998 - 99,998
H At 7 75 Other debt securities 192,853 224,675 192,853 224,675
192,853 324,673 192,853 324,673
FHEEER®RZ S - HBITAL - Trading securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
A 4 .
The Group The Bank
—~O0—I —0—= —~O0—M —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

W T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000

wHTT W TC
HKS$°000 HK$°000

Central governments and

Hh L BUR B SR AT central banks 1,599 213,421 1,599 213,421

OB Public sector entities 65 5 - -
Banks and other financial

SRAT AN H At £ Al A institutions 788,923 43,357 - -

12 Corporate entities 191,913 460,979 191,254 111,252

982,500 717,762 192,853 324,673
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19 A4 T H 19 Derivative financial instruments

TGS TEE R A S TR K&E  The following is a summary of the notional or contractual amounts,
BRESALEZ ZR/IAEHEH - A fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of each significant type of

1R B A5 B R bE 4 derivatives, without taking into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements:
A E R AR AT The Group and the Bank
Y APRIE Y AT
&R A Fair values AUATE Fair values
Notional/ Notional/
contractual 243 fiff  contractual g A
amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets  Liabilities
Z—O—lW ZO0—l ZO—l =ZO0—= Z0—= Z0—=
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013

BWTL EWTx EWTx  EWTr EWTr BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000  HKS°000  HK$000  HK$000

FEEEMEZ
fii TH Derivatives held for trading
HMESH) Exchange rate contracts
wEHEH Forward contracts 25,858,821 214,146 188,393 11,684,194 52,046 46,601
5 i 1 Currency swaps 41,535,422 359,866 821,424 39,687,165 129,025 512,428
Cross currency interest
RS rate swaps 9,400,522 667,641 657,092 8478162 330232 311,105
T Options written 18,703 - 146 37,747 = 163
YN L Options purchased 21,112 175 - 61,214 247 =
76,834,580 1,241,828 1,667,055 59,948,482 511,550 870,297
FIREH Interest rate contracts
| e f Interest rate swaps 4,439,910 810 6,090 321,188 4,799 7,122
RS Equity contracts
T Options written 36,761 - 308 116,240 = 2,825
Nl Options purchased 36,761 308 - 116,240 2,825 -
73,522 308 308 232,480 2,825 2,825
Derivatives managed in
DA conjunction with financial
i ABERZ instruments designated at
SHIRZ fair value through
kTR profit or loss
FEEH Interest rate contracts
| Interest rate swaps 3,125,169 15,214 8,004 3,399,977 26,398 19,371

84,473,181 1,258,160 1,681,457 63,902,127 545,572 899,615
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HAXSH ERHRTHE AEIRS S
% 55 15 8 BT A Y B R TR - i
Fofth 55 52 5 T3 A A pp A 4R B 2 T 3
JEB o R EE K AREEZ 5 o

WETHZAHEFABRRER AR
TIN5 8 > WAREZEBEARAD -
TR T 85 A 2~ Bl 0 i R (R A% DB > AT
ETRARERAN (BE) SR (A
) - fiEEmMERE AR AV HE
KR AT B A BRI -

19 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The trading transactions are mainly positions arising from the execution
of trade orders from customers or transactions taken to hedge these
positions. The other trading transactions are used to hedge the
Group’s own exposure to market risks as part of its asset and liability
management.

The contractual amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and they
do not represent amounts at risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity prices relative
to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets
and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

AR H R AT
The Group and the Bank
—O—m —~0—=
2014 2013
‘T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000

(EREN g e ] Credit risk weighted amount

AN 4 Exchange rate contracts 1,372,537 698,165
R A4 Interest rate contracts 11,521 18,983
JEHE A %) Equity contracts 1,761 5,743
1,385,819 722,891

{5 £ By b B < U AR AR A T CERAT
(CEA) BLAD WEHE > WS I HB
FRGEFZHULZE M THZE
JR B S o BT BRI AR ELEE 0%
2£150% °

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount depends on
the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of the
instrument. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%.
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20 PG ABEBRZ &M 20 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit

& or loss
AR M B AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—~O0—MH SO==
2014 2013
T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
N TAE(E At fair value:
B i Debt securities
— & b — Listed in Hong Kong 1,210,837 934,943
— s b — Listed outside Hong Kong 597,391 396,882
— b — Unlisted 813,886 1,511,047

2,622,114 2,842,872

PIAFEEFAEGRZ SRR » £ Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are

BTG analysed by issuer as follows:
A 5 R AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—0—I —o—=
2014 2013
BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
SRAT AN HoA < A A Banks and other financial institutions 680,536 641,672
12 Corporate entities 1,941,578 2,201,200

2,622,114 2,842,872
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21 Al it B 2 8 2

21 Available-for-sale securities

A 4 N}
The Group The Bank
—O—MM —O0—= —O—M —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

L T T

HEL i B BT T

HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
INABE At fair value:
B3 5 Debt securities
— s B — Listed outside Hong Kong 10,181,462 10,121,709 10,181,462 10,121,709
— Fs b — Listed in Hong Kong 817,805 139,413 817,805 139,413
— Lk — Unlisted 7,217,271 9,273,523 7,217,271 9,273,523
18,216,538 19,534,645 18,216,538 19,534,645
JEHE RS 55 Equity securities
— Fus b — Listed in Hong Kong 523,706 440,135 226,650 210,446
—JE kT — Unlisted 363,092 376,218 346,472 362,279
886,798 816,353 573,122 572,725
JRER: G A2 Equity investment fund
— & b — Listed in Hong Kong 25,294 25,980 22,190 21,142
— bl — Unlisted 31,314 31,051 - -
56,608 57,031 22,190 21,142
19,159,944 20,408,029 18,811,850 20,128,512
A PN F)
The Group The Bank
—O0—N —0—= —0—NH —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
i T i BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BRSO Included within debt securities are:
A 2 ks Certificates of deposit held with
FERFIBH remaining maturity of:
——fHAL EZ=MA - 1-3 months - 232,072 - 232,072
— =AM EE—4 — 3-12 months 2,674,844 3,214,988 2,674,844 3,214,988
— —FYULFERF — 1-5 years 1,496,984 3,914,123 1,496,984 3,914,123
4,171,828 7,361,183 4,171,828 7,361,183
HAfE % Other debt securities 14,044,710 12,173,462 14,044,710 12,173,462
18,216,538 19,534,645 18,216,538 19,534,645
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21 Wt E 2B () 21 Available-for-sale securities (Continued)
At RS HBIT AL ¢ Available-for-sale securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
A N}
The Group The Bank
—~Oo—K —0o0—= —O0—K —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

T T il T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

e BUR B Central governments and
oL ERAT central banks 479,084 87,947 479,084 87,947
AT I oAt Banks and other financial
& A AE institutions 15,054,216 17,531,268 14,999,523 17,465,334
e 3 Corporate entities 3,626,644 2,788,814 3,333,243 2,575,231
19,159,944 20,408,029 18,811,850 20,128,512
22 Fr P2 22 Held-to-maturity securities
A4 N}
The Group The Bank
—O—I —0—= —O—I —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EifEBESZ Listed debt securities,
e A at amortised cost:
— &L — Listed in Hong Kong 1,427,928 908,476 1,158,530 813,245
— YA BT — Listed outside Hong Kong 318,544 550,885 137,634 320,582

1,746,472 1,459,361 1,296,164 1,133,827

FEHEBERZ Unlisted debt securities,
B R A at amortised cost 4,164,022 5,484,088 4,102,545 5,341,527

5,910,494 6,943,449 5,398,709 6,475,354

ETifERE R Fair value of listed debt
ISR securities 1,741,419 1472321 1,291,961 1,141,614
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22 RIS () 22 Held-to-maturity securities (Continued)
A H Y NF)
The Group The Bank
~—O0—mH —0=—ZE —O0—m —O0=—Z=
2014 2013 2014 2013

il T il T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

fEHS s B Included within debt securities are:
Bl S5 (FL15 5N E Treasury bills (including
HA TR Exchange Fund Bills) 3,986,939 4,940,610 3,986,939 4,940,610
FAb s w8 5 Other debt securities 1,923,555 2,002,839 1,411,770 1,534,744
5,910,494 6,943,449 5,398,709 6,475,354
EREE LU S YN Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
A4 N
The Group The Bank
—~O0—l —0—= —O0—M —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Hh S BUR Central governments and
HH SR T central banks 4,903,386 5,458,090 4,903,386 5,458,090
SRAT S A Banks and other financial
4 Rl institutions 38,752 92,462 38,752 92,462
o Corporate entities 968,356 1,392,897 456,571 924,802

5,910,494 6,943,449 5,398,709 6,475,354

R ES 2 EEHETE 2 ¥ 853X The reconciliation of the allowance account for impairment on

nr held-to-maturity securities is as follows:
A B B R AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—~O0—M —0—=
2014 2013
W T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
w—H—H At 1 January - 116,267
e 2R 5 ) Exchange difference - 42
AL (S Written off - (116,309)

BT —H=1+—H At 31 December - —
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23 Bk K A IR IR

23 Advances and other accounts

(a) BEaK B B4t R JH (a) Advances and other accounts
A% N F)
The Group The Bank
—0—Iy —0—= —~0O—m —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
W T VT T W Tou T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KEER Advances to customers 127,022,952 113,898,891 127,489,053 113,954,983
BEEMR (FERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— &R Tl — Collectively assessed (307,485) (247,200) (307,391) (246,974)
— B AL — Individually assessed (51,475) (57,211) (51,237) (42,929)
126,663,992 113,594,480 127,130,425 113,665,080
[HEE% 1 Trade bills 27,044,010 18,136,922 27,044,010 18,136,922
WEER (GEFE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— &R ATl — Collectively assessed (8,013) (13,134) (8,013) (13,134)
27,035,997 18,123,788 27,035,997 18,123,788
JERT A Accrued interest 735,996 563,501 729,773 554,686
WA (FERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— {8 5l B A — Individually assessed (2,051) (1,528) (2,051) (1,528)
733,945 561,973 727,722 553,158
At ARIH Other accounts
— el R — Insurance premium receivable 169,509 168,110 68 68
— AR A [E — Recoverable from
(FERE36) reinsurers (note 36) 281,626 290,857 -
— JE S % oAb R IR — Accounts and other receivable 3,038,107 2,076,526 2,279,026 1,674,647
3,489,242 2,535,493 2,279,094 1,674,715
BUEER (FERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— R A FEAG — Individually assessed (8,064) (12,683) (8,064) (12,683)
3,481,178 2,522,810 2,271,030 1,662,032
157,915,112 134,803,051 157,165,174 134,004,058
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23 Bk KA IRIE (4)
(b) il AL B B AL 65 %0

HEEEHANUGMERERHEESHZ
B Haotrr

23 Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(b) Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Advances to customers include investment in finance lease receivables
and hire purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

AR YN}
The Group The Bank
—O—M —0—= —O—M —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T T BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
JRE Wi A% Gross investment, receivable
- —fR — Within one year 153,035 179,483 152,384 175,773
— After one year but within
— —FP EBEAF five years 152,899 209,662 151,860 208,429
— HAERL b — After five years 14,421 21,091 12,898 19,348
320,355 410,236 317,142 403,550
K HRELZ BABS U A Unearned finance income (15,019) (21,402) (15,015) (21,316)
V- gLix ] Net investment 305,336 388,834 302,127 382,234

il A B R A S A 2 1R i A
T

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase
contracts is analysed as follows:

A4 . NF)
The Group The Bank

—O0—K —0—= —~O0—N —0o—=

2014 2013 2014 2013

T T T ¥ T T

HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

SN Within one year 143,413 166,510 142,767 162,884
—4ED B & After one year but

HAE within five years 147,502 201,233 146,462 200,002

FAEDL | After five years 14,421 21,091 12,898 19,348

305,336 388,834 302,127 382,234

AEERATZ MEHE RS H 2
B AR AL A 2 R 5 2 R B e (E
(ZO—=4  #) -

AL B Je ARAT 2 AR ] i ] A
WA ) 2 456 W E YE A & AR Al 1
e #7.796,0007C (— O — = 4F @ W g
12,123,0007C) K i %7,792,0000C (O
— =4 #%12,021,0007C) °

74 ] J AR 4T 2 S AT Wi [e] il A
FH 1% & 49 2 A8 7 Bk (1 5 4 48 %8 43 Rl
By W 621,000 (O — = 4F @ #k g
660,00070) J #:#383,0007C (O — =
o #E378,00000) o

No unguaranteed residual values were included in the gross investment
in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group and
the Bank (2013: Nil).

The collective impairment allowances for uncollectible finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group and the Bank
included in the impairment allowances for the receivables amounted
to HK$7,796,000 (2013: HK$12,123,000) and HK$7,792,000 (2013:
HK$12,021,000) respectively.

The individual impairment allowances for uncollectible finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group and the Bank
included in the impairment allowances for the receivables amounted to
HK$621,000 (2013: HK$660,000) and HK$383,000 (2013: HK$378,000)
respectively.
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24 B3k B T Ath M YE A 4

24 Impairment allowances on loans and advances and other

accounts
A H The Group
I8 3 #F Bl R erhl
Individual  Collective fat
assessment assessment Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HR=O—ME—H—H At 1 January 2014 71,422 260,334 331,756
[ 28 5 Exchange adjustments - (1,248) (1,248)
N R Amounts written off (10,418) (4,940) (15,358)
Wi [B] 1 47 EL iR 2 Recoveries of advances written
FE GGERELL) off in previous years (note 11) 3,376 1,607 4,983
e & R F (GBRE) Net (release)/charge to
OBk (GERELLD) income statement (note 11) (487) 59,745 59,258
E A 19 I BB 438 [ Unwind of discount on
(REFE4) allowance (note 4) (2,303) - (2,303)
A_Oo—MHE+—H=+—H At31 December 2014 61,590 315,498 377,088
AR A HRIE N IR Deducted from:
RS (5ER23 (a)) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) - 8,013 8,013
& F SRR SRR Advances to customers and
(FEF23 (a)) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 53,526 307,485 361,011
HABRIE (GERE23 (a) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 8,064 - 8,064
61,590 315,498 377,088
17 The Bank
ERIERT A er
Individual ~ Collective ik
assessment assessment Total
BT b3 b1
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RO —MH4E—H—H At 1 January 2014 57,140 260,108 317,248
[ 2% 38 Exchange adjustments - (1,248) (1,248)
ESE Amounts written off (10,418) (4,940) (15,358)
WA [B] 1 4 EL SR Recoveries of advances written off
2B in previous years 2,892 1,607 4,499
TENR 4 2= 15 HBR Net charge to income statement 14,041 59,877 73,918
HEAF 1) BT BRL(EL 938 ) Unwind of discount on allowance (2,303) - (2,303)
B O—M4E+ " H=1+—H At 31 December 2014 61,352 315,404 376,756
AT HIRRIE N FIBR Deducted from:
PSR (51723 (a)) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) - 8,013 8,013
PR K TR Advances to customers and
(5EF#23 (a)) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 53,288 307,391 360,679
HABRTE (GEBE23 (a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 8,064 - 8,064
61,352 315,404 376,756
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24 Bk A HAWIRE WG YER (4) 24 Impairment allowances on loans and advances and other
accounts (Continued)

A The Group
8 I FEAG Bra Wl
Individual Collective =)
assessment assessment Total
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WR_O—=4F—H—H At 1 January 2013 100,209 195,128 295,337
e 5 ) B Exchange adjustments 3) 2,035 2,032
AR IR R Amounts written off (11,444) (4,539) (15,983)
Wi ] 2 4 LB 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
(FERE11) in previous years (note 11) 12,444 1,377 13,821
e g8 R T (M) Net (release)/charge to income
e (GERELL) statement (note 11) (28,028) 66,333 38,305
HEAE 1) 7 (B H38 7] Unwind of discount on
(FEFE4) allowance (note 4) (1,756) = (1,756)
RZO—=4F+="H=1+—H At31 December 2013 71,422 260,334 331,756
RN IR N FIER Deducted from:
FEET (GERE23 () Trade bills (note 23 (a)) = 13,134 13,134
& F SRR SRR Advances to customers and
(FE23 (a)) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 58,739 247,200 305,939
HABRIE (FERE23 (a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 12,683 = 12,683
71,422 260,334 331,756
17 The Bank
8 I FEAG o]
Individual Collective &5
assessment assessment Total
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R_O0—=4F—H—H At 1 January 2013 69,463 194,205 263,668
[ 2% 38 Exchange adjustments 3) 2,035 2,032
ESAE Amounts written off (11,047) (4,539) (15,586)
WS A 4F 2 iR Recoveries of advances written off
ZHK in previous years 9,869 1,377 11,246
TN 4 R (R Net (release)/charge to income
153 statement (9,397) 67,030 57,633
e 1) 7 B (R 43 ] Unwind of discount on allowance (1,745) - (1,745)
RZO—=%+ZHA=1+—H At3l December 2013 57,140 260,108 317,248
T AIIRIE AR Deducted from:
PN (GERE23 (a) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) - 13,134 13,134
R F SR T RLE Advances to customers and
(FEFE23 (a)) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 44,457 246,974 291,431
HAARIE (5ERE23 (a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 12,683 = 12,683

57,140 260,108 317,248
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25 it & 2> wlhE £

25 Interests in subsidiaries

N}
The Bank
—O0O—Iy —Z0=—=
2014 2013
‘T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
I b RE SR 2 A (E Unlisted shares, at cost 698,603 694,843
THN AT O M4+ " H="+—  The following is a list of the subsidiaries owned by the Bank at 31
H . #HZHBAR : December 2014:
CEHIRCHRZIBEA
Issued and paid up
share capital
B
Al Place of it % Nominal
K%  incorporation Number of value per Principal
A Name Ho and operation shares share FEEH activities
K R OB A PR Rl Wing Lung Insurance ik Hong Kong 29,000,000 NEM /na BREE Insurance
Company Limited” underwriting
KA A R A Wing Lung Capital Limited* Hong Kong 7,000,000 A /na WEHARE  Financial consultancy
services
7K e B A TR Wing Lung Finance Limited* 7 Hong Kong 2,500,000 NEM /na. RERERE  Provision of financial
services
A A RN Wing Lung Asset ik Hong Kong 1,374,500 AN/ na GEEH Asset management
Management Limited”
KB & A RA A Wing Lung Futures Limited* i Hong Kong 800,000 AR /na. WEELRE  Futures broking
il opi YN Wing Lung Securities Limited 7t Hong Kong 700,000 KR /na BHELME  Securities broking
K RERAT (5 FEA A Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) 7 Hong Kong 300,000 AR /na. fFrEEH Trustee services
Limited*
TR (R B R A PR Wing Lung Insurance Brokers 7 s Hong Kong 250,000 A/ na BRBRER Insurance broking
Limited*
KA RA Wing Lung Agency Limited* 7 Hong Kong 50,000 AEAna BB Insurance agency
KEERTZAMERRAF*  Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) it Hong Kong 1,000 AR /na. ZEAEMRE  Nominee services
Limited*
KR ER A Wing Lung Property Hik Hong Kong 1,000 AR /na. PEEH Property management
Management Limited”
FRAH R/ Hongnet Limited* Hik Hong Kong 1,000 AR /na. TEER Investment holding
Wingspan Incorporated® Wingspan Incorporated* % USA. 1,500,000 USS1 ¥Erth Property holding
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25 PR 2> vl RE 2R (4E)

25 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

CETREHRZ A
Issued and paid up
share capital
Tt

AL Place of it % Nominal

K%  incorporation Number of value per Principal
kA Name L and operation shares share FEHEH activities
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities Fund [} Cayman [slands 78,900 US$0.01 #E¥EH Investment holding
Fund Limited® Limited® BB
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities i Cayman Islands 76,003 US$0.01 &R [nvestment holding
Master Fund Limited® Master Fund Limited® i
Rk BB A A ] Sea Wing Investments Limited 7 Hong Kong 1,000 AER /na. WESH Property holding
A e R e Wing Lung Equity Investment ' People’s (FHFa) (note a) MXEREEM  Bquity investment
() A RAR" Management (Shenzhen) AR Republic of management

Limited JEAB  China

ZEARAT Antopex Limited" %IE British Virgin 1 USS1 frrtEfk Trustee services

JEXE  Islands
PREARAR" Bulleria Limited’ HE British Virgin 1 USS1 festEH Trustee services

JEZE  Islands
SARA RA Cameland Limited" HE British Virgin 1 USS1 festEH Trustee services

JEaE  Islands
AR AT Deeright Limited’ ¥l British Virgin 1 USS1 fert¥tk Trustee services

JEaE  Islands
BB A R AT Eaglearn Limited" SR British Virgin 1 USS1 frrtEfk Trustee services

AT EEERSAZ B AR -
b HARTEERESAZME AR -

@ BRZOoO—WEFZHZ=ZT—H > K17HE
A Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited
(MR 34 ]) AT B 2753% (0 —
AR 63.4%) 0 AT HAH - T AF
S 46 35 AT B2 B R B (O — = 4F
7.6%) > AR R LR A Rk B AT IR
275.3% (. O — = 4F : 71.0%) ° Wing
Lung Opportunities Master Fund Limited
B RZHE B R H R -

FERE ()R E A AR 3,000,00000

BUE Islands

#

Wholly and directly held by the Bank.
Wholly and indirectly held by the Bank.

At 31 December 2014, the Bank directly held 75.3% (2013: 63.4%) of the
shares issued by Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited (the “Fund”). There
were no shares held by one of the Bank’s subsidiaries (2013: 7.6%), the
Group held 75.3% (2013: 71.0%) of the shares issued by the Fund. Wing
Lung Opportunities Master Fund Limited is wholly and directly held by the
Fund.

Note: (a) Registered capital was RMB3,000,000.
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26 3t [v] 52 il ' 6 2

26 Interests

in jointly controlled entities

L N}
The Group The Bank

—O—Iy —O0—= —~O—Ml —0—=

2014 2013 2014 2013

BT o R BT W T T

HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000

JE LT #EHZ A Unlisted shares, at cost - = 25,000 25,000

JEEA P I AR Share of net assets 231,069 208,600 - -
BT SR 4 Loans to jointly controlled

B (GiHa) entities (note a) 8,669 11,503 8,669 11,503

239,738 220,103 33,669 36,503

RZ_o—MWE+ZA=+—HzEEH

The following is a list of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31

W RN December 2014:
WEHEZ
Al
Place of WEHHELE  Proportion
wk: fiF K incorporation Ownership of voting
2 Name w¥EWE  and operation interest power FEEH Principal activities
SR P2 B A PR /A Bank Consortium 75 Hong Kong 13.33% 14.29% 4RHLRIRFHHZ Provision of trustee,
Holding Limited* {Z5C ~ fTHUR R administration and
s custodian services for
retirement schemes
SRHE 8 B A A F)* Joint Electronic ik Hong Kong (31 FDb) (ZHFb) B H#HMEEW Provision of ATM
Teller Services (note b) (note b)  Z A4 IS network services
Limited*
T NFE R AMRAR  Hong Kong Life & Hong Kong 16.67% 16.67% AFFfRFEZER;  Life insurance
Insurance Limited business
SR P AR B A PR ) BC Reinsurance 7 i Hong Kong 21.00% 21.00% FHERBRERS Reinsurance business
Limited
i-Tech Solutions Limited* i-Tech Solutions 7 Hong Kong 50.00% 50.00% ETFICIFIEH  Electronic document

Limited*

LA 3 ] 22 ol B A A AR A SR S Y
P> DLSh RRAS SR 52 7 50 5 9 M 5 A

KA o

* AT B 2 S S

AERE 1 (a) T T AR B A
A ATE ¥ 7 S G

(b)

AL Ty HAL AR R 2 — >

R HEA %A 7 2 I RERR o A
SE A 5% 7 AT T A AR
B9 < A B 22 20% B HEA v
A EIRIE 2 2.88%HE2E -

processing

The above jointly controlled entities are strategic partners for the Group
to widen the service types to be provided to the Group’s customers.

* Directly held by the Bank

Note:

interest-bearing at normal commercial terms.

(®)

(a) The loans to jointly controlled entities are secured and

The Group is one of the five founding members which together have

a controlling interest in the company. The Group holds 20% of the ‘A’
ordinary shares issued by the company to its founding members, and
is entitled to 2.88% of dividends declared.
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26 SRR ERED ()
S [w] 42 ) E R RS EORHBEAR A T

26 Interests in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Summary of financial information on jointly controlled entities is set

out below:
—O0O—m —0—=
2014 2013
EBHT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Gross amounts of the jointly
I [ 2 o) B 0 AR A controlled entities
B Assets 10,408,838 8,849,440
=L Liabilities 8,771,195 7,340,862
i £ Equity 1,637,643 1,508,578
A 4 Gross income 2,389,056 2,222,422
{5 i ) Net profit 260,353 241,890
At 4 T i A Other comprehensive income 7,408 (868)
A T A £ AL RE Total comprehensive income 267,761 241,022
Dividend received from the jointly
WA B ] 2 o) ‘B ) R controlled entities 17,520 17,000
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in
il 2 445 [ S ] 7 ) ‘B R RE 4 ¥ ) DR jointly controlled entities
Gross amounts of net assets of the
I [ 422 1) B O L AR jointly controlled entities 1,637,643 1,508,578
Group’s share of net assets of the jointly
A A2 ) S S ) 2 A U 2 S ESS controlled entities 231,069 208,600
27 Wk 2 vl R R 27 Interest in an associate
A4
The Group
—O—| —O0—=
2014 2013
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
JREAL B v A Share of net assets 4,351 5,113

Roo—WE+—H=+—HEK_O0—
=+t H=Z1—H > AT M B
UNCIVIES S k- /NI St a0
AME A 810,000 7T ©

The cost of the unlisted shares in the associate at 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013 held by a subsidiary of the Bank amounted to

HK$810,000.
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27 Bim A v () 27 Interest in an associate (Continued)

LM PR R A A Z BRI

The particulars of the Group’s interest in an associate is as follows:

Place of Particulars Interest
#M%  incorporation Principal fHHZEE  of issued 4% held
LA Name BEWE  and operation FEEHE  activities  fTRMFE  shares held AL indirectly
HEFRTHE  Professional Ek Hong Kong  fRFgfCH  Insurance  FF Lliz3%  Unlisted 27% 27%

REARAT  Liability agency il ordinary shares

Underwriting
Services Limited

DA _E W 2w R AR SR A SR R £ > LA

RO ACEAH TALBNES -
s A F BB BRI R

The above associate is a strategic partner for the Group to provide
insurance agency services to the Group’s customers.

Summary of financial information on the associate is set out below:

—O—I —O0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
W5k 8 2 ] 1 AR Gross amounts of the associate
HE Assets 63,313 77,019
=L Liabilities 47,198 58,082
HE 2 Equity 16,115 18,937
AR AR Gross income 13,449 17,594
i A1 Net profit 5,155 7,214
At 4 T A A Other comprehensive income 89 (105)
A TH] AL 2 AL Total comprehensive income 5,244 7,109
WAL A A F I B Dividend received from the associate 2,025 2,025
Reconciled to the Group’s interest
B AR A T 0 2 2 ) A ) B R in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets
Wit ) ¥ E MR of the associate 16,115 18,937
REEBBEARFERELZ Group’s share of net assets
B of the associate 4,351 5,113
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28 EWIE 28 Investment properties
A H Y NF)
The Group The Bank
—O0O—I —0—= —O0—M —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 2,606,870 2,296,600 2,723,108 2,406,257
i [ U 4H Reclassifications, net (78,916) 19,000 (78,916) 19,000
HAGAFE B Y AR Fair value gains on revaluation 107,376 291,270 113,235 297,851
wt+=HA=+—H At 31 December
(RE ARSI HR) (professional valuation) 2,635,330 2,606,870 2,757,427 2,723,108
A V. NF)
The Group The Bank
—O—M —0—= —O0—M =0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
PR FHEZ Leasehold properties
HAWZE - in Hong Kong:
— RIHL — Long-term leases
(L T4ERLE) (over 50 years) 1,450 12,620 106,450 112,220
— IR A — Medium-term leases
(+Z2HA4F) (between 10 to 50 years) 2,633,880 2,594,250 2,650,977 2,610,888
2,635,330 2,606,870 2,757,427 2,723,108
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28 EWE ()

Pir A BUE W) 3 Bl 2 AG R — O — U 4F
ToA=1T—H D&M ET LSS
Ml A E AL > B LA E A (E J7
(hnsg ) > BELAR B T 35 58 5 B A LE
11 /i . o S YC B At A8 b 8 5 B i m) A
B A5 A W B AT AT > g B R A
IR Sl S SRR/ E SO
E 186 S A T A (AR B

TREIIALEHEE R BOREY
SEN VAR - Sl % A S5 o Y B 2R
1398 LA A HEEE R - AFE
{6 DA B0 BT B9 450 A S vl B 4 )
J& 8] o ISR BB B S T 35 Al
[ DAL SR SEIINCIE U F JIUEC N ¢
BRI T A SR BTG W T - fE WA
BABRELE T FOIAPEERER

o HIE - 2%F - THRIERTS
BAGRI T SGAE CREEFREE) -

o G2 - RRAT BN HE (R
) S (b HAE PR BA
B 2 A ERK -

o 30 — MR EEH A BIRE T
19 B A Bd 2 A (E A K -

28 Investment properties (Continued)

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2014 by
capitalising the net rental income using the Investment Method of
Valuation or as appropriate, by making reference to comparable market
transactions using the Comparison Method. The valuations were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, A.G. Wilkinson & Associates,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued.

The table below presents the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties measured on a recurring basis, categorised into the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is based on whether the inputs used in the
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs
reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable
inputs reflect the Group’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs
have created the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either

directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs.

B=)E
Level 3
A4 AT
The Group The Bank
—O0O—ly —O0—= —~O0O—Ml —~O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
WX ¥ Tor W¥Tx BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BHENTEE Recurring fair value
A measurement:
PR FHEZ Leasehold properties
GILALUE™ in Hong Kong 2,635,330 2,606,870 2,757,427 2,723,108
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28 EWE ()

HEZO—WMWFEFT_H=+T—HEK=O
—=ZF+ A=t —HIEZ B
S S5 — i BLAE ] 2 WA > I
ASESE = B o A SR i AP EE
JEE A5 [ ) RS 8 2E 1 St R T AR o

AR A6 51 i 47 R g DA R 0 48
AT EERRFIENREY X &
RAATBE A BB ER

28 Investment properties (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group recognises transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable
inputs used at year end in measuring investment properties categorised

as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

W 1 1
Carrying value
A 4 ] Z.NF)
The Group The Bank
—~0O0—Iy —0o—= —~0—Iy —~0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
W T ¥ T #WT ¥ T
Mifa$35 Valuation techniques HK$’°000 HK$°000  HKS$’000 HK$’000
L ik Comparison method - 2,487,370 - 2,603,608
PO E 7 % Investment method 2,635,330 119,500 2,757,427 119,500
2,635,330 2,606,870 2,757,427 2,723,108
AR BE W P PEIN T
BABR Range AR R
ik 241 Significant unobservable —O—MN —0—= Fair value measurement
Valuation techniques  inputs 2014 2013 sensitivity to unobservable inputs
EESTEIE {EONIw)
I AT EER T B
/ES e OEE Significant increase in discount on
P Discount on quality AR (GERg),/ quality of the property would result in a
Comparison method of the property n.a. (Note) 2.4% — 48.9% lower fair value
[iip7l e ESOE ONIw 1Y
A TEER T
RE{E T i T % Significant increase in market yield
Investment method Market yield 3.5% — 18.0% 4.3% — 18.5% would result in a lower fair value
R YIIN FHR
E¥10E AT [ SN
#W1,3417 #1427 51 BUAFEE R T
HKS$10 to HKS$10 to Significant increase in market
iRzl HKS$1,341 HKS$142 rent would result in a higher
Market rent per square feet per square feet fair value

AR AT S BB AR > A B
EYER —O—NEF_A=+—H
HULEE M T EA R R -

Note:

Due to the limited number of comparable transactions, all investment

properties are measured using investment method as at 31 December

2014.
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28 EWE (H) 28 Investment properties (Continued)
AL EATUKLEHER A HHE  The Group and the Bank lease out investment properties under operating
W - HEFH@EFE A RNIDAF - 8% leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of up to 4 years.
ZO—WEFZH=1+—HIL4E > 4 Contingent rentals included in leases for the year ended 31 December
FEAEF AN 2 50 T 4 4 #501,536,000 2014 amounted to HK$1,536,000 (2013: HK$3,331,000).
T (ZO—=4 : #%#3,331,0007C) -
WA=+ —H > Aoz &% At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments receivable
B2 R F AR RE W B E BRI T under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
AR M B AR AT
The Group and the Bank
—O—m| —0—=
2014 2013
E# T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
R Land and buildings
— —HERLA — Within one year 158,088 169,047
— —EUREHERN — After one year but within five years 179,996 288,803
338,084 457,850
29 il & - HuhlE 55 29 Interests in leasehold land
AREE AT ZHE TR ATESALT The Group’s and the Bank’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid
i (E - HIREEHESHTan T - land lease premium and their net book values are analysed as follows:
A 4R V. NF)
The Group The Bank
—O—MH —0—_ —O—MI/ —o—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T T BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 219,517 233,164 172,117 185,613
LL VSRR ] Reclassification, net 7,650 (9,102) 7,650 (9,102)
FHE - e Depreciation of leasehold land
(FE%10) (note 10) (4,462) (4,545) (4,310) (4,394)
wmt+—_H=+—H At 31 December 222,705 219,517 175,457 172,117
TEHEBREE In Hong Kong held on:
— REIHL — Long-term leases
(T4 L) (over 50 years) 102,432 95,252 55,184 47,852
— FHAH A — Medium-term leases
(+ZEH14F) (between 10 to 50 years) 120,273 124,265 120,273 124,265

222,705 219,517 175,457 172,117
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30 Hfb Pk St

30 Other properties and equipment

A The Group
AR B st
Furniture
3 and ik

Premises equipment Total

BT BT BT

HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
A Cost
RO —ME—~H—H At 1 January 2014 811,665 975,637 1,787,302
[ifE 3R 5 Exchange adjustments 6 (1,104) (1,098)
by Additions - 166,729 166,729
HE Disposals - (8,269) (8,269)
e Y Reclassifications, net 71,266 - 71,266
RO —M4E+=H=+—H At 31 December 2014 882,937 1,132,993 2,015,930
EN gy Accumulated depreciation
MR=O—ME—H—H At 1 January 2014 173,115 695,494 868,609
[ 2% 3 Exchange adjustments 1 (355) (354)
AEFEIE (GER10) Charge for the year (note 10) 15,126 108,270 123,396
H R [ 43 Written back on disposal - (7,782) (7,782)
Bo—WHE+—H=+—H At31 December 2014 188,242 795,627 983,869

e T (L
RoOo—WFE+ A =+—H

Net book value

At 31 December 2014 694,695 337,366 1,032,061
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30 HAd 2 Kkt () 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
A The Group
L&
Furniture
7 and At
Premises equipment Total

T T T T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

A Cost
W_o—=4%4—H—H At 1 January 2013 805,449 828,898 1,634,347
[T 2% ) & Exchange adjustments 12 (2,948) (2,936)
HhE Additions - 158,524 158,524
H&E Disposals = (8,837) (8,837)
I Y AR Reclassifications, net (9,898) = (9,898)
HAGE R Surplus on revaluation 16,926 - 16,926
Less: elimination of accumulated
W BT IKE R E depreciation on revaluation (824) = (824)
ARO—=4+"H=1—H At31 December 2013 811,665 975,637 1,787,302
EY g Accumulated depreciation
W_o—=4—H—H At 1 January 2013 159,950 609,354 769,304
[T 2% ) & Exchange adjustments 2 (3,491) (3,489)
AEFEITE (GERE10) Charge for the year (note 10) 13,987 97,262 111,249
H S [ 43 Written back on disposal - (7,631) (7,631)
HAG R AR Elimination on revaluation (824) - (824)
AT O—=F+"H=1—H At31 December 2013 173,115 695,494 868,609
e T Net book value

MO —=4F+=H=1+—H At31 December 2013 638,550 280,143 918,693
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30 HAtb sk sty (41

30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)

17 The Bank
1 18 S st i
Furniture
B and L

Premises equipment Total

#W T wW T W T

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A Cost
R_O—M4E—H—H At 1 January 2014 707,346 915,550 1,622,896
[P 2% ) Exchange adjustments - (1,106) (1,106)
W Additions - 164,640 164,640
A Disposals - (6,242) (6,242)
T B V5 AR Reclassifications, net 71,266 - 71,266
R_Oo—MEF"H=+—H At31 December 2014 778,612 1,072,842 1,851,454
ENiEiR Accumulated depreciation
RZO—MH4E—H—H At 1 January 2014 145,324 648,009 793,333
[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments - 357) 357
AT Charge for the year 13,310 104,003 117,313
LB ] 4 Written back on disposal - (5,792) (5,792)
AR_O—W4E+—"H=1+—H At 31 December 2014 158,634 745,863 904,497

R T 93 {EL
RZOo—MFE+=A=+—H

Net book value

At 31 December 2014 619,978 326,979 946,957
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30 HAd 2 Kkt () 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
17 The Bank
L&
Furniture
5 and At
Premises equipment Total

T T T T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

A Cost
W_o—=4%4—H—H At 1 January 2013 701,142 771,378 1,472,520
[T 2% ) & Exchange adjustments - (2,948) (2,948)
HhE Additions - 155,128 155,128
H&E Disposals = (8,008) (8,008)
I Y AR Reclassifications, net (9,898) = (9,898)
HAGE R Surplus on revaluation 16,926 - 16,926
Less: elimination of accumulated
W BRI IR EAN(E depreciation on revaluation (824) - (824)
MO —=4+="H=1+—H At31 December 2013 707,346 915,550 1,622,896
EY g Accumulated depreciation
W_o—=4—H—H At 1 January 2013 133,978 566,034 700,012
[T 2% ) & Exchange adjustments - (3,490) (3,490)
A EE Charge for the year 12,170 92,294 104,464
H R [ 43 Written back on disposal - (6,829) (6,829)
B A AR R Elimination on revaluation (824) - (824)
AT O—=F+"H=1—H At31 December 2013 145,324 648,009 793,333
e T Net book value

MO —=4F+=H=1+—H At31 December 2013 562,022 267,541 829,563
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30 H Atk Kkt (%) 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
B 2 MR T E A4 The net book value of premises comprises:
A N}
The Group The Bank
—O0O—M™ —O0—= —O—M —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
PRI Leasehold properties
HE W in Hong Kong:
— RHATHAY — Long-term leases
(4L E) (over 50 years) 372,987 374,785 340,081 341,378
— AR A — Medium-term leases
(+ & i +4F) (between 10 to 50 years) 289,430 230,432 279,897 220,644
662,417 605,217 619,978 562,022
PRI~ Z Leasehold properties
AP 2E - outside Hong Kong:
— KA — Freehold 26,732 27,599 - —
— A — Medium-term leases
(+Z A A4F) (between 10 to 50 years) 5,546 5,734 - =
694,695 638,550 619,978 562,022
31 REMRIET Z Hfi 31 Trading liabilities
A4
The Group
—O0—M —0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000
T2 2 JRRERS I3 Short positions in equity securities,
NHEE at fair value:
— FHius bl — Listed in Hong Kong - 38,002
— & LT — Listed outside Hong Kong - 25,866
- 63,868
T2 2 RS Short positions in equity investment fund,
NHEME at fair value:
— F/H L — Listed in Hong Kong - 20,813
— FAEW B — Listed outside Hong Kong - 15,218
- 36,031
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32 U P E AL e A H IR 2 5k

32 Financial liabilities designated at fair value through

=N profit or loss
SR M B A AT
The Group and the Bank
—O0—N —o—=
2014 2013
W T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
BT A5 Certificates of deposit issued 513,238 559,565

Roo—MWEFH=+—H  K&£H
RAITIRE B UN T EERABGRES
4 £ 1 R T (R EL R B 3 B & A
THRA N2 &% 5 i 13,238,00000
(O — =4 : #%13,042,00000) - £
AR R RO 5 5L -

33 % P17k

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2014 is higher than the amount
that the Group and the Bank would be contractually required to pay
at maturity to the holders by HK$13,238,000 (2013: HK$13,042,000),
which was mainly due to changes in interest rates.

33 Deposits from customers

N N}
The Group The Bank
—~O0—N == O '] SO==
2014 2013 2014 2013
T T BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
15 A7 Demand deposits and
REAIRF current accounts 8,381,977 7,182,000 8,900,188 7,557,289
& Savings deposits 40,796,681 34,511,783 40,955,489 34,575,110
EWAE K BB ANAEZK Time, call and notice deposits 134,227,970 113,442,868 135,129,184 114,321,659
183,406,628 155,136,651 184,984,861 156,454,058
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J4EARTH 34 Capital instruments
AR M R AT
The Group and the Bank
—O—MH —o—=
2014 2013
E¥ T BETT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
AT 2 BRARMEIE Subordinated debt issued
‘2%’%800,000 000G FE 48 B A< HK$800,000,000 subordinated floating rate note,
FIRRI T B EEE GERa) measured at amortised cost (Note a) - 800,000
##700,000,000 7 14 44 85 BLAS HK$700,000,000 subordinated floating rate note,
IR B R (GERED) measured at amortised cost (Note b) - 700,000
#51,500,000,0007C 4% 8 55 1 A< HK$1,500,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes,
H R BRE S (GEREC) measured at amortised cost (Note c) 1,500,000 1,500,000
3£75200,000,000 7T 5 i A< US$200,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes,
FIRA & BAEEE GEREd) measured at amortised cost (Note d) 1,539,331 1,537,798
3,039,331 4,537,798
HOMER TH Additional equity instruments
F71130,000,000 70 7K 4 %1 IF B A US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative
BIEEARES (Fife) subordinated capital securities (Note e) 1,008,020 =
F7130,000,0007C K AL I 25 US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative
BEEARES (GERED) subordinated capital securities (Note f) 1,007,370 -
2,015,390 =

FERE

(a) It # %800,000,0007C 77

B 1% i

Note:

(a) This represents HK$800,000,000 subordinated floating rate note

EHER_OONFEL A IUH %
A7 o Bk e By AR SE B AR AT 2
FEImE A - = EAS R = 0 — L
E-B AU H BB o SR R
HE_O—WMHFELHTHH - H
BITAEEEEEEAZE R
A P ER IR RS $E = A v
JUERAT IR ZEHF B N2008 1 » LAAF
SE A EEET R o BLEEREE R
O— VU4 H +H A E[ -

It %700,000,0000C 7F B % 14
HEN OONERA -+ H
BAT o BT E B A [ AT
ZMEAR o WWEHFIGN O —
JUESLH =+ — H 3 - 2
EEAA _O—MERH -+ =
Ho i H 2 EmlEH >
AR > DL AR B = A
135 TC 8R4 T [R] 2697 B N200%5 1
DigE =M H ®EsT— K - ILEHEE
i O—MH4ESLA =+ = HIEMH -

(b)

qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 14 July 2009. The note will mature on 14 July 2019 with an
optional redemption date falling on 15 July 2014. Interest rate for the
note is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month HIBOR plus 200
basis points for the first 5 years from the date of issue to the optional
redemption date. The Bank redeemed the note on 15 July 2014.

This represents HK$700,000,000 subordinated floating rate note
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 22 September 2009. The note will mature on 22 September 2019
with an optional redemption date falling on 23 September 2014.
Interest rate for the note is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month
HIBOR plus 200 basis points for the first 5 years from the date of
issue to the optional redemption date. The Bank redeemed the note on
23 September 2014.
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34 EARTH (#4)

(c)

d

=

(e)

()

I HE #:1,500,000,000 7T 5E B 15 1%
EER_OONET_HAZTAN
H 847 > 3l B 0t 8 B AN 42 18 L AR
TZHmEAR o WEEKH O
4+ A+ /\HF o
BUHEBBHE _O—NETA
“ N H o BLEEHE A A 2 AR F
R570%xHE > H TR o

It 2 56200,000,0007C E B % 14
HEWR T O— 4 +—H/NHB
17 WA E R AL RATZ
BfmE A - EIFEM R 0 =
4 —H-EH W o RIS
HE—_o—t#E+—A LAz
B A E LA H - BT H
FEENEEHZ T HE S HWE
PE I FEFEAE R 2R3.50% T > 4%
AR AL o HAR  MEEERTE
VR R A RS
ErEF] A E B RS B 4
BB N280%5 1 -

I 3€ 76130,000,000 G 7K 48 74 JE 2
FEBAE G AT S WA By AR 4L 1
RAFTZ BN — BT o HiE T
R O—MAEJLA =+ H AT >
HEERT I E A O — LFET
H—H o Wi H % 5 0 42 5
EHZE A > WBARENERR
£56.00% o HA% > 27 JE IR AR AT [
R > B R A SR 4 fhp 25 B
U R A 5 JEL SR M 413 % o 1

I 25 5£130,000,0007T 7K 48 1 JF 2
AR 8 G A5 55 1 A E A AN 4E T
RAFTZ BN — BT o HiE Tz
Woo—ME+—"H ~+LH %
17 HEERTEEEH 2 =0 —JL
HE+THA=Z1+H - HBiTHEY
2 A7 (5] 85 H 2 1 T4 - BB
B4 B R B5.80% © HAg - 2 E
R ARAT 0 0] BERE > B AR5 4%
i IRF 5 B LA 1A I R 1 2 R R
4.13% i FEHT o

34 Capital instruments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e

~

()

These represent HK$1,500,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 28 December 2009. The notes will mature on 28 December 2021
with an optional redemption date falling on 28 December 2016.
Interest at 5.70% per annum is payable on a quarterly basis.

These represent US$200,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 6 November 2012. The notes will mature on 7 November 2022
with an optional redemption date falling on 7 November 2017 or
any interest payment date thereafter. Interest at 3.50% per annum is
payable on a semi-annually basis for the first 5 years from the date of
issue to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the notes will bear interest
at 5 year US Treasury Rate on that date plus 280 basis points.

This represents US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group and the Bank. The securities were issued on 30
September 2014 with the first call date falling on 1 October 2019.
Distribution rate for the securities is set at 6.00% per annum for the
first 5 years from the date of issue to the first call date. Distribution
rate will be reset thereafter every 5 years at the then prevailing 5 year
U.S. Treasury Rate plus 4.13% per annum if the capital securities are
not called.

This represents US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group and the Bank. The securities were issued on 29
December 2014 with the first call date falling on 30 December 2019.
Distribution rate for the securities is set at 5.80% per annum for the
first 5 years from the date of issue to the first call date. Distribution
rate will be reset thereafter every 5 years at the then prevailing 5 year
U.S. Treasury Rate plus 4.13% per annum if the capital securities are
not called.
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35 EHEBLIH 35 Deferred taxation

CRMBERIEZRNHER ZELEBIEE  The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
& (BE) ZHBGRG > MFNZ %8B statement of financial position and the movements during the year are as

e follows:
AL The Group
gk
REnE  H

ik
B WA
FlEH  Impairment

Accelerated  Retirement  allowances

tax benefit onloansand  FLJEEH oAl At
depreciation  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
gRTr  #WTx  #%Tx  #WTx  #%Te  #WTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
RZO—W&E—H—H At January 2014 (24,829) (22,255) 52,862 30,024 12,358 48,160
Tl Fitlk / Credited/(charged) to the
(F1B%) income statement (13,436) 1,915 14,539 (13,068) 853 9,197)
TEEAM AT/ Credited/(charged) to other
(f0F%) (ERE38) comprehensive income (note 38) - 5,888 - - (12,483) (6,595)
RZ0—Mm4
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2014 (38,265) (14,452) 67,401 16,956 728 32,368
R The Bank
ek
i B Ik W1 e
Bl E ff#EHE  Impairment
Accelerated Retirement allowances
tax benefit  on loans and HAl wit
depreciation obligation advances Others Total
W T W T T W T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZO—W&E—H—H At January 2014 (24,529) (22,255) 52,823 13,903 19,942
Tl Eaig,/ Credited/(charged) to the income
(fnB) statement (13,240) 1,915 14,561 853 4,089
TEHAM 2R/ Credited/(charged) to other
(f0Fx) (GERE3S) comprehensive income (note 38) - 5,888 - (11,254) (5,366)
RZ0—Mm4
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2014 (37,769) (14,452) 67,384 3,502 18,665
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35 BAEBLIA (4H) 35 Deferred taxation (Continued)
P The Group
-5
iy Bk BEER
BUETE TAFEHE  Impairment
Accelerated ~ Retirement  allowances
tax benefit  on loans and o) Hit At
depreciation obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
whTr Wt BT BT Wt BBt
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
RoO0—=%F—H—H AtlJanuary 2013 (13,552) (6,921) 45,708 43,399 5,306 73,940
TlsFlR Credited/(charged) to the income
(F1B%) statement (11,277) 3,116 7,154 (13,375) 1,253 (13,129)
TEEAM 2O/ Credited/(charged) to other
(f1F%) (3ERE38) comprehensive income (note 38) = (18,450) - - 5,799 (12,651)
RZO0—=4
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2013 (24,829) (22,255) 52,862 30,024 12,358 48,160
VN5 The Bank
fnk BRIk BH R
BRITE (e Impairment
Accelerated Retirement allowances
tax benefit on loans Hib CEil
depreciation obligation  and advances Others Total
T T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZO—=4F—H—H At January 2013 (13,620) (6,921) 45,554 7,535 32,548
g &R/ Credited/(charged) to the income
(H1FR) statement (10,909) 3,116 7,269 1,253 729
T HAM 2 CHE /  Credited/(charged) to other comprehensive
(41B%) (ERE38) income (note 38) - (18,450) - 5,115 (13,335)
RZO0—Z4F
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2013 (24,529) (22,255) 52,823 13,903 19,942
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35 IBAEBLIA (4H) 35 Deferred taxation (Continued)
A H Y NF)
The Group The Bank
~—O0—mH —0=—ZE —O0—m —O0=—Z=
2014 2013 2014 2013

il T ol T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000

B IR UL A Net deferred tax assets

T w2 2 40 4L Fod TH recognised in the statement of

G financial position 44,189 56,867 28,417 26,652
i BB AR L 2R I Net deferred tax liabilities

ERD 2 IR Bl JE recognised in the statement of

A financial position (11,821) (8,707) (9,752) (6,710)

32,368 48,160 18,665 19,942

PR SE L B i ) I MEAR BB A% A 25 7l %5 Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
308 T 2 M BRR Jak AF1) 55 B T gt T 4% W 2 B extent that realisation of the deferred tax benefit through future profits is
JE 1 T DARERR - i ~O—P4E+ - H  probable. At 31 December 2014, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
=+—H > AEBWKERZHIEREE  of HK$87,531,000 (2013: HK$100,505,000) to be carried forward to set
£y 587,531,0000C (- O —=4F : #k¥  off against future taxable profits.

100,505,0007C) > AT 4% 4 DL 4K 9 A A€

PRBLA o
36 Hfis e JE K AR 36 Other accounts and accruals
A4 [ Y. N
The Group The Bank
—~O—I™ —0—== —O0O—Iy —0—==
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT T T i3 T T
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
JRE A LS Interest payable 1,275,875 993,116 1,276,677 1,001,365
2 A 1 Insurance liabilities 2,137,553 1,995,943 - =
A T HAb HETE Accounts and other payable 2,146,672 2,316,441 1,506,084 1,950,942

5,560,100 5,305,500 2,782,761 2,952,307
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36 AR K R (4)

36 Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

REGABEHHNT - Insurance liabilities are analysed as follows:
P The Group
—O0O—Iy —0=—=
2014 2013
T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
A Gross
C 2z RERIAK Claims reported and loss adjustment
3¢ H R R expenses 735,042 650,864
EEEAH R R RIE Claims incurred but not reported 801,415 748,349
ENEN TS Unearned premiums 369,842 401,341
oA 3] 400 J g Y Provision for unexpired risk 12,089 3,546
HoAty Others 219,165 191,843
PR B B AR A RE Total insurance liabilities, gross 2,137,553 1,995,943
R TN Recoverable from reinsurers
C 2z RERIAK Claims reported and loss adjustment
3¢ R R expenses 126,267 99,546
EEEAH R 2R RIE Claims incurred but not reported 75,298 91,916
R HA TR Unearned premiums 80,061 99,395
THBAR BTG 4R B B Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
A (GERE23(a)) (note 23(a)) 281,626 290,857
AR Net
EEHRz REXEX Claims reported and loss adjustment
O expenses 608,775 551,318
B R R R RE Claims incurred but not reported 726,117 656,433
R 393 £ Unearned premiums 289,781 301,946
o 2 10 e A Provision for unexpired risk 12,089 3,546
HoA Others 219,165 191,843
TR B B A 5 3 Total insurance liabilities, net 1,855,927 1,705,086

CE2EH RIEAH - ABEAL LB AE
KMEENREMERER S BEHBREHE
17 T 8 R B RS i [ 2 R o A
O—WE+F—H=+—HKEK _-O0—=4
T H =+ —HZ ik iR 2 SR
SRR 5 K SR ST B R o

The gross claims reported, the loss adjustment expenses liabilities and
the liability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subrogation. The amounts for salvage
and subrogation at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are not
separately disclosed as they are not material.
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37 AR 37 Share capital
—0O—M —0—=
2014 2013
i ¥ T Jic B T T
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$’000
sEMBA  (GERED) Authorised: (note 1)
W o RS TT Ordinary shares of HK$5
(FERE2) each (note 2) AW na. LM, na. 300,000,000 1,500,000
CEAT RO BME R Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$5
W o ST each 232,190,115 1,160,951 232,190,115 1,160,951

FEREL RO ~WE=A = HAERZH
CATEB) > FEM A T ATE -

RERR2: 2 OB (A R RG) 25135 2 Bl
HZO—MWE=A=HE &7k
A L 0 T (B SR T

W9 RS A A HEBOA B EIR 2
B INE R AT 2 gk £ —
977 AR o P AT 53 BB A AT 2 R Bk
FEEFARSFHAL

Note 1: Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which commenced
operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised share capital no
longer exists.

Note 2: In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the Bank’s shares no longer have a par or nominal value with
effect from 3 March 2014.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Bank’s residual net assets.
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38 fil i 38 Reserves
A 4 The Group
H
5 ik EX
Bank B kil
e N1 premises  Investment i i B i
Capital revaluation revaluation Other Retained it
reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Roo—MmE—H—H At 1 January 2014 57,500 66,769 271331 1,029,673 17,191,071 18,616,344
A 7 B Available-for-sale securities
— NEEM S — Changes in fair value - - 141,991 - - 141,991
— i B R A — Transfer to income statement
s % on disposal - - (17,713) - - (17,7113)
QL IN — Transfer to income statement
4 % on impairment - - 45,728 - - 45,728
VA TE Y D Amount decrease in statutory surplus - - - (15) - (15)
JRE A A ) fi Share of associate’s reserves - - 10 _ _ 10
A ] 2 Share of jointly controlled
B b entities’ reserves - - 1,866 - - 1,866
AR B ) Profit for the year - - - - 3,169,387 3,169,387
O SR Transfer from contingency reserve - - - (176) 176 -
e 2R 5 ) Exchange difference - - - (8,328) - (8,328)
et Vil Actuarial losses on defined
AR benefit scheme - - - - (35,687) (35,687)
ot 2 g Effect of deferred taxation
WARIEZ 2 on other comprehensive income
(ERE3S) (note 35) - - (12,483) - 5,888 (6,595)
RZO—H4E
+-H=1+—H At 31 December 2014 57,500 66,769 430,730 1,021,154 20,330,835 21,906,988
A f7 The Bank
£X0 Bl
I ok et 1]
Bank premises  Investment R B i A
revaluation  revaluation Hoft i Retained aat
reserve reserve  Other reserve earnings Total
W T W T T W T BT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZO—M4F—HA—H At 1 January 2014 05,144 138,624 1,029,339 16,423,371 17,656,478
Mk 2 % Available-for-sale securities
—NFEESE — Changes in fair value - 88,983 - - 88,983
— R AR & ~ Transfer to income statement on disposal - (15,075) - - (15,075)
— RS A — Transfer to income statement
Wi % on impairment - 45,728 - - 45,728
A Profit for the year - - - 2,829,624 2,829,624
A B Exchange difference - - (4,586) - (4,586)
RERAE R e ER Actuarial losses on defined benefit scheme - - - (35,687) (35,687)
Jofth A e EHE R R Effect of deferred taxation on other
2R (F1R35) comprehensive income (note 35) - (11,254) - 5,888 (5,366)
BZO—M4E+=A=1—H At3] December 2014 65,144 247,006 1,024,753 19,223,196 20,560,099
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38 faiff (%)

38 Reserves (Continued)

P The Group
£
P fit H
Bank B &l
premises  Investment % B gt
BAMER  revaluation  revaluation HAb RS Retained At
Capital reserve reserve reserve  Other reserve earnings Total
i o T T VT IE VT IE VT o0
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
W_0—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 57,500 49,843 237,122 1,004,288 14,500,544 15,849,297
At 7 B Available-for-sale securities
— AFEESE — Changes in fair value - - 4,014 = = 4,014
— A — Transfer to income statement
W di & on disposal = = (1,369) = = (1,369)
— A A — Transfer to income statement
di % on impairment - - 25,942 - - 25,942
HEfGRL (GERE30) Surplus on revaluation(note 30) - 16,926 = = = 16,926
HE g A ) Share of associate’s reserves - = (28) - . (28)
R A R 2 ) Share of jointly controlled
HH R entities’ reserves - = (149) = = (149)
TR AF B A Profit for the year - - - ~ 2596935 2,596,935
L A Transfer from contingency reserve - - - (224) 224 -
[R5 Exchange difference = = = 25,609 = 25,609
RE @Az Actuarial gains on defined benefit
e scheme = = = = 111,818 111,318
Hib2miai BHEERIA  Effect of deferred taxation on other
2R (GER3S) comprehensive income (note 35) - - 5,799 - (18,450) (12,651)
RZO0—=4F+"H=1—H At 31 December 2013 57,500 66,769 271,331 1,029,673 17,191,071 18,616,344
A f7 The Bank
Hff
7 2 (i H
Bank BE Rt
premises Investment Hopthfit TR B ek
revaluation revaluation Other Retained &3l
reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T ST 7T BT T T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS$000
RZ0—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 48,218 99,104 1,003,730 13,831,387 14,982,439
A S Available-for-sale securities
— AT AR — Changes in fair value - 10,402 - - 10,402
— A A — Transfer to income statement
Wi on disposal - (1369) - - (1369)
— N (A — Transfer to income statement
It & on impairment = 25372 - = 25372
EGAE (GERE30) Surplus of revaluation (note 30) 16,926 - - - 16,926
AR BN F Profit for the year - - - 2,498,616 2,498,616
T 2R A Exchange difference = = 25,609 = 25,609
SR AT 2 R s Actuarial gains on defined benefit scheme = = = 111,818 111,818
oAt 2 T Wi 45 3 AE R VB 2 % 28 Effect of deferred taxation on other
(FERE35) comprehensive income (note 35) = 5,115 = (18,450) (13,335)
RZO—=F+"H=1—H At31 December 2013 65,144 138,624 1,029,339 16,423,371 17,656,478
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38 fififli (#1)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

AR T 2 At e o T AR 2 A
AR B v ) AL Sl B AT R e T AR T R
I aL o

AL E A T AR R SRR L LI
FHECR RS

G B (b 79 T3 B R R TE A B
BUERT 2 A TEE 2 B) < R RHi 250
RGN G RE 1.6 2 1700 & 5 BORTERR

7S T 1 JFC At 4 6 4 3 2 ol A - DS
falt 0~ R A B ik S il o AT
At ot 4 45 2 A S S ff A

200 ot A 2 1 4 BT PR B Wi A Bt 2
A o

E St 8 2 R 417 098 S0 0 AT B Vi 2 )
F14 B 755 2R A 1 EE S S )

BSR4 R o it o 3 B L R A AT
AR WG DR AR i S5 A 2 5 5| DURE AT
K 7 e L 0 e Y gt T e 7 2
i

TR L B AR B0 KRR DLAR AT R T N
BRI [ BT 2 [ o W] 2 R AR 1
FITEEI10%5 AR > B 2 5 8 < R 5t
FEAE S IR R B A 950% < i fef A
A8 I AR E AR T RS WA 2 A R
b 2 BB

AEFEER _—O—WEF_H=+—H
2 AR B3 3 ) AR AR BE U 1 1,379,239,0000C
(CO—=4F : #¥1,192,060,0007T) 1E
Fo 05 0T T s o 1 8 e D B i AE B
B B 5 B8 GRATZEGRB1) 2 MRk
> TR TE kA 2 e B A B
FR > S 78 kA s o A HLR) o

EHREWEBRANKE (ZO0—=
I .

38 Reserves (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

The Group’s capital reserve was set up in relation to the capitalisation by
certain subsidiaries of their retained earnings for the issue of new shares to
the Bank.

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1.11.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of available-for-sale securities until the securities are derecognised
or impaired and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in notes 1.6 and 1.7.

The Group’s other reserve comprises general reserve, exchange reserve,
contingency reserve and statutory surplus reserve. The Bank’s other reserve
comprises general reserve and exchange reserve.

General reserve comprises previous years’ transfers from retained earnings.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of overseas branches and
subsidiaries.

Contingency reserve represents a reserve established for contingency of
accumulation of risks in times of severe economic downturn in accordance
with Guidance Note on Reserving for Mortgage Guarantee Business issued
by the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance.

Statutory surplus reserve is provided at 10% of the audited profit after tax
of a subsidiary of the Bank which is incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China, until the reserve balance is equal to 50% of its registered share
capital. Surplus reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses or
capitalised as paid-up capital with the approval of shareholders.

At 31 December 2014, included in retained earnings is an amount of
HK$1,379,239,000 (2013: HKS$1,192,060,000) which was earmarked as
regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the
provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

The directors did not propose any final dividend (2013: Nil) after the year
end.
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39 WHE A FIRK 7 AE K

BARTE T 5 & B OLRIH B M aH A [
J& SRR

39 Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

Included in the following statement of financial position headings are
balances with subsidiaries:

Y NF)
The Bank

—O0O—Iy —0==
2014 2013
T L e W
HK$’000 HK$’000

R 28 2 =] R Amounts due from subsidiaries:
— R % HAh AR IE — Advances and other accounts 472,702 108,154

i J&g 2~ B A7 Amounts due to subsidiaries:

— B — Deposits from customers 1,578,233 1,317,407
— HoAt R H K% T R — Other accounts and accruals 21,946 21,528
1,600,179 1,338,935

40 43 ER
(a) LB B4

A AR ) A A SE AR AT 3 > ]
Gr VAR o TR RAT B A R MR
TEAFN - H4E BFA NER - BEE > A
R B QR L P MR s - B M A
RIS o 2 F) K SEBRAT S AL 4 4R 11
BZAESL LHEER BHH
B MR AR o P K AR SE S
BARSNE ~ SRS ~ [FSETT S AR
TG IEE) o P B R A0 S5 45 B
e AN I3 AT 2B o HoMh 368 £ AF —
fE PR R R R SE K

TEAF LA AR B AR HER T i R
HLRE 1 B R B AR B R P A B i
s 7 AE A ] 1 A A T 38D M A Al A
3 e AN R B SE B © BEAL > A E
(9 A BR <6 FE R © 4% IR BB 5T 0 BUE R —
By SRR 251

RO BUE H AL IS R B K H At
S EREs < EE KA BUA - U
Lo HoAt R BE 5 B3 BE 45 52 365 20 TR Y
HH o

40 Segment reporting
(a) Business segments

The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which
comprises four business segments. Retail banking includes acceptance
of retail deposits, mortgage and personal lending, wealth management,
life insurance agency and brokerage services, securities and futures
brokerage services. Corporate and commercial banking includes
acceptance of corporate deposits, advance of commercial and industrial
loans, trade financing, hire purchase and leasing. Treasury and financial
institution activities include foreign exchange, money market, interbank
market and capital market activities. China and overseas operations
activities include China and overseas branches operations. Other
activities mainly comprise general insurance underwriting and investment
properties holding.

During the year, the Group has incorporated the allocation of liquidity
costs and benefits in the fund transfer pricing mechanism among
different operation units in preparing the information reported to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
performance assessment. Corresponding amounts have been provided on
a basis consistent with the revised segment information.

Unallocated items mainly comprise assets and liabilities of the central
management unit and other shared services, taxation and any items
which cannot be reasonably allocated to specific business segments.
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40 43 BBk (A7) 40 Segment reporting (Continued)
(a) ¥&EFH B () (a) Business segments (Continued)
RABREY
B R S B s . ¥ig: 1P
FEMRET  GREEN WEH e R 15
Corporate Treasury China St Unallocated
ZEAUT and and and Total and inter-
Retail  commercial financial overseas  reportable KA segment A%
banking banking institution  operations segments Others  elimination Group

T wWTx BT #WTx #WTx EW%Tc W Tx #WTx
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000

Z0— M4 2014
HREMA /(L) Net interest income/(expense)
— M — External (952,714) 1,696,361 1,298,594 1,879,029 3,921,270 (24,043) - 3,897,227
— R4 — Inter-segment 2,146,058 (446,344) (734,692) (944,872) 20,150 (20,150 - -
1,193,344 1,250,017 563,902 934,157 3,941,420 (44,193) - 3,897,227
TRHs B B AR A/ Net fees and commission
(i) income/(expense) 368,768 104,884 78,290 123,001 674,943 66,079 (9,241) 731,781
HAE KA Other operating income
— 5N — External 239,061 16,618 475,983 25,220 756,882 325,296 (139,512) 942,666
— A — Inter-segment (112,368) 12,628 98,918 88,384 87,562 234,690 (322,2%2) -
TR Segment operating income 1,688,805 1,384,147 1,217,093 1,170,762 5,460,807 581,872 (471,005) 5,571,674
BEH Operating expenses
— M — External (682,937) (117,932) (151,033) (291,881)  (1,243,783) (118,386) (429,838)  (1,792,007)
— NEA D ~ Inter-segment (341,985) (41,481) (7,862) (1,631) (392,959 (8,076) 401,035 -

(1,024,922) (159,413) (158,895) (293,512)  (1,636,742) (126,462) (28,803)  (1,792,007)

ERMEEZHE (8%),/  Impairment (losses)/written
I back on financial assets 28,191)  (59,743) 4,266 14676 (68992)  (35.9%) ~(104,986)

AREEGRF / (ER) Segment operating profit/(loss) 635,692 1,164,991 1,062,464 891,926 3,755,073 419,416 (499,808) 3,674,681
Fair value gains on investment

BEMEZ AT EEKE properties 107,376
8 A 2 et Net loss on disposal of other

a2l properties and equipment (363)
JEEA 46 ] 42 ) B Share of net profits of jointly

YN controlled entities and an

Z associate 39,376
R i A Profit before taxation 3,821,070
BARRS Capital expenditure 11,582 1,818 806 8,438 22,644 2,219 141,866 166,729
EilY- Depreciation 46,380 5,049 2,194 12,669 66,292 23,740 37,826 127,858
NIVERE Segment assets 33,884,511 82,750,399 113,445,934 70,142,291 300,223,135 10,001,677 221,453 310,446,265
MR Inter-segment transactions (63,123,847)
LT P Interests in jointly controlled

LNl entities and an associate 244,089
BEE Total assets 247,566,507
=t Segment liabilities 147,103,308 26,450,873 35,598,989 70,252,681 279,405,851 5,818,815 258,989 285,483,655
RIS Inter-segment transactions (63,123,847)

iUt Total liabilities 222,359,808
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40 b HEE (4)
(a) MEH B S ()

40 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

) RATEH
Nl HHE B P K Ry
[CES TR S o] R 25 L
Corporate Treasury China Gt Unallocated
FERIT and and and Total and inter-
Retail ~ commercial financial overseas  reportable Hity segment HER
banking banking institution  operations segments Others  elimination Group
wHTr  BWTr  EWRTr wW%Tr  wWTr  w¥Tx  #%Tx BT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
£ Restated
(O 3 2013
FRIEMA /i) Net interest income/(expense)
— 5N — External (478,114) 1,522,498 1,083,663 1,035,196 3,163,243 (116,582) - 3,046,661
— R — Inter-segment 1,297,379 (532,266) (471,136) (302,405) (8,428) 8,428 - -
819,265 990,232 612,527 732,791 3,154815 (108,154) - 3,046,661
PR 22 B df 4 1% Net fees and commission
A/ (i) income/(expense) 300,011 129,920 43,103 123,879 596,913 33,460 (254) 630,119
HplE £ A Other operating income
— M - External 195,910 17,853 368,851 5,620 588,234 294,053 (130,682) 751,605
— A7 - Inter-segment (113,594) 5,765 101,658 82,870 76,699 201,381 (278,080) -
e L/UN Segment operating income 1201,592 1,143,770 1,126,139 945,160 4,416,661 420,740 (409,016) 4,428,385
EES T Operating expenses
=M - External (579,946) (105,082) (105,595) (260,441)  (1,051,064) (172,717) (386,034)  (1,609,815)
— NEAH ~ Inter-segment (296,390) (34,273) (6,839) (1,146)  (338,648) (4,958) 343,606 =
(876,336) (139,355) (112,434) (261,587)  (1,389,712) (177,675) (42,428)  (1,609,815)
SRERE AR/ Impairment written back/(losses)
(18%) on financial assets 6,938 (48,389) - (13,273) (54,724) (9,523) - (64,247)
NiEERF /(R Segment operating profit/(loss) 332,194 956,026 1,013,705 670,300 2,972,225 233,542 (451444) 27754323
Fair value gains on investment
BEWEL AT EERL properties 291,270
R EYE L va Net loss on disposal of other
b et properties and equipment (547)
JEEA AL ] 42 ] 5 Bl Share of net profits of jointly
BBEATZ controlled entities and
gt A an associate 36,842
R i s Profit before taxation 3,081,888
GRS Capital expenditure 43,202 709 3,073 6,447 53,431 1,864 103,229 158,524
e Depreciation 39,877 4973 3,751 11,846 60,447 28,553 26,794 115,794
AR Segment assets 29,904,803 77,912,526 86,071,703 59,838,638 253,727,670 7,080,953 346,758 261,155,381
WIS Inter-segment transactions (44,194,165)
LR BB R E /AR Interests in jointly controlled
it entities and an associate 225,216
BB Total assets 217,186,432
b fi Segment liabilities 114,081,636 26,452,981 33,935,153 59,866,119 234335889 6,891,499 196,858 241,424,246
MR Inter-segment transactions (44,194,165)
a4 (5 Total liabilities 197,230,081
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40 43 # Rl (%)

40 Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) & Hu 3k & 53 (b) Geographical area
EEEAR
53
B Bt B 163 A1 Capital
BERA Profit expenditure
Operating before during
income taxation the year
#W T BT W T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZO— 4 2014
U Hong Kong 4,502,166 2,929,144 158,291
SEE NSRBI People’s Republic of China 890,102 677,924 1,565
Hofts Others 280,660 214,002 6,873
53T EAH HE S Inter-segment elimination (101,254) - -
e Consolidated 5,571,674 3,821,070 166,729
Gl Restated
—O—=# 2013
i Hong Kong 3,566,095 2,411,588 152,077
3 AR A0 People’s Republic of China 777,801 545,178 5,610
HoAth Others 167,359 125,122 837
A1 B AR K 8 Inter-segment elimination (82,870) = =
e Consolidated 4,428,385 3,081,888 158,524
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41 BA fEB Bk i

B B R KR I 2 IR 3 A
ZEME R KSR b S A

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments, and the

st aggregate credit risk weighted amounts:
A4 N
The Group The Bank
—O0O—M —O0—= —O—m —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
EW T BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
HiEEEEARN Direct credit substitutes 599,483 1,027,739 666,128 1,094,384
XHHEEHBRZ Transaction-related
ERER contingencies 238,478 188,834 238,478 188,834
FZEIEE AR Z
A B Trade-related contingencies 455,291 323,627 455,291 323,627
A DA SRR A B 2 Other commitments which are
Ho A A unconditionally cancellable 20,737,506 21,293,047 20,737,506 21,293,047
Other commitments with
JEAS AF ] £ — 4R 5L an original maturity of
PUR 2 Ho A one year or less 3,129,766 2,406,840 3,129,766 2,406,840
Other commitments with
JRAAERA B —4E L b an original maturity of
2 HoAth 74 over one year 6,070,027 7,764,827 6,070,027 7,764,827
31,230,551 33,004,914 31,297,196 33,071,559
{5 B8 JE\ B L 45 Credit risk weighted amount 3,885,728 4,650,843 4,052,341 4,817,456

F LA G456 B b < 7 LB L

F50%%150% ©

42 BA B KR

range from 0% to 150%.

42 Capital and lease commitments

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted amounts

(@ Rt H=+—H  ASEfHERHHHR (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for in
EHNZEARRKENT - the financial statements are as follows:
A4 .
The Group The Bank
—O0O—I —O0o—= —O—| —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
#W T T BT BT T
HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
G 4MHREEER  Contracted but not provided for 147,383 89,653 146,393 85,973
A REEH Authorised but not contracted for 26,484 68,818 26,484 68,818
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42 EAR KM A A () 42 Capital and lease commitments (Continued)
Gy RTZH=1—H > ~rfisz &% (b) At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments payable
FH 5 2 A% 2H e {1 B A L 5 R T AL under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
T 3
A N}
The Group The Bank
—O0O—M —O0—= —O—m —O0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013

il T il T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

+ b R Land and buildings
—H—FENR — Within one year 76,248 60,060 88,765 82,022
— After one year but
— BB RN within five years 123,354 80,722 137,206 97,912
— HAERL I — Over five years - 2,785 - 2,785

199,602 143,567 225,971 182,719

AREE AT S EHEF A —%Y  The Group and the Bank lease certain properties under operating leases.
2o FHAEARFIAS — F N4 o ILSF The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years. None of the
30 AN ELHE ECA FH AU o leases include contingent rentals.
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43 A BN E LR

(a) BBt wir i A1) B2 22 36 35 B 2 B A\

43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

FHIRE operations
—O0O—Iy —0==
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
%% i i s A Profit before taxation 3,821,070 3,081,888
JETEH Adjustments for:
JRRE A1k s [ 42 i) s ) Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities (38,123) (34,894)
R Ao e ) ¥ U ) Share of net profits of associate (1,253) (1,948)
e EEE Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Tt securities (17,713) (1,369)
Hb B oA S e 2 Net loss on disposal of other properties and
TR equipment 363 547
G 2 AN TEE R % Fair value gains on investment properties (107,376) (291,270)
A E 2 WEIE R Impairment losses on financial assets 104,986 64,247
e Depreciation 127,858 115,794
HEEE v At B S KR Amortisation of discount on available-for-sale
FI| 75 %‘%ZT}?.&& securities and held-to-maturity securities 23,042 5,049
S AT 2 AR Amortisation of discount on certificates of
g deposit issued 74,699 48,310
ey T 2 RIEEHZ Amortisation of discount on subordinated
o debt issued 1,266 1,222
Operating profit before changes in working
7 e S B O S A capital 3,988,819 2,987,576
R AW () Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
g E Short-term funds 352,881  (1,163,187)
[i] 2 72 W17 Tl e A Placements with and loans and advances to
(=1 H A3 1) banks maturing beyond three months (2,507,643) 8,704,011
FrEEE g sz Trading securities (364,736) 1,011,210
PAAPEERE AR R Financial assets designated at fair value
4 il through profit or loss 220,758  (2,230,270)
BRI A IR IH Advances and other accounts (23,207,007) (32,993.,494)
A D) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
WTEEi [ELS=R e Net derivative financial liabilities 69,254 366,519
[F] 2EA7 3K Deposits and balances from banks
=R H LAE ) maturing beyond three months (1,695,228)  (2,170,236)
B Deposits from customers 28,269,977 23,042,310
BT AR Certificates of deposit issued 4,961 8,916,983
PAAPEE RS ARG R Financial liabilities designated at fair value
4 il B £ through profit or loss (46,327) (10,471)
LR T Z AfH Trading liabilities (99,899) 59,981
A R T R P AR Other accounts and accruals 254,601 411,645
N E) 2 B AR Cash generated from operations 5,240,411 6,932,577
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e HEABENRERER ()

(b) Bl K 55 [l Bl JH H Z &5 87 40 #r

43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

(b) Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents

—O0— —o—=

2014 2013
il wT T
HK$’000 HK$°000

JEE A7 B 4 A7 ] € Cash and balances with banks 11,561,621 6,629,424
R ipeaidEES Money at call and short notice 19,050,175 13,549,701
Placements with and loans and advances to

[ 2 7 BHA7 T B Bk banks with original maturity

(REN B AE=1E A ) within three months 9,541,757 13,812,640
J8i Treasury bills with original maturity within

RENH B AE =18 A ) three months 1,465,875 4,171,108
[R] SE 477K Deposits and balances from banks with

(JREN A B AE =18 A W) original maturity within three months (9,811,499) (10,419,015)

31,807,929 27,743,858

44 CAEEM I Z & &

RZ—o—MmWE+_HA=+—H: A
B (H 3£ JT14,700,0000C (£ [F] # &
114,003,0007C ;5 — O — = 4E : % 7
12,200,000 - 45 [ # #94,598,0000C) Z
TARESHREFHEEMENESN > B4
7 3 B & BT (E R AT IS A2 i
ST B EE T AT Z R E K o

44 Assets pledged as security

At 31 December 2014, deposits of US$14,700,000 (equivalent to
HK$114,003,000; 2013: US$12,200,000 equivalent to HK$94,598,000)
included in cash and short-term funds have been pledged to the Office
of the Comptroller of Currency of the United States of America as
a statutory deposit for the Bank’s branch in Los Angeles and San
Francisco.
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45 m N B 8k

P BB B (O A1) (35622%) Mk
117812 BiE > W 2% HA &l (A
MBI (5532%) S161BMK » A1TE K
FTEHANBZF#BAMMT -

45 Loans to officers

Loans made by the Bank to officers and disclosed pursuant to section 78
of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
with reference to section 161B of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) are as follows:

BH+ZA=+—H
ZHRH
Balance outstanding
at 31 December

AR
iR
Maximum balance
during the year

—O0O—M —0o—= —Oo—n —0—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
#WTou BT T W T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Aggregate amount outstanding
A RFIE 2 in respect of principal and

4R MR interest 5,931 6,278 8,380 7,733

46 ERARBALZRS 46 Material related party transactions

TEAFR LA o SR B R DE WP SE S B T B
AREANLET ZRITS > AR
B AFA PRBE A S A B 2 5
% S A R N b AT A o A AR A
Al AT EBATBNB MR
BE - AL R A G I B i A N e
il ST AT E R BN 2 A - %
S5 52 5y LAHEAT 25 58 5 W 2 A B i 45 2 %
FEAR % LA AR B AT 4R T A 52 5
BFREF ZMEGRFOES - EHR
VIR VS S DEE S E S S A
W T 7S B 75 Sk 3 LAt b 7 BT 8 % 2 52
L AEBRAN AL B BT 2 S — ) oAb E
REREANLZZHFIIRTH -

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
with related parties in the normal course of business, which include
loans, deposits, insurance and other financial related transactions. These
related parties are the company which has control over the Group, key
management personnel of the Bank, close members of their families
and companies controlled or significantly influenced by the Group or
by them. The transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the
time of each transaction, and were on the same terms as those available
to other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of
the directors, these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, other material related party transactions entered
into by the Group are set out on the following pages.
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46 EAFBMALZRZY ()

46 Material related party transactions (Continued)

$Ji] F% Hofs
P E R TBAE HREAL
el | Jointly Key Other
Holding  controlled %% /4% management related At
company entities ~ Associate  personnel parties Total
EWTFE  #WTx  BWTx  EWTx  #%Tx  #RTx
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
ZO—mE 2014
ARG R AT The Group and the Bank
WESE H & Aggregate amounts
ok outstanding at the year end
— BH R EAMERIEE - Loans and other receivables 4,914,686 8,775 6,252 4,970 3,679 4,938,362
— AR — Placement of deposits 10,131 - - - - 10,131
— BFEHEH — Deposits from customers 3,051,368 858,620 9,442 19,056 23,257 3,961,743
— HoAbRRIE LB R — Other accounts and accruals 244 1 - 7 - 252
B A AR Off-balance sheet outstanding
—SMESH — Exchange rate contracts
(#%EL28H) (notional amounts) 3,552,202 - - - - 3,552,202
— Hpt& ~ Other commitments - 1,404 - 2,551 639 4,594
— I HAE (R — Guarantee received 20,444,460 - - - — 20,444,460
KEH The Group
T B O B Income for the year received
ANEZ A from related parties
— FIBIA ~ Interest income 568,277 3 - 169 4 568,802
— B SiA — Other operating income 33,581 12,661 76 15 46,334
— REREFE A — Net insurance operating income - 9,532 - 4 7,052 16,588
601,858 22,515 1 249 7,101 631,724
REEINTARE Expenses for the year paid to
ANEZER related parties
—FE Tl — Interest expenses 27,215 12,619 139 161 532 40,666
—BEL — Operating expenses 55 2,373 - 3 1 2,432
— RBE R — Net insurance operating expenses - 5,491 1,844 - 6 7,341
W20 20483 1,983 164 539 50439
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46 EAABEMALZR Y (4) 46 Material related party transactions (Continued)
3R I% ity
AL fTHAR  HEEAL
B A T Jointly Key Other
Holding  controlled BiE/nd  management related At
company entities Associate personnel parties Total

BT ENTE BWTr BT #%Tx #%Tx
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$°000

Z0—=Hk 2013
AEMREALT The Group and the Bank
AR H & Aggregate amounts outstanding
Fot at the year end
— EFSIBBENRE - Loans and other receivables 2,849,627 11,564 7,557 9,166 3893 2,881,807
— fRER — Placement of deposits 15,107 - - - - 15,107
- KFfHR — Deposits from customers 916,609 845,828 43,894 17,470 42489 1,866,290
— BT ERER ~ Subordinated debt issued 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
— HAHRIE R R — Other accounts and accruals 5,795 1 - 12 1 5,809
B AERI Off-balance sheet outstanding
— SMERA) — Exchange rate contracts
(%%%2H) (notional amounts) 5,356,557 - - - - 5,356,557
— Rt ~ Other commitments - 1,425 - 2,233 523 4,181
— AR — Guarantee received 21,227,694 - - - - 21,227,694
KEH The Group
T FE I Income for the year received from
AEZA related parties
= FBIA ~ Interest income 221,902 384 = 189 2,771 225,046
— HAhEERA - Other operating income 10,437 13,104 1 45 1,636 25,223
— REEET A — Net insurance operating income 2 13,154 = 13 11,815 24,984
232,341 26,642 1 247 16,222 275,453
REE AT B Expenses for the year paid to
ANEZ %R related parties
— B — Interest expenses 75,392 7,485 66 417 170 83,530
—EEH — Operating expenses 25 1,859 - 4 5 1,893
— REBE — Net insurance operating expenses - 5,750 1,962 2 - 7,714
75,417 15,094 2,028 423 175 93,137

AL N A Fli B T ABE AN+ 2 No impairment allowances have been recognised in respect of loans
BB AT AT I (E MM (O — =4 :  granted to related parties (2013: Nil).
1) o

AN
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46 EAFBMANLZRZY (4)
FRATBA B H

AEBMAEEITHANE  QFATES
AR AT

46 Material related party transactions (Continued)
Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group including
amounts paid to the Bank’s directors is as follows:

—O0O—Iy —0—=

2014 2013

il BT T

HKS$°000 HK$’000

B~ AE AL K HoAth 45 145 F) Salaries, bonus and other short-term benefits 39,260 41,882
HBARAE F Retirement benefits 3,592 3,538
42,852 45,420

47 BEO w) B g B8 P B 48 Wl

AL 2 A0 T K e AR BB /] B R
2 N BN B 5 1 22 3 e R AT A4 A BR

A -
48 W AfE 0

AT EEABEEIBHE — P #EARST
A R 2 L e R E AR
Be10f% oC (%5 [ #1237/ 0) - %3t
FEMNEEEEREHEBEMES > A
A HS50% 2 HE# o ASFT 84T K A AL I
ZREBEEEREFAEHBRENES -
Ik 4E R IF B AR B E A e AN S
B RAT Z BN —REA o

47 Immediate and ultimate holding company

The directors consider that the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Group to be China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., which is
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.

48 Events after the balance sheet date

The Bank has invested in a jointly controlled entity with total investment
cost amounted to RMB1,000 million (equivalent to HK$1,237 million)
after the balance sheet date. The joint venture is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China and is engaged in the provision of consumer
finance services, with 50% owned by the Bank. The investment was
funded by an undated non-cumulative subordinated capital securities
issued by the Bank. The subordinated capital securities are qualified as
additional Tier 1 capital of the Group and the Bank.
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i TEIABE R CRECEFRT)

Supplementary Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying
information to the financial statements and does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

1 Capital adequacy ratio

—O—| —0—=
2014 2013

EAR R Capital ratios
— EEBRE—EAR L — Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 10.8% 10.0%
— —HEARLE — Tier 1 capital ratio 12.1% 10.0%
— BEALR — Total capital ratio 16.0% 14.8%

RZOo—ME+ZA=Z+—HEZO—
SHET AT HZEARRTIRE
v 4 A LR P B A ) CERAT 36 (F
) BRI FHEE o

MRAE CIRATHE (EA) BRI > A 4L B %
FEBRAA [HEYE DTk ) 5H 5 15 B R B e T
5 By 2 Ja Bt A > DA BR T T2
AL | R EE E R

BoOo—MEF“H=F+—HK "0~
SEFZHE—H EFREARLR
2 R BL T Ty BRBE B R 2 AR S
B > (HHER S T H RS A S T HE 2
= -

The capital ratios at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 were
compiled in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Group has adopted
the “standardised approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted
assets for credit risk and market risk, and the “basic indicator approach”
for the calculation of operational risk.

The basis of consolidation for calculation of the capital ratios at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 follows the basis of consolidation
for financial reporting but excludes certain subsidiaries as set out in the
table on the following page.
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1 BEARFTRLE (4) 1 Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)
RO JB 2 ) Y M MR A AR T The total assets and total equity of the subsidiaries are as follows:
~0—H Z0—=
2014 2013
mgE WG mgE  ERaE
Total assets Total equity ~ Total assets ~ Total equity
i Wt #%Tx BRI BN
VA Name FEEH Principal activities HK$000  HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000
KRR B A R A Wing Lung Insurance eSS Insurance underwriting 3,040,002 832,618 2,779,204 713,424
Company Limited"
KEREHRA R Wing Lung Capital Limited” BB a4HIMR%  Financial consultancy 98,750 92,833 37,252 34521
services
KEMEARAR Wing Lung Finance Limited {3 R#  Provision of financial 231,611 231,424 230,122 229,493
services
G RESEARAR  Wing Lung Asset Management & & H Asset management 42,745 42,641 28,937 28,652
Limited®
KB EHR A Wing Lung Futures Limited”  M&% 4 MH  Futures broking 141,082 118,078 121,649 99,081
KERAARAR Wing Lung Securities Limited #4484 %  Securities broking 1,075,976 465,793 653,441 320,980
KEERATE LA AR  Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) (EHES Trustee services 5,519 4,485 3,000 3,000
Limited*
KEERBRMARAR  Wing Lung Insurance TRBR R Insurance broking 70,411 63,586 26,938 26,196
Brokers Limited
K EEREA A Wing Lung Agency Limited ~ {RFftHE Insurance agency 118,520 116,657 122,110 109,648
KERTZMRE Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) — Z#C/UE/RE  Nominee services 10 10 10 10
HRAR" Limited”
KA RA Wing Lung Property EA St Property management - (121) - (108)
Management Limited”
FABRAF" Hongnet Limited’ REEH Investment holding 3,939 3,926 16,177 3,817
Wingspan Incorporated ~ Wingspan Incorporated MERA Property holding 32,343 11,641 32,962 11,650
Wing Lung Opportunities  Wing Lung Opportunities REEH Investment holding 593,616 498,969 617,914 616,921
Fund Limited’ Fund Limited”
Wing Lung Opportunities  Wing Lung Opportunities REEH Investment holding 887,926 498,851 721,769 617,708
Master Fund Limited® Master Fund Limited"
WABEHRA Sea Wing Investments Limited ¥ £+ Property holding 5,575 (4,330) 5,763 (4,128)
A ERBHE () Wing Lung Information e Software development - - 16,854 16,289
ARARe Technology (Shenzhen)

Limited®
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1 BEATRLR (4)

1 Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

Z0—H Z0—=
2014 2013

Mg B 25 4% BERE R

Total assets ~ Total equity ~ Total assets  Total equity

i B8 W T wHT

A Name FEEH Principal activities HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

KRR G Wing Lung Bquity Investment  JitHEHt &% #  Bquity investment 3,138 3,138 AEA /na AEA na.
(I HRAA Management (Shenzhen) management

Limited*

FEARAE Antopex Limited' (ERE3 Trustee services - - RER/na AEH/ na

PRELA R Al Bulleria Limited’ (ERES S Trustee services - - N/ na. AEH/ na

WEHRAT Cameland Limited’ (EREd Trustee services - - NER/na AR/ na.

A R Deeright Limited* ERES Trustee services - - RER/na AEH/ na

EHAR AR Eaglearn Limited’ (ERET Trustee services - - KEA//na AER/na

@ RO+ —H SR -

* REERERE_O—-WEFZA=T
—HRZO—=Ft A=+ HZER
FEALE > WAEEIEAF -

B8 CBRAT 2 (B #8) HL A 5524(3)(b)
6> Tl 4 e B S 35 E 2 AE e B BRI
REAITTEATZEAR TR T EZMRK
Rt scm —o—HRE=HA=+
— H AT b # 2 AR B EH (http://www.

winglungbank.com) °

@ Liquidation process completed in November 2014.

*  Companies excluded in the computation of the consolidated capital ratios
at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 for regulatory reporting
purposes.

In accordance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules Section 24(3)(b),
the standard disclosure templates specified by the HKMA and the main
features and full terms and conditions of the Bank’s capital instruments
will be published before 31 March 2015 on the Bank’s website at http://
www.winglungbank.com.

2 W' &R 2 Liquidity ratio
—O0O—I —0—==
2014 2013
MEE & R Liquidity ratio 42.5% 41.3%

VBN E & L RRAR A W CRAT SE MR B
WA 2% DO AR AT S A 7 < L R 9
Z — M Wit &g 2 m) (oK e WA 5 A R A WD)
TEAAEE N B H 2 456 P &
4 bE AR R 2l B S B o

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated liquidity ratio for the year calculated for
the Bank and a subsidiary (Wing Lung Finance Limited) as specified by
the HKMA during the year in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
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3 fa BEJEks ~ viv B L B K 2 L B
ZEARER

T A BB SR Rl B AR B R T AR 4R
CRATHE (EA) BRI Bk ZOR T At
F2AGRHEETHEBARR T A=
T HZEALR - MBSWMRERL 2
AT Ryt ER 2 AR S R o

PATR 2 UL B R 4 2 B A B R A
ZORT IS A B B A B Rt 5 7 ik g 2
Jo\ ez b B e R AR LA Yo R T B > A E AL

3 Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

The capital ratios in note 1 to the supplementary financial information
represent the consolidated ratio that comprises the positions of the Bank
and subsidiaries for regulatory purposes as at 31 December computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
the basis of consolidation is described in note 1.2 to the financial
statements.

The following disclosure of the capital requirements for each class of
exposures is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the Group’s

ZHIEEEEAR] -
(a) i BB BG 2 B A BER

A48 [ DABR MO ik LA E R R 2 B

actual “regulatory capital”.

(a) Capital charge for credit risk

The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of the capital

BOK o charge for credit risk.
—O—M —0—=
2014 2013
T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT E R R R A Sovereign exposures 16,849 43,343
U AR TR B R A Public sector entity exposures 8,114 13,799
[A] 2 R B R B Bank exposures 3,882,120 3,373,517
5 1 Jal b A A Securities firms exposures 3,028 =
A 2 R B R A Corporate exposures 6,022,712 5,759,616
BeEA Cash items 146,479 174,377
kB TR B R bE Regulatory retail exposures 362,360 227,216
(EEECEE ol = Residential mortgage loans 421,262 305,450
A R 0 40 R g R b Other exposures which are not past due exposures 720,672 637,746
70 1 JoR g A Past due exposures 7,269 4,749

& AR N R R AR 2 Total capital charge for on-balance
HEE AR SR sheet exposures 11,590,865 10,539,813
HiEEERE Direct credit substitutes 31,399 53,651
o EH A B2z 8 A E5 Transaction-related contingencies 9,135 7,352
[HE IENERELPa %K iv Trade-related contingencies 8,415 9,903
oAt R YE Other commitments 263,214 306,039
AMHEA £ Exchange rate contracts 108,680 54,687
FRE 4 Interest rate contracts 922 1,519
RHES K Equity contracts 141 459
AL 3 Pl A8 5 Securities financing transactions 78,360 53,695

% A RSN AR AR 2 Total capital charge for off-balance
HEE AR SR sheet exposures 500,266 487,305
{5 B a2 4B A ER Total capital charge for credit risk 12,091,131 11,027,118
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A4 [ DA HE T vk wH T 35 L B 2 B A

TR TR E R R B

— AT A1 BE Fr B REE AR AH BE O fT AR T
HE#H s &

— AOREHES - MRGETRES
) A R BB A B TR TR

3 Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks
(Continued)

(b) Capital charge for market risk

The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of the capital
charge for market risk.

Positions covered by the approach include:

the Bank’s positions held in foreign exchange and exchange
rate-related derivative contracts; and

— the Bank’s trading book positions held in debt securities, interest
rate derivative contracts, equities and equity-related derivative

HGRINZ G IREFFA - contracts.
—O—MH —0—=
2014 2013
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
R JE B AR (5 I HE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 86,633 69,656
471 R JL ot 7 4 Foreign exchange exposures
(L fE 4 S AHE) (including gold and options) 107,818 181,538
T 35 JE B 2 K8 AR B R Capital charge for market risk 194,451 251,194

(c) BB & AER

A [ LS AR BTk wH R R B

(c) Capital charge for operational risk

The Group uses the basic indicator approach for calculating the capital
charge for operational risk.

—0—M —0—=

2014 2013
T EHT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000

89 B 2 AR AR Capital charge for operational risk 654,897 563,225
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4 B HED

AEEFTEINERFEES > EOAAR
W R A IR R AR A 10%ER DL E s

4 Currency concentration

The US dollar and RMB net positions constitute 10% or more of the
total net position in all foreign currencies of the Group and are reported

BLLAHS WSS AT - in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:
AR
The Group

ESyIn ANRH

US dollar RMB
—O0O—I —0—= —O0O—Il =—0==
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT FEE o T T BT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEgE Spot assets 54,542,428 56,843,698 69,331,068 57,233,659
BEAR Spot liabilities (50,680,600) (44,788,925) (54,369,699) (58,692,335)
EIE A Forward purchases 32,158,744 26,467,530 14,967,417 11,804,604
T Forward sales (33,485,117) (35,900,576) (28,568,020)  (8,632,911)
HIRE R Net option position (6,975) 224 - -
AR Net long position 2,528,480 2,621,951 1,360,766 1,713,017

SR R R AR O A 9 < T LR S
[HNREHS R ] H SRR BT [ 45 1 35 i e
Fim ] GHR -

AL E T AN S A 2R
NG g T g SRt s
FEAR10%EE LA b > B DUk W45 51
mr :

The net option position is calculated based on the delta-weighted position
approach set out in the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position”

issued by the HKMA.

The US dollar and RMB net structural positions constitute

10% or more

of the total net structural position in all foreign currencies of the Group

and are reported in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:

A4
The Group

—O0O—I —O0—=

2014 2013

BT BT T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

LEREME S R Net structural position

ETT US dollar 358,824 330,138
AR RMB 1,388,991 1,421,841
1,747,815 1,751,979
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(a) AT W FH P B3R ABH

5 Segmental information

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors

—~0O—M Z0—2=
2014 2013
R B A HEHR A
% PR %F AR
ZHSK ZAM
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
BT covered by T T covered by
HK$°000 collateral HK$’000 collateral
TEZ e ) 2 K Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
TR &R financial
L E X153 Property development 3,311,335 44.2 3,790,311 41.2
MERE Property investment 14,260,797 90.3 16,026,993 89.8
Rl Financial concerns 11,246,587 27.9 3,906,859 54.4
i SRR AL Stockbrokers 581,910 - 649,564 =
iR Y &S Wholesale and retail trade 7,159,080 95.1 9,798,309 92.8
REE Manufacturing 1,201,156 91.2 1,345,161 90.5
Transport and transport
R Wi 5 R S equipment 3,409,630 6.0 3,153,581 13.8
8 SR Recreational activities 414,074 95.0 43,307 48.0
EallRH Information technology 432,146 83.2 73,904 3.2
HoAt Others 17,745,109 73.0 10,010,679 69.8
A A Individuals
Loans for the purchase of
WE [EEAHE flats in the Home
FE L [FAAZ Ownership Scheme,
dE R Private Sector
[HHEEHER# Participation Scheme and
BHE& AR Tenants Purchase Scheme
BT H T or their respective
ZHK successor schemes 688,945 100.0 768,443 100.0
W B A A Loans for the purchase of
L E R other residential properties 8,622,199 100.0 8,071,249 100.0
5 R ER Credit card advances 331,385 - 336,447 -
oAty Others 5,619,997 51.1 3,272,490 71.9
B o g Trade finance 911,799 48.3 1,374,397 38.0
75,936,149 68.4 62,621,694 75.9
TE 7 s DA AIMAE Loans for use outside
2 Hong Kong 51,086,803 56.9 51,277,197 53.2
127,022,952 63.8 113,898,891 65.7
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5 FEFR (#)
(a) AT W F P B H ()

5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors (Continued)

BTN H T EHADIRE S HHK
RE10%M BH > HE B ESK - BE
WA~ BT WU(E YE M R B AR R
PBME B MR < B AT N R

The gross amount of impaired loans, impairment allowances, amount of
new impairment allowances charged to income statement and the amount
of impaired loans written off for those industry sectors which constitute
not less than 10% of gross advances to customers is analysed as follows:

G
E/ &8 S ks ©
New A &%
18 531 %4 impairment ZEH
i WEER WALYER  allowances Amount of
H#  Individual  Collective charged impaired
Impaired impairment impairment to income loans
loans  allowance  allowance statement  written off
W Tox  WWTor %t #WTx  #WTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZO—l4E 2014
TER A 2 Bk Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
T4 and financial
—YERE — Property investment - - 26,818 6,653 -
— HAh — Others 418 392 39,228 8,278 493
AW LAIME R Loans for use outside
ZEH Hong Kong 8,327 7,991 119,443 23,833 363
8,745 8,383 185,489 38,764 856
ZO0—=# 2013
TER WA 2 &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
T4 and financial
—YERE — Property investment = - 27,012 8,721 -
AW LLIME R Loans for use outside
ZHEHK Hong Kong 982 660 122,255 40,096 180
982 660 149,267 48,817 180
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(b) B 2 % P K~ K
O Dk Bk e Dk A ¥4

DA #% [ 2 % 5 Sk i B
A B B Bl (Y R R AR 5L
HF 2D > WEEEZ A
Rk 2 S P i S

5 Segmental information (Continued)

(b) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers, overdue
advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances

The following geographical analysis of gross advances to customers,
overdue advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances is based
on the location of the counterparty, after taking into account the transfer

of risk in respect of such advances where appropriate.

TR 6
Individual
impairment allowance
=M A =M A
VL ki B VA ki Bk Ba
B Overdue Overdue Y 1 A
Gross advances IR ER advances CfEEX  Collective
advances to for over  Impaired for over  Impaired impairment
customers three months loans  three months loans  allowance
BT BT WWT B¥TFL  BWTL BB
HK$°000 HK$°000  HKS$°000 HK$’000  HKS$’000 HK$’000
ZO—l4 2014
i Hong Kong 66,543,247 07,684 77,401 30,580 51,475 144,516
HiEE A R LA People’s Republic of China 53,205,229 - - - - 145,883
Hits Others 7,274,476 - - - - 17,086
127,022,952 07,684 77,401 30,580 51,475 307,485
£l Restated
ZO0—=k 2013
iy Hong Kong 60,373,782 46,675 70,969 25,749 43211 115,858
HiEE A RALA People’s Republic of China 47,139,423 - 30,000 - 14,000 114,003
HAly Others 6,385,686 - = = = 17,339
113,898,891 46,675 100,969 25,749 57,211 247,200
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5 FEFR (#)
(c) MR R HR

AHE E] LASN 32 5 T B # R A R 2
Fr e st > B AR B5 22 ) B T 5% A i RS 1%
Az i fE A BB R R S
Wrem—MZxHBF2HREEHRS M@
TEARTR] B R 0 N A R 3 ki R
A — T 8R AT 2 A L4347 > T AR R 2
DA — AR AS[R] 04 B 5% - g {6 1 58 2 1R
— B KA R 5 — B R o 5% 5%
o 5 b 2 AL R AR A 10%BK DA - >
HIRAF -

5 Segmental information (Continued)
(¢) Cross-border claims

The Group analyses cross-border claims by exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer
of risk. The transfer of risk from one country to another is recognised
if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in
a different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Those areas which
contribute 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border claims are as
follows:

Y27 3

Public
AT sector I fiby fak
Banks entities Others Total

W T W T i i T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

—O—M4g 2014
ERb N[ Asia Pacific excluding

(NG 1 Hong Kong and People’s

i N\ R LA Republic of China 11,319,019 154,862 3,927,881 15,401,762
e NSRBI People’s Republic of China 39,653,857 12,890,569 41,342,192 93,886,618
—O0—=% 2013
LY N T Asia Pacific excluding

(RNELHE A S Hong Kong and People’s

HREE N REAIE ) Republic of China 5,356,510 134,081 4,568,684 10,059,275

R EE N B3 A Y People’s Republic of China 41,183,501 8,234,087 39,095,675 88,513,263
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6 W RREMNE E 6 Overdue and rescheduled assets
(a) W Bk (a) Overdue advances

AL 2 P RS

The Group’s overdue advances to customers are analysed as follows:

—O0—M —0==
2014 2013
%P & F
ZHESk ZAm
% of total % of total
WwH¥TIC  advances to WHETIC  advances to
HK$°000 customers HK$°000 customers
Gross amount of advances
SRR > Haa which have been overdue for:
— =AM LEE — Six months or less,
~MAH but over three months 30,988 0.02 14,949 0.01
— AL k= — One year or less,
—4F but over six months 3,952 -~ 26,626 0.02
— —4EPL | — Over one year 32,744 0.03 5,100 0.01
67,684 0.05 46,675 0.04
A AT 2 5 A B Secured overdue advances 33,924 20,294
4 I 4 2 2 W AR K Unsecured overdue advances 33,760 26,381
67,684 46,675
Market value of collateral
T HEH 2 g i B held against the secured
P 455 2 A5 5 T (E overdue advances 91,340 77,740
Individual impairment
£ P A ] sk (L ¥4 A allowances made 30,580 25,749

W _Oo—MWHE+ H=+—H,> Rz At 31 December 2014, there were no advances to banks which were

B g =@ H Ll £ (—.O—=  overdue for over three months (2013: Nil).
A M) o

s S KM A Z 547 5 = At Collateral held with respect to overdue advances are mainly residential
properties and cash deposits with the Group.

Y2 R A7 UR A S B B BB A7 3K o
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6 M LR HMEE (H)

(b) H-fih 35 1 & 2

AL 2 A B AT

(b) Other overdue assets

6 Overdue and rescheduled assets (Continued)

The Group’s other overdue assets are analysed as follows:

—O0—M —0==
2014 2013
F A R JH JREEEF S HoAt R IH JRE LS,
Other Accrued Other Accrued
accounts interest accounts interest
W T BT BT T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HoAh 5 7S AU AR Gross amount of other assets
Hiaiiy which have been overdue for:
— =AM LEE — Six months or less,
7~ E A but over three months - 198 - 102
—ANEA R — One year or less,
—AE but over six months - 277 = 1,546
— —4EDE — Over one year - 4,446 20,200 153
- 4,921 20,200 1,801

(c) BHEA B

(c¢) Rescheduled advances

A B2 ) 2 R AL AR (2 98 R A 1 e A
=8 A Sl AE Al (a) TH A 5 B 2 O 2

The Group’s rescheduled advances (net of those which have been
overdue for over three months and reported in item (a) above) are as

Hranw : follows:
—O—I —0==
2014 2013
(I %=
Bk B AERE
Z A Z A
% of total % of total
WWTIC  advances to T IC  advances to
HK$’000 customers HK$’000 customers
Rescheduled advances to

KEAKF BN customers 35,270 0.03 56,308 0.05

oo —WEFH=1+—H . [ At 31 December 2014, there were no rescheduled advances to banks
AR EAH R (O =4  (2013: Nil).
) o
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LA B o e 3% 8 i R AR AT B K A
AT TR 2 A5 A B

O — = AEM BB BOT IE WA E S
o LA B R SR AT JE B 2 20 B T AR
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B AAT RGO AT 243745 IR A o

7 Non-bank Mainland exposures

The following analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with
reference to the HKMA return of Mainland activities. This analysis
includes exposures extended by the Bank and its Mainland branches

only.

No restatement for 2013 comparative figures is necessary as the analysis
of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with reference to
the prevailing HKMA return, which includes the Mainland exposures

extended by the Bank and its overseas branches.

EEAMEK B‘EEAME

PNz VY]
JoEL i 78 JoRL i #R
On-balance Off-balance
sheet sheet A8 ) b
exposure exposure Total
BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ZO— 4 2014
1 Central government, central
— HREBUN - BN government-owned entities
Fr A O BEAE & H 1A A and their subsidiaries and joint
MEERE ventures (JVs) 21,368,976 3,473,975 24,842,951
= T BUR - b BUR 2 Local governments, local
FEA BB S A government-owned entities and
& &z their subsidiaries and JVs 8,697,024 726,057 9,423,081
3 PRC nationals residing in
= N E R R A R A Mainland China or other entities
ST %) T At A A K incorporated in Mainland China
HYNeMEgERZE and their subsidiaries and JVs 13,970,938 2,030,054 16,000,992
P HAh R EFEES AT 4 Other entities of central government
Hhy F e I 22 BRI A A not reported in item 1 above 1,005,625 598,479 1,604,104
5 PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland China or entities
T B IE A R R E T b, incorporated outside Mainland
B T HE ) 2 B China where the credit is granted
A ORI A for use in Mainland China 11,090,372 1,235,266 12,325,638
6 Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered by the
7N HA e 5 ¥ T AT Bank to be non-bank Mainland
BB I A JE SR AT JEL B China exposures 1,899,610 15,297 1,914,907
58,032,545 8,079,128 66,111,673
o Y A 1 1) T AR Total assets after provision 251,354,750

& A E R A R R EE On-balance sheet exposures as
BEMRE B percentage of total assets 23.09%
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7 Non-bank Mainland exposures (Continued)

HFEAMBR EEAMRK
Pl Z Piobz A A B B
Ja gz JE\ B FE Heffg
On-balance  Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet HEFEF  impairment
exposure exposure Total allowance
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZO—=4 2013
TR A Mainland entities 37,233,950 5,442,241 42,676,191 -
Companies and individuals
ESE R NPAEIDSE PN outside Mainland where
FirHt i 2 B the credit is granted for use
AR 1 7R i in Mainland 11,980,698 2,719,180 14,699,878 593
Other counterparties where the
HAth A2 5 34 T M exposure is considered by
RATER B A the Bank to be non-bank
ISR A7 JE B Mainland exposure 686,388 — 686,388 —
49,901,036 8,161,421 58,062,457 593
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8 Jal F 4 P 8 Risk management
(a) 1 B E B (a) Credit risk
(i) 15 B B A 1 (i) Credit risk exposures

K [ AR VE T A R AR TS - B2l Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
B RS S BB AR B SRS R FEAG € Fitch Ratings are the External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAISs”)
1> DLEHE(G B bR R 3E o AEEE A that the Group has used in relation to the credit risk exposures below.
CGRATEE (&A) BRI STk 2 The process it used to map ECALI issuer ratings or ECAI issue specific
P27 DA BC B SN0 A5 F BT A B 35 ASF  ratings to exposures booked in its banking book is a process as
SR AN ERAE F BT Al B A 2 A IHFEAR B prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
SRATIR N 2 JEU B AR A5 o

—O—l& 2014
A H The Group
&Y 754
RS
Ainélﬁ
ER RIS e
SR i
B DR Total
ik g{%gﬁ exposure
7368 e o G| ik#< covered by
E‘ﬁg‘ﬁﬁ{%ﬁfgm ﬁTotal BBAE  recognised
= . Jalfi b Total guarantees
g Exposures after recognised exposure Jo i L 42 LHAH  exposure or recognised
i credit risk mitigation after  Risk-weighted amounts oo isk-  covered by -
Total Ot EFE oeditrik OB EFBR weighted  recognised  derivative
S Class of exposure exposures Rated  Unrated  mitigation Rated  Unrated amounts  collateral contracts

e #WTr  #RTx  EWTx EWTx  #WTx  #WTtx  #WTx T
HK$000  HKS$000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000  HK$°000  HKS'000 HKS’000

BEAREUN On-balance sheet

EHER Sovereign 17,176,008 17,195,123 - 17,195,123 210,612 - 0,612 - -
UNYi Public sector entity 20,668 26330 480,793 507,123 5,266 96,159 101,425 - -
A% Bank 83,624,451 98,763,700 10,187,376 108,951,076 44,178,741 4,347,760 48,526,501 - -
By Securities firm 75,692 - 75,692 75,692 - 31846 37,846 - -
3% Corporate 12779777 15217251 61,899,196 77,116,447 13,384,706 61,899,196 75283902 10295411 25,818,279
BeEH Cash items 085,486 - 11,300,864 11,300,864 - 183099 1,830,990 - -
iy ds Regulatory retail 6,102,013 - 6039338 6,039,338 - 4529503 4520503 318,054 14,173
FEMERH Residential mortgage loan 13,925,277 - 13413353 13473353 - 50657711 5265771 1,913 450,012

Other exposures which

ARkl are not past due exposures 7,292,799 182,419 6,840,826 7,023,245 182421 8825976 9,008,397 - -
jab s Past due exposures 66,793 903 65,890 66,793 181 90,676 90,857 - 2,560
A EEDSD Off-balance sheet

Off-balance sheet exposures

BEA BRI RRSE other than OTC derivative

(M TAR S5 transactions or credit
FEMETRAREN derivative contracts 6,045,380  2,409988 3,635,392 6,045,380 1,511,674 3,369,849 4,881,523 186,182 606,316
BMITETAZS OTC derivative transactions 2,181,435 800369 1,381,066 2,181,435 40,521 1,331,258 1,371,779 5,486 -

29,975,869 134,596,083 115379786 249975869 59,514,122 91624984 151,139,106 10,807,046 26,891,340

RO —ME+H=1+—H 8K At 31 December 2014, there was no exposure with credit risk weighted
15 B Ja B 25 1,250% 09 JE B K #5 o at 1,250%. (2013: Nil)
(ZO—=4 : )
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(a) fR BB (41)

() 15 B BRI (4H)

8 Risk management (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

—O— =4 2013
A H The Group
Btz
BRAGE
ik TR
ERHE i
s L
= B2 Total
fiZi}Fﬁi ZAEME exposure
HENERSER GRAR o
ez R . g Total ~ guarantees
il Exposures afe recogised A BLELH SHA% exposure or recognised
i credit risk mitigation after  Risk-weighted amounts Totalrisk- ~ covered by -
Total  EiF8t B oeditrisk B B weighted recognised  derivative
il it Class of exposure exposures Rated Unrated  mitigation Rated Unrated ~ amounts  collateral contracts
BT BWTT wETT E%Tr Wtk W%t Mtk Wt BETx
HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000 HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BEAREUN On-balance sheet
it Sovereign 12,188,545 12,238,372 - 12238372 541,793 - 541,793 = =
NG 1 Public sector entity 22,308 76086 786,361 862,447 15217 1572712 172489 = =
HRITRE Bank 70,154,113 82,571,738 10995271 93,567,000 37.469,084 4,699,883 42,168,967 - 234,255
¥ Corporate 107,145,668 12,395,201 60,885,834 73,281,035 11,109,360 60,885,834 71,995,194 10,364,590 25,836,023
BaEH Cash items 952,068 — 11,559,801 11,559,801 - 2179716 2,179,716 = =
i Regulatory retail 3,795,942 - 3786932 3,786,932 — 2,840,199 2,840,199 6,045 2,964
EEMESH Residential mortgage loan 11,169,988 - 10,370,134 10,370,134 - 3818125 3818125 - 799,855
Hl A Other exposures which are not
[ past due exposures 6,800,558 194968 6377492 6572460 194968 7776859 7971827 237,098 =
v Past due exposures 58,471 - S84TT 384T - 59358 59358 69,634 434
BEA BRI Off-balance sheet
Off-balance sheet exposures
B AERINER other than OTC derivative
i (GOMITETARS transactions or credit
R ERETAAMIRIY  derivative contracts 7101593 2452,651 4648942 7,101,593 1426227 3956772 5382999 79,004  1946,123
Bk THRS OTC derivative transactions 1233223 787300 445914 1233223 267,174 441136 708310 14978 -
200631483 110,716,325 109915,158 220,631,483 51,023,823 86,815,154 137,838,977 10,771,439 28,819,674
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8 Risk management (Continued)

(a) f5 & RBE (%) (a) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) 35 3 F 2 15 B/m bg R 16 (ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures

ASE [ i 5 MiT A TH A5 S % & The following table summarises the Group’s main credit exposures
L5 T 2 FEAG B EBORIE S 41 arising from OTC derivative transactions and securities financing

T 2 transactions:
A4 The Group
—O0O—I —o—=
2014 2013
wrmE E PV
5 AT R 325 fid TH
Securities T4 Securities EH#
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracis transactionj contracts
i1 BT BT T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
N T (HAA % Gross total positive fair value - 1,257,665 - 541,631
RN R e Credit equivalent amount 1,552,989 2,181,436 1,455,387 1,233,223
JELRg LU B 4 AR Risk weighted amounts 979,496 1,371,779 671,183 708,310
RIS Recognised collateral held:

Bl Cash - 5,486 - 14,978
%ﬁ%*ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁg%gm@%ﬁ%&m@ The breakdown of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit exposures,
IS 2 A and the risk-weighted amounts is summarised as follows:

L The Group
—O—MH —0—=
2014 ) _ 2013
WEME AR
25 A TH 5 fidk TH
Securities e8] Securities EH
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactionj contracis transgctiorls co‘ntracis
BT BT T T e i T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HEEH Notional amounts:

AT Banks 1,083,364 66,171,743 1,130,266 46,778,233

a1 Corporates - 9,678,708 — 9,305,570

HoA Others 469,625 1,607,157 325,121 817,395

1,552,989 77,457,608 1,455,387 56,901,198
fEEMESE Credit equivalent amounts:

AT Banks 1,083,364 1,270,672 1,130,266 787,309

3 Corporates - 836,674 - 429,809

HoA Others 469,625 74,090 325,121 16,105

1,552,989 2,181,436 1,455,387 1,233,223
JEVF b A Risk-weighted amounts:

AT Banks 541,682 478,674 373,360 267,174

e Corporates - 836,674 = 429,700

HoA Others 437,814 56,431 297,823 11,436

979,496 1,371,779 671,183 708,310
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8 Lk B (%)
(a) fi B BE (48)
(i) X5 B F 2 (5 B BRI (44)

ALEFIAR PR CRATE (EA) MR £/
W R BRI DR B A AR 5 B F 1Y
JE BRI o AN SR B A TR0 T % T R
TR WA R 52 Ty 3 T 2 A5 BURE A AE
Hh 7 38 LA RS A R A T AE 2 JEL B 7R
¥ o

AEEB L 5B F 2 HIMIETAGR
2 BB R A P B PR o PR B TH
RKF-IRE R BN B PR OB AT
BEERERSA -

(b) & & 71k

R_—o—MWE+—_H=+r—HkK_0—
SEFTHZ=—H > AL 8
LSRR B A S o A 4 [ P AR M (R
FAb) 7k DhEE SR SR AL El B R g 2 (5
B R\ B o A AR [ A R E S A T AR
o~ B RS S BRSSP
5 FRRAE A > DL R 25 1k 2 mUR
¥ o

() T SRATIR H Pa A Jie A Dl i 7% ¥

SR P RE BB Y i A A ) B B
EATRIEE SR > IR T Z RIETI 2R
AW 2 SEHS AT Z BUE o Ho A b
BEIBEA WG Z A TRA -

TR SRAT MR 1A 4 PR e o 2 38 i ) DA 2
SRR 52 5 A RR A HAR DA
BEIIR » NV EER B P EE RS
B8 g B 75 At 2 T Wi 4 e R I 8 ST R
FHAHESE 2 AR SCE N - HE SR
S A R IE PP O B BRI R HL R AR
fili BB Rl A 2 T e AR 2 B R AR A
T Wi ik 2R N RS, ©

WG by 2 EWEE > KA FEE
TIMRAE T35 2 BARE R E o JF b i o
i 55 37 R A I R T AR AR I o N
E(E DA A 20 52 5 s EL At 2 A i 455
2 HEH 2 AGERAGFH

8 Risk management (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

The Group currently uses the current exposure method for purpose of
providing capital for counterparty exposures in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. Internally, the Group measures counterparty
credit exposure using the marked-to-market exposure with appropriate
add-on for future potential exposures.

The Group has internal limit for counterparty exposure with respect
to OTC derivative contracts. When the limit is reached, the senior
management will take appropriate actions including reduction of the
position.

(b) Asset securitisation

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, there are no securitisation
exposures in the Group. The Group uses the standardised (securitisation)
approach to calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures.
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
Fitch Ratings are the ECAIs that the Group has used in relation to the
securitisation exposures.

(c¢) Equity exposures in banking book

Investments that are held for the purpose of entering into a strategic
cooperation with the investee with a view to leveraging the respective
strengths to enhance the Group’s business are classified by the Group as
strategic investments. Other equity investments are held for capital gain
purposes.

Equity exposures in the banking book are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve, until the equity exposure
is derecognised or impaired. At this time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is recognised
in the income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on
current bid prices. For unquoted equity holdings with no active market,
the Group establishes fair value by the use of recent arm’s length
transactions or other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.
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8 Risk management (Continued)

(¢) Equity exposures in banking book (Continued)

A4 The Group

—~O0—N —0—=
2014 2013
W T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000

o 5 B H Ak i Unrealised revaluation gain

45 7 it 45 7R (ELSE I Amount included in reserves but not

TS YN -k through income statement 249,327 170,482

(d) TR ERATIR H P37 52 L B R 4f

AL LA AR AR L AT
2 T L 5 W O A e R AT WA i i A

B/
w A ©

A5 A A i g T A AR R R R
H 2 B AR+ A A R EE AL
118 R B 22 v i o

(d) Interest rate exposures in banking book

The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposures on a monthly basis
by assessing the impact on earnings in banking book due to parallel

movements of 200 basis points upward in all yield curves.

The impact on earnings of the Group is calculated by assuming that the
changes in interest rates last for a period of 12 months and all positions

are repriced at the mid-point of each time band.

—O—n& 2014
2 4 5| The Group
B
Currency
s %70 LT AR Aty it
HKD UsDh AUD RMB Others Total
WL wlTx  wETx W%t Wtk wETx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
R B Interest rate risk
(LF20085+) (200 basis points upward)
—fegsBetn /() ~ Increase/(decrease) in earnings 287,063 85,555 (19,167 113,697 (44,841) 422,307
—O—=# 2013
AREH The Group
B
Currency
ao ey LT NG HAth At
HKD usDh AUD RMB Others Total
BT ¥ B%Tr BT %t B%Tx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Fl%e 8B Interest rate risk
(LF20085+) (200 basis points upward)
—fegs Bt/ () — Increase/(decrease) in earnings 260,420 82,283 (61,820) 314,171 (6,872) 588,182
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HEAD OFFICE

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: wib@winglungbank.com

Website: http://www.winglungbank.com

Telephone: (852) 2309 5555

LOCAL BRANCHES
Hong Kong Island

North Point
Central District
Western District
Happy Valley
Causeway Bay
Wan Chai
Quarry Bay
Convention Plaza
Aberdeen
Johnston Road
Kennedy Town
Sai Wan Ho
Fortress Hill

Kowloon

Prince Edward

Sham Shui Po

San Po Kong

Mongkok

Kwun Tong

Tsim Sha Tsui

To Kwa Wan

Tsz Wan Shan

Jordan

Kowloon Bay

Nam Cheong Street
Hunghom

Lam Tin Sceneway Plaza
China Hong Kong City
Mei Foo Sun Chuen
Kwun Tong Shing Yip Street
Kowloon City

361 King’s Road

189 Des Voeux Road Central
262 Queen’s Road West
44 King Kwong Street
262 Gloucester Road

383 Hennessy Road

1A Westlands Road

1 Harbour Road

201 Aberdeen Main Road
118 Johnston Road

28 Catchick Street

123 Shaukeiwan Road
101 King’s Road

17 Lai Chi Kok Road

111 Tai Po Road

8 Shung Ling Street

Wing Lung Bank Centre, 636 Nathan Road
339 Ngau Tau Kok Road

4 Carnarvon Road

64 To Kwa Wan Road

25 Fung Tak Road

123 Woo Sung Street

19 Lam Lok Street

85 Nam Cheong Street

28 Wuhu Street

8 Sceneway Road

Shop 7, G/F, China Hong Kong City
Shop N94, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall
Shop 149, 1/E, E Plaza, Legend Tower
70-72 Nga Tsin Wai Road

%3 Telephone

3507 0005
3507 0006
3507 0008
3507 0011
3507 0020
3507 0021
3507 0023
3507 0024
3507 0027
3507 0028
3507 0030
3507 0034
3507 0047

3507 0002
3507 0003
3507 0004
3507 0007
3507 0009
3507 0012
3507 0014
3507 0016
3507 0025
3507 0029
3507 0032
3507 0033
3507 0039
3507 0041
3507 0042
3507 0044
3507 0045



Annual Report 2014 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KPESRATAH RAF —O—MFEFR

AH o 17

iR

-3 YIRS 158

KE KEE-HE

JCH B EITHE

M o P AR B 4257

Ek B Bk 12855

K P15t

Fi4E T LA 155

T HEY Y H IEA721598

AR AR BRI O — R 52385

FHEE BHEL R — W0 KM R
1N S003 55 6

B M 43 47

w7

F B % 11T 28 300 6 6 7 AR 5016 5%

FHE—H K EARES3H5301 %

BN AT

R R R I T Rl L e =
R Hp e 73 75 o 4 —
BJE2203 =

LT
o L AT
A A 3

v B A L A A8 H2601-2609F

B A A
BN ARERE

R ] 3 T R T R 362-366%

JE N Tt R 351302 %

H B 3 AT
17

LT T B A AT 285 5 0 B

BT R & ho D M T AT

LOCAL BRANCHES

New Territories

Tsuen Wan 251 Sha Tsui Road

Tai Wai 8 Tai Wai Road

Yuen Long 37 On Ning Road

Tuen Mun 42 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
Sheung Shui 128 San Fung Avenue

Tai Po 1 On Chee Road

Fanling 15 Luen Hing Street
Shatin Plaza 21 Shatin Centre Street
Tseung Kwan O Metro City Shop 238, Metro City Phase 1

Science Park S003, G/F, Core Building One

Phase 1, HK Science Park

MAINLAND BRANCHES

Shenzhen Branch

Room 5301, 53/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building
No. 5016 Shennan East Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shenzhen Qianhai Sub-branch

Room 2203, Block B, Tiley Central Plaza
No. 3 Haide Road, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shanghai Branch

Room 2601-2609

Phase II Office Tower Shanghai IFC
8 Century Avenue, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

MAINLAND REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Guangzhou Representative Office

Room 1302, Guangzhou Peace World Plaza
362-366 Huan Shi Dong Road

Guangzhou, PRC

MACAU BRANCH, CHINA

Macau Branch

Baia da Praia Grande, No. S/N, Fecho
BPG-Zona A-Lote 5, R/C A

Finance and IT Center of Macau

i Telephone
3507 0010
3507 0013
3507 0015
3507 0019
3507 0022
3507 0031
3507 0037
3507 0038

3507 0043
3507 0046

w4 Telephone

(86 755) 2294 9300

(86 755) 2294 9415

(86 21) 2035 7199

il Telephone

(86 20) 8384 8027

il Telephone

(853) 2888 8111
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Hoh o A7
ENEQIIPIREY A Vi

e 1T

B 1 24 7

IKBERBRA PR 7
KRR A FRA
KB BSA PR A 7

K R B PR W
KEEM B A RA T
KB I A FRA T

K BERATR LA R A

7K PR B L ] A FR 22 W

K BEAEA PR
AKBESRITZ FEAE A RAF
IKBEE A RAT
FEA A B

Wingspan Incorporated
Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited
Wing Lung Opportunities
Master Fund Limited

IRF A BUE A R A
LHEARAF
PREA BRZ A

S A B A
TERTA PR

R A IR F
KRERAEREE R (Y FRAH

OVERSEAS BRANCHES

Los Angeles Branch
201 East Valley Boulevard
Alhambra, California 91801, USA

San Francisco Branch
One Market Plaza
Steuart Tower Suite 1200
San Francisco, CA94105

Cayman Islands Branch
190 Elgin Avenue

Grand Cayman KY1-9005
Cayman Islands

SUBSIDIARIES

Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited
Wing Lung Capital Limited
Wing Lung Finance Limited
Wing Lung Asset Management Limited
Wing Lung Futures Limited
Wing Lung Securities Limited
Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited
Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited
Wing Lung Agency Limited
Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited
Wing Lung Property Management Limited
Hongnet Limited
Wingspan Incorporated
Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited
Wing Lung Opportunities
Master Fund Limited
Sea Wing Investments Limited
Antopex Limited
Bulleria Limited
Cameland Limited
Deeright Limited
Eaglearn Limited
Wing Lung Equity Investment Management (Shenzhen)
Limited

# il Telephone

(626) 656-8118

(415) 400-8700

(345) 943-3100



A i TE 7 458
45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
wlb@winglungbank.com

http://www.winglungbank.com
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